BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FIRE CHIEF

Kitty Jung, Chair Charles A. Moore

Bob Lucey, Vice-Chair

Marsha Berkbigler

Vaughn Hartung DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Jeanne Herman David Watts-Vial

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

Notice of Meeting and Agenda

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

9:00 a.m.
Tuesday, November 15, 2016
Washoe County Health District Board Room, Bldg. B
1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada

NOTE: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to
the agenda of another meeting; moved to or from the Consent section; or may be voted on in a block. Items with a
specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.

The Washoe County Health District Board Room is accessible to the disabled. If you require special arrangements for
the meeting, call the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Office, 326-6000, 24-hours prior to the meeting.

Time Limits. Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters, whether listed on the
agenda or not, and are limited to three minutes per person. Additionally, public comment of three minutes per person will
be heard during individual action items on the agenda. Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting. Persons may not allocate unused time to other
speakers.

Forum Restrictions and Orderly Conduct of Business. The Board conducts the business of the District and its citizens
during its meetings. The presiding officer may order the removal of any person whose statement or other conduct disrupts
the orderly, efficient or safe conduct of the meeting. Wamnings against disruptive comments or behavior may or may not
be given prior to removal. The viewpoint of a speaker will not be restricted, but reasonable restrictions may be imposed
upon the time, place and manner of speech. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious statements and personal attacks which
antagonize or incite others are examples of speech that may be reasonably limited.

Responses to Public Comments. The Board can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda
properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed
on the published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board.
However, responses from Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter
without notice to the public. On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board
will consider, the Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies,
ask for staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The Board may do this either during the public
comment item or during the following item: “*Commissioners’/Chief’s Announcements, Requests for Information,
Topics for Future Agendas and Statements Relating to Items Not on the Agenda”.




TMFPD BOFC Agenda, Nov 15, 2016
Page 2 of 3

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, the Agenda for the Board of Fire Commissioner Meetings has been posted at the following
locations: Washoe County Administration Building (1001 E. 9™ Street, Bldg. A), Washoe County Courthouse-District
Court Administrator/Clerk of Court (75 Court Street), Washoe County Downtown Library (301 South Center Street) and
Sparks Justice Court (1675 East Prater Way) and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s website at
www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd

Support documentation for the items on the agenda, provided to the Board of Fire Commissioners is available to
members of the public at the District’s Admin Office (1001 E. 9th Street, Bldg. D, 2™ Floor, Reno, Nevada)
Sandy Francis, Administrative Assistant I, phone (775) 328-6124 and on the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District’s website at www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd ; and https://notice.nv.gov.

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible
action” were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for
which no action will be taken.

9:00 am *1. Salute to the Flag
*2. Call to order/roll call

*3. Public Comment - Comment heard under this item will be limited to three minutes per person
and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of Fire Commissioners agenda. The
District will also hear public comment during individual action items, with comment limited
to three minutes per person. Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners
as a whole.

4.  Consent Items:

A. Approval of minutes from the October 18, 2016 meeting.

B. Discussion and possible approval of an amendment to the existing Collective Bargaining
Agreement between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and Truckee Meadows
Firefighters Association [.A.F.F. Local 3895 at “Article 43 —Training Courses and
Seminars™ retroactive to July 1, 2016 to increase the training allowance from $500 to
$750 per fiscal year [FY 16/17 potential impact $27,000].

*5. LA.F.F Local 3895 Report.

6.  Acceptance of a presentation from the United States Forest Service regarding prescribed
burns.

7.  Acceptance of a presentation from Washoe County Community Development regarding the
Burned Area Emergency Response Team.

*8. Fire Chief Report:
A. Report and discussion related to fire district operations
* Update on Station 14 Development
* Meeting Change Notice
* District Management Organization update
B. Career Statistics and Report for September 2016
C. Volunteer Statistics and Report for September 2016



TMFPD BOFC Agenda, Nov 15, 2016
Page 3 of 3

9.  Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding salary and/or adjustments to Employment
Agreement for TMFPD Fire Chief.

10. Discussion and possible approval to create three additional full-time Firefighter/Paramedic
positions.

11.  Approve the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees, dependents and retirees at
an estimated annual cost of $1,691,633 and authorize the Chairman of the Board of Fire
Commissioners to execute all insurance contracts and service agreements pertinent to the
Health Benefits Program.

12. Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor issues with Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220.

*13. Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements, requests for information, topics for future
agendas, and statements relating to items not on the Agenda. (No discussion among
Commissioners will take place on this item).

*14. Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited to three minutes per person
and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of Fire Commissioners agenda. The
District will also hear public comment during individual action items, with comment limited
to three minutes per person. Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners
as a whole.

Adjournment



BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (TMFPD)

TUESDAY

PRESENT:

9:00 a.m. OCTOBER 18, 2016

Kitty Jung, Chair
Bob Lucey, Vice Chair

Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner

Jeanne Herman, Commissioner

Jan Galassini, Chief Deputy County Clerk
David Watts-Vial, Legal Counsel
Charles Moore, Fire Chief

The Board convened at 9:00 a.m. in regular sessien in the Commission

Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno,
Nevada. Following the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of our Country, the Clerk called
the roll and the Board conducted the following business:

16-118F

16-119F

16-120F

16-121F

16-122F

AGENDA ITEM 3 Public Comment;

There was no response to the call for public comment.

CONSENT ITEMS 4A THROUGH 4D

4A Approval of minutes from the September 20, 2016 meeting.

4B Authorization to reclassify one (1) vacant Firefighter/Paramedics
position (#70008288) to Firefighter/EMT Intermediate.

4C Accept monetary donation in the amount of $1,000.00 from Brigid
and Mark Slavin in operational support to Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District Fire and to express appreciation for the thoughtful
contribution and direct Finance Department to make appropriate budget
adjustments.

4D Approval of a Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement and
corresponding Annual Operating Plan for Cooperative Fire Protection
Agreement between Bureau of Land Management, Carson City District
Office, Winnemucca District Office, USDA Humboldt — Toiyabe National
Forest Carson Ranger District and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District.

AGENDA ITEM #4A

OCTOBER 18, 2016 PAGE 1



Commissioner Berkbigler acknowledged Brigid and Mark Slavin for their
donation.

There was no response to the call for public comment.

On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner
Lucey, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that the Consent Agenda Items 4A
through 4D be approved. Any and all Resolutions or Interlocal Agreements pertinent to
Consent Agenda Items 4A through 4D are attached hereto and made a part of the minutes
thereof.

16-123F AGENDA ITEM S 1 AF.F Local 3895 Report.

[an Satterfield, International Association of Firefighters' Local 3895
President, stated Local 3895 members’ hearts and thoughts were with those affected by
the Little Valley Fire. He thanked Local 3895 members and the TMFPD for their work.
On the first day of the Little Valley Fire, he noted 86 people, 84 percent of the TMFPD’s
staff, were on duty. He added Local 3895 would be helping out with the Chemistry of a
Cocktail event at the Discovery Museum. A spaghetti dinner at a fire house would be
submitted as a silent auction item. He mentioned members of Local 3895 attended a
memorial in Las Vegas for an I.A.F.F. member who died in the line of duty. He thanked
Chief Moore for his support and for providing a TMFPD vehicle to the Local 3895
members who attended to the memorial. He concluded his report by informing the Board
of an upcoming Fire Ops event. 7Y

There was no public cot{hmé'nt or action taken on this item.
16-124F AGENDA ITEM 6 Fire Chief Report: A) Report and discussion related

to fire district operations. B) Career Statistics and Report for August
2016. C) Volunteer Statistics and Report for August 2016

Chief Moore acknowledged his staff’s hard work during the Little Valley
Fire and the hard work done by County staff during the recovery phase. He said he had
never seen quite an éffort of cooperation since the TMFPD was created in 2012. He noted
at 1:38 a.m., as an 80 mile-per-hour wind gust swept in, fire crews saw a glow on a hill.
When fire crews arrived, they found a fire that was approximately five acres, which grew
into 50 acres in a short amount of time. He mentioned he spoke with Battalion Chief
Alexander Kukulus and they were formulating where the fire would go. They also had to
predict what the fire would look like as time passed. He noted he and Battalion Chief
Kukulus determined the fire was going to come down into the Franktown Road area. He
spoke about having to defend and evacuate the arca. He praised the Washoe County
Sherift’s Office and the Washoe County Search and Rescue who went door-to-door to
evacuate the residents. He mentioned there were three documented rescues of people who
did not hear the reverse 911 call or the Code Red. He stated no one had been hurt or
killed during the Little Valley Fire. There were a couple of minor smoke inhalation
incidents with firefighters but they were well. He thanked the regional partners who

PAGE 2 OCTOBER 18, 2016



quickly responded. He mentioned there were approximately 300 firefighters on the
morning of Friday, October 14th. Once the transition was made into Type 1 and Type 3
teams, there were approximately 855 firefighters on the scene. He spoke about an
incident in which an ember cast landed in East Washoe Valley. The ember started a two-
acre brush fire, which a City of Sparks brush engine responded to and suppressed the fire
with the aid of Brush Engine 39 from Joy Lake. He stated a crowning fire which moved
from tree top to tree top could not be fought from the ground. Firefighters with hand tools
could only fight a fire that was around three feet tall. With fire engines and hoses,
firefighters would be able to fight a fire that was six to eight feet tall. Once a fire was in
the tree tops, aircraft would be needed. He added because of the winds, there was nothmg
firefighters could do to prevent a crowning fire from spreading from tree to tree and
eventually to homes. He said he was very proud of the citizens who echoed. the call to
evacuate. He was also proud of the County’s partners and firefighters for their work. He
introduced Kim Martin, Great Basin Coordination Center (GBCC) Team 2 Incident
Commander, Tony DeMasters, GBCC Deputy Incident Commander; and Stacy Saucedo,
Sierra Front Team Incident Commander, who all assisted with the fire. -

Mr. Martin explained a Type 1 team bore a lot of resources which could
handle very complex incidents. Those resources included aircraft, resources crews,
engines, logistical support and financial support. He said his team was one of 16 federally
sponsored national Type 1 teams in the United States. He noted there were two Type 1
teams in the Great Basin area and they handled ' ‘the most complex incidents. He said he
personally had been involved in hurricanes; the Columbia Shuttle recovery, and the
Newcastle Disease incident in Las Vegas. He stated a Type 2 team was a step down from
a Type 1 team and a Type 3 team was the. next step down below a Type 2 team. He
commented the Board should be proud that it had several Type 3 teams along the Sierra
Front. He noted Ms. Saucedo was. the Incident Commander for the Type 3 team that his
team transitioned with during the Little Valley Fire. He spoke about the stellar
interagency cooperation. He-said the Board should also be proud of what it had in regards
to the cooperation amongst its resources. He acknowledged Mr. DeMasters was a Type 2
Incident Commander who was transitioning into a Type 1 Incident Commander. He noted
the last assignment he and Mr. DeMasters had together was the Pioneer Fire in Idaho,
which was an 188,400 acre fire.

. Intesponse to Chair Jung’s question regarding where he was based out of
and whether he was a Federal employee, Mr. Martin replied he was a Forest Engineer
with the United States Forest Service out of Salt Lake City. He provided a status update
regarding the Little Valley Fire. He stated the fire was remapped by the Nevada Division
of Forestry helicopter which utilized a global positioning system. The fire was
determined to be 2,291 acres rather than the reported 3,400 acres. The 3,400 acre number
was obtained by utilizing infrared flights which took heat signatures from the ground. He
referenced an 11 by 17 map which was displayed on the overhead projector and handed
out to each Commissioner. The map was placed on file with the Clerk. He mentioned
there were individuals who patrolled the areas of the fire and assessed the situation.
Containment had gone up to 90 percent from 20 percent a few days ago. He said the fire
had pretty much stabilized and would not grow in size. The objective was to get to 100

OCTOBER 18, 2016 PAGE 3



percent containment within the next few days. He added there were still 600 firefighters
on staff. He mentioned when the fire started on October 14th, fire engines were ordered
from the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. At one point there were
about 115 fire engines with approximately 500 firefighters working from those fire
engines. The fire engines were ordered with the anticipation that the fire would be more
severe. He noted a contingency of fire engines plus hand crews would be maintained. The
Nevada Division of Forestry’s inmate crews were also being utilized. He also noted his
team was not trained to deal with structural firefighting so he was coordinating with
others in regards to that matter. He concluded by stating the evacuees would be allowed
back into the area.

Mr. DeMasters stated he was a Deputy under Mr. Martin on the Type 2
Great Basin Incident Team. He echoed Mr. Martin’s comments about the outstanding
cooperation between the TMFPD and the other entities. 1

Ms. Saucedo recognized the TMFPD for their work and for making it easy
for the Sierra Front Team to come to their assistance.

Commissioner Hartung asked Mr. Martin-what the cost of the resources
amounted to. W A

Mr. Martin said he believed the accumulative cost-to-date for all
resources, including local resources, was estimated to be around $4 million.

Commissioner Lucey thanked Mr. Martin and his teams for their work. He
also commended Ms. Saucedo and her team for their work. He mentioned the impressive
show of force and response to the fire. He noted the loss of 23 residential structures and
he said it could have been worse. He stated without their assistance on the Little Valley
Fire, the County would have been in dire straits due to the lack of resources fighting three
fires in his District on Friday, October 14th.

Mr. Martin said it was commendable how the County worked with all of
the different resources. He believed being prepared for a natural disaster was a good deal
for the taxpayer and he thought the County was well-prepared.

Chief Moore noted the GBCC team did not try to assert control over the
fire but instead they asked how they could support the TMFPD. He said it was a great
relationship and he thanked them for their assistance.

Chair Jung stated every time the County thought it was out of fire danger,
a fire would occur. She inquired whether this was a measure of climate change, what was
driving the fires, what the experts were saying, and whether the County should expect a
longer fire season.

Chief Moore recalled there was significant rainfall earlier in the year
which resulted in the growth of grass. Then there was a period of almost 120 days

PAGE 4 OCTOBER 18, 2016



without any rain. This in combination with the stressed timber was a factor which led to
the fires. The timber had been stressed for at least five years and even with the rainfalls
the County received that timber had not recovered in terms of their moisture content. He
noted experts informed him that it would take two to three years of normal precipitation
for the trees to return to a healthy condition. He also noted sagebrush was always
inherently dry. He spoke about the weather patterns that came in during the months of
October through January, and he noted the certainty of strong winds due to the strong low
pressure systems that came in from the Pacific Ocean. He stated as weather patterns
moved in, there would be strong winds during the first 24 hours followed.by the
moisture. He asserted the first 24 hours of wind was always critical for the TMFPD. The
TMFPD had to anticipate those weather patterns with greater urgency while working on
creating defensible space, new Codes and new construction methods. He stateq he would
love to give the Commissioners a tour of the fire affected area so they could see the types
of homes that survived and did not survive. He acknowledged the erratic behavior of the
fire contributed to the destruction of the homes, but noted the type of construction and
amount of defensible space also came into play.

Chair Jung inquired how the fires received their names. She also asked
who first reported the Little Valley Fire. -

Chief Moore replied the Incident Commander would name a fire based on
the most relevant geographical point. In regards to'who first reported the Little Valley
Fire, he said a citizen contacted 911 after seeing a glow on a hill. He noted the TMFPD
was aware of a controlled burn that took place il the area when it responded. When fire
crews arrived, they found approximately five acres had caught on fire and they quickly
communicated to him that there was nothing they could do with the resources they had.

Chair Jung asked v&hetﬁer the TMFPD would conduct a meaningful event
or ceremony to honor the first responders for their hard work.

Chief Moore lth7ar';ked Chair Jung for her words and he said their main
priority was to return a sense of normalcy to the citizens who were affected by the fire.
After that, he said the TMFPD would be honored to recognize the first responders.

S In regards to the Reverse 911 system, Commissioner Hartung noted very
few people had landlines. He mentioned how difficult it would be to notify people in
outlining areas who did not have landlines and also those people who had out-of-state
cellular phone numbers. He inquired whether there was a way to create a contact list of
residents in a given area to ensure people were notified.

Chief Moore remarked that someone would have to have a landline to
receive a Reverse 911 notification. He added cellular phone notifications could be done
through Code Red; however, he was unaware of how the Code Red broadcasts worked in
regards to cellular phone towers. He mentioned old fashion door knocking was what
saved the lives of three people during the Little Valley Fire. He said he would do more
research and provide more information at a later date.

OCTOBER 18, 2016 PAGE S



Commissioner Berkbigler inquired whether any more structures were in
danger.

Chief Moore said he was confident the fire was at a point where there was
no imminent threat to structures; however, until there was 100 percent containment there
could still be a threat. In regards to the Fire Chief Report, he noted Amy Solaro, TMFPD
Fire Marshal, had done a phenomenal job on her own over the last year; however, after
many months the TMFPD finally staffed up their Fire Prevention Bureau. He introduced
a new employee, David Ridley, who joined the Fire Prevention Bureau as a Fire
Prevention Specialist I. He said Mr. Ridley worked as a Fire Protection Engmeer at the
Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory. \

Mr. Ridley said he was delighted to work with Chief Moore and Fire
Marshal Solaro. He stated he emigrated from Scotland approximately four and a half
years ago, and it was a privilege to be in the United States.

Chair Jung welcomed Mr. Ridley to the County.
There was no public comment or action taken on this item.
16-125F AGENDA ITEM 7 Authorization to reinstate one (1) previously frozen

flexibly staffed Fire Preventlon Spe01a11st /11 Position at a salary range of
$55,140.80 to $78,811.20. ‘

Chief Moore explained wlien the TMFPD was created in 2012, it was
anticipated the TMFPD would have a Fire Prevention Bureau of three individuals. He
noted approval of the item would allow the TMFPD to hire a third person to get the
TMEFPD to the point where it could timely review construction plans and start programs
such as defensible space tramlng

There was no public comment on this item.

On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey,
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7 be authorized.

16-126F AGENDA ITEM 8 Approve the purchase of fourteen (14) X Series ®
Manual Monitor/Defibrillators with accessories and training from ZOLL
Medical Corporation in the amount of $438,686.50.

Chief Moore stated the approval of the item would allow the TMFPD to
replace their aging frontline defibrillators and heart monitors. Since 80 percent of what
the TMFPD did was related to Advanced Life Support (ALS), he noted the equipment
was a critical piece of their work. He mentioned an upgrade to the state-of-the-art
equipment would allow the TMPFD to place their existing monitors on brush engines.

PAGE 6 OCTOBER 18, 2016



Should a TMFPD crew happen to be in a brush engine rather than a structural engine, this
would provide them with the ability to assist in ALS situations.

There was no public comment on this item.

On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner
Hartung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be approved.

16-127F AGENDA ITEM 9 Approve the purchase of eleven (11) Chest
Compression Systems from Physio-Control Inc. in the amount of
$165,487.39.

Chief Moore stated the chest compression systems were previously
showcased through the allocation of funds from Commissioner Hartung. He mentioned
two cardiac arrest situations where the TMFPD utilized the devices. Approval of the item
would allow the TMFPD to place the devices in the fire stations staffed by career
firefighters.

There was no public comment on this item:

On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered.that Agenda Item 9 be approved.

16-128F AGENDA ITEM 10 Presentation, discussion and possible approval of a
renewal of a Cooperative Agreement and corresponding Annual Operating
Plan between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and City of Reno
for automatic and mutual aid.

Chief Moore stated he and the City of Reno Fire Chief, Dave Cochran,
were both in support of the.Cooperative Agreement. He noted Chief Cochran wanted to
attend the meeting but he was unable to due to his schedule. He explained the approval of
Cooperative Agreement would continue the automatic and mutual aid system until 2019.
He believed the agreement did not place an onerous burden on any of the fire
departments and it furthered the fire departments’ ability to send the closest unit to a call
when a fire broke out. He mentioned a typographical error referencing the Sierra Fire
Protection District in the Annual Operating Plan needed to be struck from the agreement.

On the call for public comment, Cathy Brandhorst spoke about matters of
concern to herself.

Chair Jung commended Chief Moore for his work in regards to the
Cooperative Agreement.

On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner
Hartung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 10 be approved.

OCTOBER 18, 2016 PAGE 7



16-129F AGENDA ITEM 11 Possible Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220
for the purpose of discussing with management representatives labor
matters and negotiations.

There was no closed session.

16-130F AGENDA ITEM 12 Announcements/Reports.

Chief Moore stated the salary study the Board asked him to complete
during his evaluation had concluded. He indicated he would present the study at the next
meeting.

In response to Chair Jung’s question regarding when his evaluation was
done, Chief Moore replied it was in July.

Chair Jung reminded the Board she asked Chief Moore to complete the
salary study because she believed it was a disgrace that he was making less than some of
his counterparts when he had more responsibility and had proven himself.

Commissioner Lucey requested a status update on Fire Station 14°s
construction and he asked what the plans were for the existing fire station. He also
inquired about the status of the executive staff changes within the TMFPD and he wanted
to know what Chief Moore’s intent was with those positions. He thanked County staff
and other entities, including entities from California, for their work and assistance during
the fires.

Chief Moore said he would be proud to reciprocate the assistance provided
from entities in California.

Commissioner Hartung concurred with Commissioner Lucey’s comments.

16-131F AGENDA ITEM 13 Public Comment.

Cathy Brandhorst spoke about matters of concem to herself.

* # * * * * * * * * *-

PAGE 8 OCTOBER 18, 2016



9:58 a.m. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned
without objection.

KITTY K. JUNG, Chair
Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District

ATTEST:

NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District

Minutes Prepared By:
Michael Siva, Deputy County Clerk

OCTOBER 18, 2016 PAGE 9



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

NATHE, COUMTY, WY

FIRE
FROTECTION DIBTRICT

STAFF REPORT Fir;ii:fci_
Board Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 Logal
Risk Mgt.
DATE: September 12, 2016 AR
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of an amendment to the existing Collective Bargaining
Agreement between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and Truckee Meadows
Firefighters Association I.A.F.F. Local 3895 at “Article 43 —Training Courses and
Seminars” retroactive to July 1, 2016 to increase the training allowance from $500 to
$750 per fiscal year [FY 16/17 potential impact $27,000]. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

This item is for possible approval of an amendment to the existing Collective Bargaining Agreement
between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and Truckee Meadows Firefighters Association
[.A.F.F. Local 3895 at “Article 43 —Training Courses and Seminars” retroactive to July 1, 2016 to
increase the training allowance from $500 to $750 per fiscal year.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Valued, Engaged Employee Workforce
PREVIOUS ACTION

On October 28, 2014 the Board of Fire Commissioners approved a collective bargaining agreement
between the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District Firefighters Association, IAFF Local 3895 for a four year term effective from July 1, 2014 until
June 30, 2018.

BACKGROUND

The State of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC 450B.360 and 450.363) approved (October 2014) and
codified (June 2016) now requires additional certifications for the initial application of and the renewal
of a Paramedic Certification

District Management and County Human Resources met with representatives of Local 3895. It was
determined that some training standards have increased putting a larger financial burden on some
employees. In response to this, staff is recommending an increase in the training allowance from $500
to $750 per fiscal year. The amendment proposes the increase retroactively to July 1, 2016 and is
attached as exhibit “A”.

FISCAL IMPACT

The increase in the training allowance from $500 to $750 per fiscal year has a potential budget impact of
$27,000 for FY16/17. There are sufficient funds in the FY16/17 general fund budget for the increase.

AGENDA ITEM #4B



BOFC Meeting November 15, 2016
Page 2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of an amendment to the existing Collective Bargaining Agreement between
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and Truckee Meadows Firefighters Association I.A.F.F.
Local 3895 at “Article 43 —Training Courses and Seminars” retroactive to July 1, 2016 to increase the
training allowance from $500 to $750 per fiscal year [FY 16/17 potential impact $27,000].

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to approve an amendment to the existing Collective Bargaining Agreement between Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection District and Truckee Meadows Firefighters Association LA.F.F. Local 3895
at “Article 43 —Training Courses and Seminars” retroactive to July 1, 2016 to increase the training
allowance from $500 to $750 per fiscal year [FY 16/17 potential impact $27,000].”



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Amendment to the 2014-2018 Collective Bargaining Agreement is entered into on
the 18th day of October, 2016, by and between the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
(“TMFPD”) and Truckee Meadows Fire Fighters Association, International Association of Fire
Fighters Local 3895 (“Union”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Union and TMFPD are parties to a Collective Bargaining Agreement
(“CBA”) entered on October 28, 2014 which expires on June 30, 2018; and,

WHEREAS, Atrticle 42.F of that CBA recites that “[a]ny change in requirements for
certification by the State or District shall cause this section to be renegotiated”; and,

WHEREAS, the Nevada Administrative Code at NAC 450B.360 and NAC 450.363
effective June 2016 requires additional certifications for the initial application for, and the
renewal of, a Paramedic Certification; and,

WHEREAS, the Association requested negotiations pursuant to Article 42.F due to the
changes in Paramedic Certification; and,

WHEREAS, Article 9 “Amendments” states that no provision of the CBA may be
amended without the mutual agreement of the parties; and,

WHEREAS, in recognition of the changes to certification described herein, negotiations
were conducted and the Parties reached an agreement whereby TMFPD agrees to increase the
amount of reimbursement for which Union employees are eligible for training courses as
provided for in Article 43.C.3, D and E, and,

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to resolve all issues arising from the State mandated
changes to certification,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing which is incorporated by this
reference, the Parties do hereby mutually agree as follows:

1. The Parties agree the amount of reimbursement for training courses for which Union
employees are eligible pursuant to Article 43.C.3, D and E shall be increased from $500.00 to
$750.00 for the duration of the Collective Bargaining Agreement effective retroactively to July
1, 2016.

2. The Parties agree that this increase in reimbursement for training courses fulfills the
duty to negotiate as described Article 42 of the CBA and is a complete resolution of all issues
arising from the State mandated changes to Paramedic Certification.

1
11
1
1
/1



Amendment to Article 43
Nov 15, 2016
Page 2 of 2

3. There are no other changes to the CBA other than those described herein.

Signed this 15™, day of November 2016 for the:

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE
FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 3895 PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS

Ian Satterfield, President Kitty K. Jung, Chair



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

FIRE
FROTRCTION DIBTRIEY

STAFF REPORT Fir;ii:;ife—
Board Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 Legal
Risk Mgt.
DATE:  November 7, 2016 AR
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Acceptance of a presentation from the United States Forest Service regarding prescribed
burns. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

Acceptance of presentation from the United States Forest Service regarding prescribed burns.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities

PREVIOUS ACTION

None

BACKGROUND

The Forest Service manages prescribed fire to benefit natural resources and reduce the risk of unwanted
wildfires in the future. Specialists write burn plans for prescribed fires — these plans identify the best
conditions under which a prescribed fire can be completed safely and with the best ecological results.
Burn plans consider temperature, humidity, winds, moisture of the vegetation, and Smoke dispersal.
Prescribed Fire Specialists compare conditions on the ground to those outlined in the burn plan before
deciding whether to burn on a given day.

This item will be presented by Steve Howell and Annabel Moni from the United States Forest Service
and will include a PowerPoint Presentation. Also attached for the Boards information is the Humboldt —
Toiyabe N.F. Carson R.D. Pile Burn Plan and an article authored by Retired Chief Mike Brown.
FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact directly related to this presentation.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends accepting into record the presentation from the United States Forest Service regarding
prescribed burns.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept into record a presentation from the United States Forest Service regarding prescribed
burns.”

AGENDA ITEM #6



US Forest Service &
Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest U*S |

R THENT OF AGRIS ol

Carson Ranger District =

Pile Burning

Projects
Washoe County, Nevada
Winter 2016-2017




Prescribed Fire in the Forest Service

» The Forest Service manages prescribed fire
the risk of unwanted wildfires in the future.

» Specialists write burn plans for
prescribed fires — these plans identify the
best conditions under which a prescribed
fire can be completed safely and with the
best ecological results.

» Burn plans consider:
* Temperature
* Humidity
* Winds
* Moisture of the vegetation
* Smoke dispersal

» Prescribed Fire Specialists compare
conditions on the ground to those
outlined in the burn plan before deciding
whether to burn on a given day.

http://www.fs.fed.us/fire/management/rx.html

to benefit natural resources and reduce

NWS Spot Forecast Monitor

MENICO

National Weather Service, Spot Request Page, November 3, 2016




The Benefits of Prescribed Fire

More prescribed fires mean fewer extreme wildfires.

» The right fire at the right place at Humboldt Toiyabe N.F.

Carson R.D.

the I'lght tlme - Pile Burn Plan

* Reduces hazardous fuels, protecting
communities from extreme fires.

* Minimizes the spread of insects and
disease.

* Removes unwanted species that
threaten species native to an
ecosystem.

Foel Model SH
* Provides forage for game. Accepane Prororon P
* Improves habitat for threatened and el T
endangered species. Tamparsturs OF @ @ | e
* Recycles nutrients back to the soil. e e
* Promotes growth of trees, wildflowers, et finaimmmn ] A o .
1-hr fued mois X >4 13 7-8
and other plants. e I T
106-hr feel moistare (%) >16 12-15 10-11

http://www.fs.fed.us/fire/management/rx.html



Different Types of Prescribed Kire

» Understory Burning: A > Pile Burning: A controlled
controlled burn of fuels below burn of fuels that have
the forest canopy, intended to previously been arranged into
remove hazardous fuels from the slash piles, intended to remove
forest environment. hazardous fuels from the forest
* Used to mimic naturally environment.
occurring wildfire. * Used to treat slash created
» Large areas of land treated by other forest practices.
at a time. e Small areas treated at a

time.




Other Methods of Fuels Reduction




Why and When the Forest Service
Uses Prescribed Fire

» Location/Access — There are project areas that are not accessible to large
equipment. Personnel on foot can easily access the area to burn slash piles.

» Appropriate Treatment Method — Specialists determine what type of
treatment is most appropriate based on vegetation and location. This may or
may not be prescribed fire.

» Cost — There are times prescribed burning is the most cost appropriate and
efficient way of treating the forest.

Prescribed fire is a single tool that may be used to manage hazardous fuels.
Specialists determine what the most appropriate tool may be based on many
factors. Other treatment options are evaluated for their effectiveness, cost, and
feasibility, and often prescribed fire is the least desirable tool to use. There are
times and projects where prescribed fire is the most efficient way of achieving
hazardous fuel reductions goals.



Forest Service Prescribed Fire

Requirements

» The FS adheres to the Interagency
Prescribed Fire Planning and
Implementation Procedures Guide
(PMS 484).

* Provides standards, guidance,
and unified direction to all
Federal agencies for prescribed
fire planning and
implementation.

» The PMS 484 acts as the minimum
requirements.

* Individual Federal agencies have
additional, more stringent
requirements: National
Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA), National Historical
Preservation Act (NHPA),
Endangered Species Act (ESA),
etc...

»  This product is available electronically from the NWCG
Web site at http://www.nweg.gov

Forest Service Fure and Avuanon cation Crpde Chapter 2. Parr 1

Prescribed Fire Burn Boss Type 2 (RXB2)
(Posinon Category: Wildland Fire)

310-1 REQUIRED TRAINING
Anoual Firehne Safery Refresher (RT-130)
Introducnon vo Witdland Fire Behavior Calcnlations (5-390)

FOREST SERVICE ADDITIONAL REQUIRED TRAINING
KIMS: An Ingroduction (IS-700)

Prescribed Fue Implemenmnon (RX-301)

Inroducoon to Fire Effects (F2X-310)

Prescribed Fure Burn Plan Prepanaton (RX-341)

Smoke Manasrerent Techmques (RX-310)

FOREST SERVICE CERTIFICATION
Prescribed Fae Workshop RT-300FS (Bienmal from dste of RYB2 cernficanon)

216-1 REQUIRED EXPERIENCE
Sansfacsory performuance a 3 Finng Bosws, Starle Rasource FIRE)

Sansfactory peformance 33 an Inodent Conunsnder Tvpe 40 T3)
-

Completon and Cemificazon of PT3 as a Prescnbed Fue Sum Bods Trpe 2 (RXBlona
preccribed fire wcadent

310-1 PHYSICAL FITNESS LEVEL
Modente

310-1 POSITIONS THAT MAINTAIN CURRENCY FOR RXB?
Prescribed Fire Bum Boss Type 1 (EX31)

Prescnbed Fue Manszer Type I (RXOMD

Prescribed Frre Manager Type X (RIDMY)

Soztens Operatonal Planser (SOPL)

RXB2 MAINTAINS CURRENCY FOR THESE 316-1 POSITIONS
Furefighter Type 1 FELD

Frrefighter Type 2 {EE12)

Inndanr Commander Type 4 ACTH

Prescribed Fire Burn Boss Type 1 RXBL)

Prescribed Fue Mamarer Type 2 RO

Any Single Rescurce Boss (ENGB. FELB. FIRB. HEQB. CRWB)
Szaten: Opemanonal Planner (SOPL)

Stmike Tearn Leader Crew (SICR)

Swike Team Leader Enmne (STEN)

Strike Team Leader Heavy Equpment (512Q)

Task Force Leader (TFLD)

43 Updaned 10 132015

» FS Prescribed

Fire personnel
undergo rigorous
field and
classroom
training to
achieve and
maintain
qualifications for
planning and
implementing
prescribed fire.



Carson R.D. Pile Burning in Washoe
County, Nevada

HTNF - Carson R.D.
Pile Burning - Winter 2016-2017

X Washoe County
\®r : 13 1% F = E A

Thomas Creek
.I

\

White's Creek gl

Legend

B Fie Bum Areas - 350 acres
E__' State Boundary

» Dog Valley Project Area:
* 126 acres of piles.

» Arrowhawk Project Area:
e 16 acres of piles in
Thomas Creek.

e 11 acres of piles in
White’s Creek.

» Bower’s Project Area:
e 58 acres of piles near
Davis Creek Park.
» Little Valley Project Area:

e 139 acres of piles.

> Total Acres of Piles in
Washoe County: 350



The Results of Forest Service Pile Burning:

Pre-treatment of hazardous fuels on
Forest Service land directly adjacent
to private property. Very dense
manzanita that’s 5+ feet tall, acting as
a ladder fuel to the higher tree canopy.

Same site, following hazardous fuels
reduction project implemented on
Forest Service lands. Manzanita was
cut with chainsaws, slash was hand
piled, and then piles were burned
during an appropriate burn window.






T _,
. g







Humboldt-Toiyabe N.F.
Carson R.D.
Pile Burn Plan

£ #

Pile Burn Upper ashoe Project 2010




PRESCRIBED FIRE PLAN

ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT(S) Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest Carson R.D.
PRESCRIBED FIRE NAME Carson Ranger District Pile Burn
PREPARED BY DATE
Steve Howell RXB3
TECHNICAL
REVIEW DATE
Carol Carlock Central Zone Fuels RXB1
FIRE MANAGEMENT OFFICER
REVIEW DATE
Mike Wilde DFMO
COMPLEXITY RATING oW
MINIMUM RXB REQUIREMENT RXB3
EANAME  North Washoe Valley Wildfire Risk Reduction
and Ecosystem Enhancement Project, Clear
Creek Fuels Reductio,, Markleevillage Fuels
Reduction, Scotts Lake Fuels Reduction, Atoma Carson R.D. Pile Burn
Green Fuelwood, Peavine Green Fuelwood, e
Arrowhawk Fuels Reduction, Dog Valley Fuels
Reduction, Jobs Peak Fuels Reduction, Genoa
Hazardous Fuels PROJECT NAME
APPROVED BY DATE
Genny Wilson District Ranger
ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT(S) HTNF Carson Ranger District

PRESCRIBED FIRE NAME

Carson R.D. Pile Burn




| Project Name: I Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

AGENCY ADMINISTRATOR IGNITION AUTHORIZATION
(Prescribed Fire Plan, Element 2A)

Instructions: The Agency Administrator Ignition Authorization must be completed before a prescribed fire can
be implemented. If ignition of the prescribed fire is not initiated prior to expiration date determined by the
agency administrator, a new authorization will be required.

Prior to signature the agency administrator should discuss the following key items with the fire management officer
(FMO) or burn boss. Attach any additional instructions or discussion documentation (optional) to this document.

Key Discussion Items

A. Has anything changed since the Prescribed Fire Plan was approved or revalidated?

Such as drought or other climate indicators of increased risk, insect activity, new
subdivisions/structures, smoke requirements, Complexity Analysis Rating.

B. Have compliance requirements and pre-burn considerations been completed?

Such as preparation work, NEPA mitigation requirements, cultural, threatened and endangered species,
smoke permits, state burn permits/authorizations.

C. Can all of the elements and conditions specified in Prescribed Fire Plan be met?

Such as weather, scheduling, smoke management conditions, suitable prescription window, correct
season, staffing and organization, safety considerations, etc.

D. Are processes in place to ensure all internal and external notifications and media releases will be
completed?

E. Have key agency staffs been fully briefed about the implementation of this prescribed fire?

F. Are there circumstances that could affect the successful implementation of the plan?

Such as preparedness level restrictions, resource availability, other prescribed fire or wildfire activity

G. Have you communicated your expectations to the Burn Boss and FMO regarding if and when you are
to be notified that contingency actions are being taken?

H. Have you communicated your expectations to the Burn Boss and FMO regarding decisions to declare
the prescribed fire a wildfire?

Implementation Recommended by:
FMO or Prescribed Fire Burn Boss Signature: Date:

1 am authorizing ignition of this prescribed fire between the dates of and . Itis my

expectation that the project will be implemented within this time frame and as discussed and documented and
attached to this plan. If the conditions we discussed change during this time frame, it is my expectation you will
brief me on the circumstances and an updated authorization will be negotiated if necessary.

Additional Instructions or Discussion Documentation attached (Optional): Yes (1 Nol[J

Ignition Authorized by:
Agency Administrator Signature and Title: Date:




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

PRESCRIBED FIRE GO/NO-GO CHECKLIST

(Prescribed Fire Plan, Element 2B)

Project Name:

Unit Name:

* Preliminary Questions

Circle YES or NO

A. Have conditions in or adjacent to the ignition unit changed, (for example: drought
conditions or fuel loadings), which were not considered in the prescription
development?

If NO proceed with the Go/NO-GO Checklist below, if YES go to item B.

YES NO

B. Has the prescribed fire plan been reviewed and an amendment been approved; or
has it been determined that no amendment is necessary?
If YES, proceed with checklist below.
If NO, STOP: Implementation is not allowed. An amendment is needed.

YES NO

GO/NO-GO Checklist

Circle YES or NO

safety hazards, escape routes, and safety zones?

* Have ALL permits and clearances been obtained? YES NO
* Have ALL the required notifications been made? YES NO
* Have ALL the pre-burn considerations and preparation work identified in the YES NO
prescribed fire plan been completed or addressed and checked?
* Have ALL required current and projected fire weather forecast been obtained and are
YES NO
they favorable?
* Are ALL prescription parameters met? YES NO
* Are ALL smoke management specifications met? YES NO
* Are ALL planned operations personnel and equipment on-site, available and YES NO
operational?
* Has the availability of contingency resources applicable to today’s implementation YES NO
been checked and are they available?
* Have ALL personnel been briefed on the project objectives, their assignment, YES NO

the test fire: Implementation is not allowed.

If all the questions were answered “YES” proceed with a test fire. Document the current
conditions, location and results. If any questions were answered “NO”, DO NOT proceed with

After evaluating the test fire, in your judgment can the prescribed fire be carried out according to
the prescribed fire plan and will it meet the planned objective? Circle: YES or NO

* [tems required if checklist is modified *

Burn Boss Signature: Date:




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name: | Pile Burn

ELEMENT 3 - COMPLEXITY ANALYSIS SUMMARY

ELEMENT RISK POTENTIAL | TECHNICAL
CONSEQUENCE | DIFFICULTY
1. Potential for escape L M L
2. The number and L L L
dependence of activities
3. Off-site Values L L M
4. On-Site Values L L L
5. Fire Behavior L M L
6. Management L L L
organization
7. Public and political M M L
interest
8. Fire Treatment L M L
objectives
9. Constraints L L L
10. Safety L L L
11. Ignition procedures/ L L L
methods
12. Interagency L L L
coordination
13. Project logistics L L L
14. Smoke management L M L
COMPLEXITY RATING SUMMARY
OVERALL RATING
RISK Low
POTENTIAL CONSEQUENCES Low
TECHNICAL DIFFICULTY Low
SUMMARY COMPLEXITY DETERMINATION Low
Rationale

This burn plan encompasses all of the Carson R.D. Prior to burning, the burn plan will
address the units to be burned for that year and project sites and will need to be updated
as new burn areas are added. The following areas will need to be updated with project
site change, signature page with a new EA name, elements 4,6,7,9,11,12,13,17,19, the
notification page, maps, behave runs, JHA, and complexity analysis. The burn will take
place once prescription measures have been met. Smoke duration and amount of impact
should be low due to conditions of the fuel in the piles and atmospheric conditions. Prior
to the end of shift each pile will be confined to its pile perimeter.




ELEMENT 4 - DESCRIPTION OF PRESCRIBED FIRE AREA

Area physical description will be filled in prior to burning in any unit by the burn boss prior to

A. Physical Description

ignition.

Legal description: R S
R S
Latitude Longitude
NEPA Project Acres County -
Primary Unit Acres Drainage

Low elevation Average aspect

High elevation Average slope

Project Boundary

Bowers: The project area encompasses approximately 5,600 acres which ranges in elevation from 5400 to
7000 feet. The total burn units to be burned are approximately 58 acres in size.

Clear Creek: The project area encompasses approximately 12,190 acres which ranges in elevation from 5400
to 7000 feet. The total burn units to be burned are approximately 95 acres in size.

Scotts Lake Fuels Reduction: The project area encompasses approximately 82 acres which ranges in elevation
from 7100 to 8000 feet. The total burn units to be burned are approximately 82 acres in size.

Dog Valley: The project area encompasses approximately 16,000 acres which ranges in elevation from 5200 to
7000 feet. The total burn unit to be burned is approximately 126 acres in size.

Arrowhawk: The project area encompasses approximately 7,500 acres which ranges in elevation from 5900 to
7200 feet. The total burn units to be burned is approximately 27 acres in size

Little Valley: The project area encompasses approximately 1,660 acres which ranges in elevation from 6400 to
7000 feet. The total burn units to be burned is approximately 162 acres in size

Jobs Peak: The project area encompasses approximately 500 acres which ranges in elevation from 5100 to
5500 feet. The total burn units to be burned is approximately 2 acres in size

Manzanita: The project area encompasses approximately 700 acres which ranges in elevations from 5000 to
6500 feet. The total burn units to be burned is approximately 53 acres in size.

Genoa: The project area encompasses approximately 10,200 acres which ranges in elevation from 5200 to
8100 feet. The total burn units to be burned is approximately 40 acres in size

An amendment to the burn plan is not required for minor changes in burn unit boundaries to facilitate holding
and/or ignition, as long as the area in question has been analyzed in the NEPA document, requires no change
in holding or ignition resources and is within the project boundaries. Changes to project area boundaries
resulting in either an increase or decrease in area requires an amendment to the burn plan.

Attached maps show project boundaries and locations
Total acres to be burned are approximately 645 acres.




f Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

B. Vegetation/Fuels Description

On-Site Fuels Data Adjacent Fuels Data
FBPS Fuel Model(s) b SH2 FBPS Fuel Model(s) Tl SH2
(161) (142) (161) | (142)
NFDRS Fuel Model(s) H T NFDRS Fuel Model(s) H T
Fire Regime(s) 1 1 Fire Regime(s) 1 1
Fire Condition Class(es) 2 2 Fire Condition Class(es) 2 2
1 hour tIf 20 1.35 General Description of Adjacent Fuels
10 hour tIf 90 2.40 | Adjacent fuels are relatively consistent with fuels
o0 100 hour tif 15 0.75 | inside the primary burn unit.
5 1000 hour fIf N/A 0
g Litter depth 60 1.0
E Duff depth 0 0
o Live woody .90 3.85
Live herbaceous 20 50
Total fuel loading 4.3 9.85
Comments

Two fuel models TU1 (161) and SH2 (142) represent the burn units. The Bumn Boss will need to
identify the fuel type prior to the burn and follow the prescription for TU1 or SH2. Fuels in the adjacent
areas are consistent with fuel in the primary burn unit. Fuel model TU1 (161) and SH2 (142) was
referenced from Standard Fire Behavior Fuel Models: A Comprehensive Set For Use With Rothermel’s
Surface Fire Spread Model. The TU1 fuel model was chosen because it most represented the burn units
in the timbered areas, the primary carrier of fire in TU1 (161) is low load of grass and slash or shrub
with litter. SH2 fuel model was chosen for the brush units with little to no timber and best represents
those burn units without timber, the primary carrier of fire in SH2 (142) is woody shrubs and shrub

litter.

C. Description of Unique Features

Archeological sites have been identified and measures have been taken to eliminate impact on
them. These include lining, changing unit boundary locations, and changing firing patterns.
These sites will be managed in compliance with the National Historic Preservation Act.

Goshawk nesting sites identified and known will be excluded from burn units.




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

ELEMENT 5 - GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

A. Goals: Consumption of all hand piles in the project area by 80% or greater.

B. Objectives:

Resource Objectives Prescribed Fire Objectives

Reduce Hazardous fuels in Reduce fuels by 80%.
Wildland Urban Interface
working within the
Threat/Defense zone.

Reducing fuel loading within
green fuelwood areas.

Maintain 10% or less overstory 80% or more piles burned within the
tree mortality where piles unit
might be next to trees

Limit scorch height on pines. Limit scorch height on pines to 20 feet
and complete scorching of the bole of the
trees to less than 70% of the diameter.

Specific
Measurable
Objectives Are S.M.A.R.T. Attainable
Reasonable,
Time Related

Tolerable deviation from objectives:

Consumption can vary from between 90 and 100% of burnable material within
the piles

No more than 10% of the original pile should be left on site




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn

ELEMENT 6 — FUNDING

Funding Source(s)

Phase Fuels Wildlife Range Recreation | Timber Other Subtotal
e 50,000 | 20,000 25,000 | 10,000 | 105,000
Planning
Clearances
Burn Plan
Preparation
Site

. 15,000 60,000 75,000
Preparation
Ignition &
Holding 25,000 25,000
Mop-up
& Patrol 5,000 5,000
Subtotal 95,000 20,000 25,000 70,000 | 210,000
Grand Total 210,000

The cost for planning is for a larger area done under an EA and not just for the burn sites.




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn
ELEMENT 7 - PRESCRIPTION
Fuel Model TU1
o i l Acceptable Prescription Range Outside
. vironmenta i
Prescription Low Fire D;,si;r:d High Fire area at
Intensity . Intensity critical
Intensity holding
Temperature (°F) 25-69 25-69 25-69 point
- s ity (0 >45%% 25%-44%* 15%-24%%*

Relative humidity (%) 0 o 0 0 0 minimum
Mid-flame wind speed <5.5 5.6-8.5 8.6-12 acceptable
Wind direction (azimuth?) Any Any Any moisture
1-hr fuel moisture (%) >11 9-10 7-8 <7
10-hr fuel moisture (%) >12 10-11 8-9 <8
100-hr fucl moisturc (%) >14 12-13 10 11 <10
1000-hr fuel moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Live fuel moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Duff moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Soil moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A

>Greater Than <Less Then
Additional Information

A 10 hour fuel stick will be placed 2 weeks prior and kept on the burn unit site and will be used as a
method for determining if the unit is within prescription, 1 hour moistures can be taken by estimate in
the field from measuring dry bulb temperature and relative humidity and referring to the Interagency
Fire Use Module Field Guide 2005 page 50 or the Fire Line Handbook Appendix B for moisture
tables. 10 hour fuels may be measured and used with the rule of thumb for calculating 1 hour fine
dead fuels by subtracting 1% from 10 hour fuel moisture. 100 hour fuel moistures can also be
calculated by adding 2 from the 10 hour fuels. (Advanced Wildland Fire Behavior Calculations S-490
Jan. 1993 NFES 2285 page 49). Midlfame wind speeds can be converted to 20 foot winds using the
adjustment factor appropriate to the site by dividing the midflame wind by the adjustment factor of
0.3 for partially sheltered fuels for the site (Fireline Handbook Appendix B).

Behave Plus runs and the Fine Dead Fuel Moisture tables do not take into account moisture that is
present within the burn area for pile burning. The prescription is for an escape from a burn pile. Fuels
outside the pile will have higher live woody moisture because of burning in the winter and early
spring months.

When snow is covering the burn unit and or measurable precipitation events are happening when mid
flame wind speed exceeds 12 mph line officer approval is needed to continue to burn with higher
winds.

*Relative humidity or 10 hour fuel moistures will be used only in dry ground conditions
as a factor in the prescription. When snow and or rain are present RH and 10 hour
fuels moistures will not be a factor in an escape. (RH and Fuel Moistures have read
below prescription levels in the past when snow has been present in freezing conditions.
Experience shows these readings will not play a factor into an escape when conditions
are such with snow and rain present)

10



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

ELEMENT 7 - PRESCRIPTION

| Unit Name:

Pile Burn

Acceptable Fire Behavior Range Outside
B. Fire Behavior area at
Prescription critical
Low Fire | Desired Fire | High Fire holding
Intensity Intensity Intensity points
Fuel Model(s) TU1(161) TU1(161) TU1(161) TU1(161)
Rate of Spread (chains/hour) 0-6 6.1-10 10.1-20.7 >20.7
Flame Length (in feet) 0-0.5 0-4 4.1-6 >6.1
Scorch Height (in feet) 20 20 20
Probability of Ignition (%) N/A N/A 70
Spotting Distance (in miles) 0 0.1 0.1 >0.1

Prescription is defined as the measurable criteria that define a range of conditions during which
a prescribed fire may be ignited and held as a prescribed fire. The plan prescription will
describe a range of low to high limits for the environmental (weather, topography, fuels, etc.)
and fire behavior (flame lengths, rate of spread, spotting distance, etc.) parameters required to
meet Prescribed Fire Plan objectives while meeting smoke management and control objectives.
Parameters are quantitative variables expressed as a range that result in acceptable fire
behavior and smoke management.

>Greater Than

<Less Then

Attach BehavePlus Worksheets

Fire Behavior Narrative

See attached Behave Plus runs. Behave Plus was used to calculate runs.

If site conditions do not match fuel model or closely represent TU1 (161) a new burn plan or
amendment must take place to the existing burn plan.

The piles will experience high heat intensities within the pile. Some larger piles may experience high
flame lengths but will be confined to the pile. The piles will have little to no fire spread outside of the
perimeter of the pile.

Spotting distance is from a burning pile as shown in Behave runs. Spotting distance may not exceed
the contingency area.

Probability of Ignition may not exceed 70 percent in dry conditions. 70 percent was used from local
knowledge and experience in the area to be burned. Behave Plus does not factor in local conditions
such as green up and recent precipitation and or snow within the burn area. Resources on scene will
be sufficient to handle any problems that may arise from a burning ember outside of the primary burn
unit.

11



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

Fuel Model SH2
C i . Acceptable Prescription Range Outside
. Environmental . Desired . . area at
Prescription Low Fire Fire High Fire itical
Intensity . Intensity critica
Intensity holding
Temperature (°F) 0-69 0-69 0-69 point
- s Jitv (0 >T74%* 25-74%* 15-24%*
Relative humidity (%) 0 o 0 it
Mid-flame wind speed 0-12 0-12 10-12 acceptable
Wind direction (azimuth?) Any Any Any moisture
1-hr fuel moisture (%) >14 9-13 7-8 <7
10-hr fuel moisture (%) >15% 10-14* 8-9% <8*
100-hr fuel moisture (%) >16 12-15 10-11 <10
1000-hr fuel moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Live fuel moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Duff moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Soil moisture (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A

>Greater Than
<Less Then
Additional Information

A 10 hour fuel stick will be placed 2 weeks prior and kept on the burn unit site and will be used as a
method for determining if the unit is within prescription, 1 hour moistures can be taken by estimate in
the field from measuring dry bulb temperature and relative humidity and referring to the Interagency
Fire Use Module Field Guide 2005 page 50 or the Fire Line Handbook Appendix B for moisture
tables. 10 hour fuels may be measured and used with the rule of thumb for calculating 1 hour fine
dead fuels by subtracting 1% from 10 hour fuel moisture. 100 hour fuel moistures can also be
calculated by adding 2 from the 10 hour fuels. (Advanced Wildland Fire Behavior Calculations S-490
Jan. 1993 NFES 2285 page 49). Midlfame wind speeds can be converted to 20 foot winds using the
adjustment factor appropriate to the site by dividing the midflame wind by the adjustment factor of
0.3 for partially sheltered fuels for the site (Fireline Handbook Appendix B).

Behave Plus runs and the Fine Dead Fuel Moisture tables do not take into account moisture that is
present within the burn area for pile burning. The prescription is for an escape from a burn pile. Fuels
outside the pile will have higher live woody moisture because of burning in the winter and early
spring months.

When snow is covering the burn unit and or measurable precipitation events are happening when mid
flame wind speed exceeds 12 mph line officer approval is needed to continue to burn with higher
winds.

*Relative humidity or 10 hour fuel moistures will be used only in dry ground conditions
as a factor in the prescription. When snow and or rain are present RH and 10 hour
fuels moistures will not be a factor in an escape. (RH and Fuel Moistures have read
below prescription levels in the past when snow has been present in freezing conditions.
Experience shows these readings will not play a factor into an escape when conditions
are such with snow and rain present)

12




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn

Acceptable Fire Behavior Range Outside
D. Fire Behavior area at
Prescription critical
Low Fire | Desired Fire | High Fire holding
Intensity Intensity Intensity points
Fuel Model(s) SH2(142) SH2(142) SH2(142) SH2(142)
Rate of Spread (chains/hour) 0-0.5 0.6-6.5 6.6 >6.6
Flame Length (in feet) 0-0.5 0.6-2.5 2.6 >2.6

Scorch Height (in feet) N/A N/A N/A
Probability of Ignition (%) N/A N/A 70 >70
Spotting Distance (in miles) N/A N/A N/A N/A

Prescription is defined as the measurable criteria that define a range of conditions during which
a prescribed fire may be ignited and held as a prescribed fire. The plan prescription will
describe a range of low to high limits for the environmental (weather, topography, fuels, etc.)
and fire behavior (flame lengths, rate of spread, spotting distance, etc.) parameters required to
meet Prescribed Fire Plan objectives while meeting smoke management and control objectives.
Parameters are quantitative variables expressed as a range that result in acceptable fire
behavior and smoke management.

>Greater Than

<Less Then

Attach Behave Plus Worksheets

Fire Behavior Narrative

See attached Behave Plus runs. Behave Plus was used to calculate runs.

If site conditions do not match fuel model or closely represent SH2 (142) a new burn plan or
amendment must take place to the existing burn plan.

The piles will experience high heat intensities within the pile. Some larger piles may experience high
flame lengths but will be confined to the pile. The piles will have little to no fire spread outside of the
perimeter of the pile.

Probability of Ignition may not exceed 70 percent in dry conditions. 70 percent was used from local
knowledge and experience in the area to be burned. Behave Plus does not factor in local conditions
such as green up and recent precipitation and or snow within the burn area. Resources on scene will
be sufficient to handle any problems that may arise from a burning ember outside of the primary burn
unit.

13



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn

ELEMENT 8 - SCHEDULING

A. Ignition Time Frames/Season(s) Fall,Winter,Spring

B. Projected Duration October 1*-May 30th

C. Constraints

The burn boss must note the 6-10 day forecast to determine if a warming trend is forecasted.
The National Weather Service Reno office is the preferred weather office for spot weather
forecasts. This will be included in the project folder. The project must fall within
fall/winter/spring months.

ELEMENT 9 - PRE-BURN CONSIDERATIONS AND WEATHER

A. Considerations

1. On Site

Prior to implementing the burn a smoke permit must be obtained from the Air Quality District the burn
is taking place in, and a temporary right of way permit from NDOT to place signs along Nevada
Highways. Prescribed fire burn signs will be placed along any impacted highways daily before
ignition. A ten hour fuel stick will be placed in or near the burn units two weeks prior to burning.
Weather observations will be taken on site and recorded prior to, during and after ignition has taken
place. The fuels specialist and the burn boss will be responsible to ensure pre burn considerations are
in place.

2. Off Site

Prior to implementing the prescribed fire, Minden Dispatch will be given a complete copy of the
Prescribed Fire Plan. Notifications will be made prior to burning as listed in the notification sheet.

14



Project Name: Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Uni¢t Name: Pile Burn

B. Method and Frequency for Obtaining Weather and Smoke Management Forecast(s)

No more than 10 miles from the nearest RAWS in each

Proximity to nearest RAWS
unit

Need for on-site RAWS | Yes [ X |No

Additional Information

A Spot Weather Forecast will be required on day of burn prior to ignition.

A Spot Weather Forecast from the National Weather Service is required prior to ignition, for
each day active ignition is occurring on the burn.

Air quality will be called prior to ignition to check for burn/no burn days

Weather observations will be taken daily and recorded on appendix G and be put into the working file
for records.

Local weather projected beyond the ignition operation and the need for additional spot weather
forecasts should be taken into account in order to minimize the risk of a later escape.

C. Notifications

The District Fuels Specialist or the District Ranger will take the lead in talking to the TV and
newspaper media — include a lead quote in the news release. The lead PAO for this project will be the
District Fuels Specialist. If the Fuels Specialist is unavailable the District FMO or the District Ranger
may step in as the PAO for the project.

Nearby residents will be notified at least 1 week prior to burning.
Table below represents the contacts to be made and by whom.,

Depending on project location not all of the contacts will be needed for a given day. (example:
Burning in Douglas County we will not need to make contact with Reno Fire Department).

15



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name; Pile Burn
Phone
* Number o ere o
Who When Responsibility | Date | Initial
and/or e-
mail
i Dist Fuels Spec
Local Residents B, A i
Dist FIO
Dist Fuels Spec
Local radio station B(1wk) . &
Dist FIO
] Dist Fuels Spec
TV stations B(2wks) .
Dist FIO
Dist Fuels Spec
Newspapers B(1wk) .
Dist FIO
Reno City Fire Departiment
Truckee Meadows Protection District
Carson Fire D Minden
East Fork Fire Protection
Lake Valley Fire(Scotts Lake Pile Burn)
Alpine County
Air Quality Management B, Db, A .
Divisions (Submit permit Dist Fuels Spec
. at least 2 weeks
Dependent on air district in advance)
Minden Dispatch B,D,A 883-5995 Burn Boss
Markleeville Residents Email B Dist. Fuels Spec
County Sheriff’s D Minden
Parks and Rec Director B Director District Ranger
County Managers B Manager District Ranger
Nevada Division of Forestry D FMO Minden
Nevada Department of
Transportation (Nevada Burns) D Minden
Cal Trans (California Burns)
Nevada Division of Dist Fuels
Environmental Quality B(5day), A 775-687-9358 Specialist
BLM — Carson City Field Office
LTBMU B Minden
Camino Dispatch
775-673-8105
. . 775-673-8108
Eiﬁ?ﬁ:‘lx‘:}?:egifrzz?ﬁre B(5da), D, A after 4:00pm, or | Burn Boss
SELREs fax 775-673-
8110
352-1223 .
Fire Staff, District FMO B 884-8145 Dist Fuels Spec
Carson RD Front Desk B 882-2766 Dist Fuels Spec
Supervisor’s Office
Front Desk B 355-3501 Dist Fuels Spec
When to Notify Before (B): The

day prior to burn
day.

16




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

Day of (D): Prior
to ignition on burmn
day.

After (A): After
bum is completed

ELEMENT 10 - BRIEFING
Operational Briefing (Responsibility — Prescribed Fire Burn Boss)

a Introduction of Burn Organization

o Make Crew and Equipment Assignments
Provide Maps
Review Burn Objectives and Constraints

Review Spot Weather Forecast

O 00O

Discuss Weather Data Collection Procedures

o Make Weather Observer Assignment and Set Collection Schedule
Review Predicted Fire Behavior
Review Burn Prescription and Critical Weather that Will Terminate Burn
Review Ignition Plan and Possible Problems
Review Aerial Ignition Plan and appropriate safety procedures (if applicable)

Review Holding Plan and Possible Problems

I N W W W

Review Contingency and Wildfire Conversion Plan

o Identify High Value and Areas of Special Concern

o Identify Mitigation Measures, Procedures, Project Boundary, Etc.
a Review Safety Plan, Risk Assessment/JHA and Medical Evacuation Plan

o Identify On-Site Personnel with Medical and Helitack Qualifications

O

Review LCES and Identify Lookout Assignments

O

Discuss Communication Plan

Q Wildfire Conversion

Crew Briefing (Responsibility - Firing Specialist and Holding Specialist Functions)

u Make Crew Assignments, Record Names, and Review Chain of Command
Make Equipment Assignments and Physically Test Equipment Prior to Ignition
Assign Radio Frequencies and Physically Test All Radios Prior to Ignition
Review Contingency Plan, Wildfire Conversion, Procedures, and Mitigation
Review Everyone's Personal Protective Equipment

Discuss Probable Starting and Ending Times

O 0000 O

Assure Everyone Knows Position, Responsibility, and Procedures

17



Project Name:

| Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name:

Pile Burn

SIGNED

Prescribed Fire Burn Boss

ELEMENT 11 - ORGANIZATION AND EQUIPMENT
Fuel Model TU1

Minimum Workforce & Equipment
Needed to Conduct Burn

A. Positions

Low Desired High
Position ICS Code or Total Line Total Line Total Line
Unit of Amount | Building | Amount | Buildin | Amount | Building
Measure Rate o Rate Rate
Prescribed Fire Burn Boss RXB3 | A % o :
Engine Boss ENGB. e
Ignition Crew/Holding FFT2 3 5 10 7 14
Crew
B. Equipment
Engine T.ype 3,4,6,(3 0 0 1 15
person minimum)
C. Supplies
Drip Troches Ea
Hand Tools Ea

Total Line Production Rate

Calculations were taken from the Fireline Handbook Appendix A base on fuel model 8 whlchlosely
represents TU1 (161). Calculation was based on a 3 person crew minimum without an engine except for

high prescription days where an engine with a three person crew is needed.

Firing crew will become holding crew when ignition operations are completed therefore they hold
collateral duties. The Burn Boss also holds collateral duties such as firing and holding. On high days the
ignition and holding crews will have at least one person qualified at the Engine Boss level for engine
staffing purposes for contingency plans. Line production rates from personnel are not duplicated for

equipment.

18



Project Name:

ELEMENT 11 - ORGANIZATION AND EQUIPMENT
Fuel Model SH2

Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name:

Pile Burn

Minimum Workforce & Equipment
Needed to Conduct Burn

B. Positions

Low Desired High
Position ICS Code or Total Line Total Line Total Line
Unit of Amount | Building | Amount | Buildin | Amount | Building

Measure Rate 2 Rate _ Re
Prescribed Fire Burn Boss RXB3 1 B : i 7 s
Engine Boss ENGB. 0
Ignition Crew/Holding FFT2 3 9 5 15 7 21
Crew
B. Equipment
Engine Type3,4,6 (3 0 0 1 15
person minimum)
C. Supplies
Drip Troches Ea 2
Hand Tools Ea 3

Total Line Production Rate

Calculations were taken from the Fireline Handbook Appendix A based on fuel model 2 which closely
represents SH2 (142). Calculation was based on a 3 person crew minimum without an engine except for

high prescription days where an engine with a three person crew is needed.

Firing crew will become holding crew when ignition operations are completed therefore they hold
collateral duties. The Burn Boss also holds collateral duties such as firing and holding. On high days the
ignition and holding crews will have at least one person qualified at the Engine Boss level for engine
staffing purposes for contingency plans. Line production rates from personnel are not duplicated for

equipment.

19



[ Project .‘h'aLne_? Carson R.D. Pile Blll"il: Unit Name: Pile Burn

Organization Chart

Agancy Admiiitratar
District Hibrger

Additional resources may be assigned to the project without amending the burn plan if the addition of
these resources does not change the complexity of the burn or require additional supervisory positions.
These changes must be documented in the daily briefing. Reduction in resource capabilities identified
as required in the plan requires an amendment. This is an example organization chart, locally
developed organizational chart can be used in place of this chart. Add boxes as needed for additional
personnel assigned for each operational period. Organization chart may be completed on the day of the
burn and must be completed for each operational period. If a position is not needed place N/A in the
space do not leave blank. A separate organization chart designed locally will be filled out daily and
placed within the working project file.

20



Ll’rojcct Name: | Ca_t"son R.D. Pile Burn

A. Radio Frequencies

| Unit Name:

Pile Burn

ELEMENT 12 - COMMUNICATION

Channel Function Frequency ‘l;,?ggl Assignment Remarks
COMMAND

RX: 170.475 Narrow Comm. to H = Hand held
H-1 TX; 169.875 Minden M = Mobile
M-1 Tone: | 1 (Slide)

2(Peavine)

RX: 170.475 Narrow Comm. to H = Hand held
H-1 : 169.875 Minden M = Mobile
M-1 Tone: | 4 (Rawe)

3 (Hawkin)

TACTICAL
He1 RX: 169.875 Narrow Burning H = Hand held
M-1 X: 169.875 Operations M = Mobile

RX:

TX:

RX:

TX:
AIR OPERATIONS

RX:

TX:

RX:

TX:
OTHER

RX:

TX:

RX:

TX:
REMARKS

21




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn
B. Telephone Numbers
Contact Office Phone Number Cell Phone Number

HTNF - Carson District
Office

775-882-2766

HTNF - Supervisor’s
Office

775-355-5300

Minden Dispatch

775-883-5995

Bill Dunkelberger, Forest
Supervisor

775-355-5310

Russel Bird, Forest FMO 775-355-5315 775-240-9005
Vacant, Forest AFMO 775-352-1222 775-313-6324
Line Officer 775-884-8100 775-721-1259

Steve Howell, District Fuels
Specialist/ RXM2

775-884-8114

775-721-2064

Mike Wilde, District FMO

775-884-8145

775-721-0682

22




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

ELEMENT 13 - PUBLIC AND PERSONNEL SAFETY AND MEDICAL

A. Safety Hazards

Firefighter

All personnel who are within the active burn area are required to wear personal protective equipment.
All burn personnel will be appropriately red carded and qualified for the position they are filling.
Smoke exposure may be heavy at times due to heavy fuels in piles. JHA’s for the project will be
followed and signed by all personnel on the project.

Public

The project area will be signed with notices of the prescribed fire to alert the public of planned
prescribed fire. Non-red carded individuals will be escorted by a qualified prescribed fire employee
assigned to the project. Media will be directed to the District Fuels Specialist, the District Fire
Information Officer or the District Ranger.

B. Measures Taken to Reduce the Hazards

Prescribed burn signs will be placed prior to daily ignition along any possible impacted highways.
Prescribed burn signs will also be placed near the burn alerting public in the area. The project area will
be signed with prescribed burn notices prior to the project implementation. Tailgate safety sessions
will be conducted prior to operations and JHA’s will be reviewed and signed by all personnel assigned
to the project.

C. Emergency Medical Procedures

In the event of serious accidents or injuries, the Burn Boss shall be notified immediatety. Individuals
with medical qualifications (i.e. First Responder, EMT, and Paramedic) and helitack qualified should
be identified at the pre-burn briefing. The Burn Boss or assigned person will initiate on-site response
(if not already in progress) and coordinate additional response needs.

In the event of a serious injury the incident will be treated as an incident within an incident. If
injury is serious then ignition will stop and holding will take place until the injury is taken care
of. The Burn Boss may assign a qualified person to take over the burn while the injury
incident is being handled. In the event of a serious injury the burn boss will notify Minden
Dispatch and the duty officer. The Duty Officer and or Minden Dispatch will notify the line
officer following the district safety plan.

23



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name:

D. Emergency Evacuation Methods

FIELD SITE

Pile Burn

MEDICAL EMERGENCY AND EVACUATION PLAN

Project Name: Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Work Site Location (include legal description) (Fill in on day of activity) :

To prepare for an emergency which requires first aid, and/or immediate evacuation of
personnel due to serious illness or injury, the following information should be

predetermined, and available to all crew members:

DESIGNATED FIRST AID PROVIDER(S):

(At least one person on each crew should be designated to provide first aid)

COMMUNICATION PROCEDURES TO FOLLOW IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY:

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

RADIO CHANNEL: 1 (HTF local or tones 1,2.3 or 4)

5995

HOME BASE: Carson Ranger District

HOME BASE EMERGENCY COORDINATOR: Line Officer

EMERGENCY SERVICES:

PHONE NUMBER: 911

PHONE NUMBER: Dispatch 775-883-

HOSPITALS:
PHONE NUMBER:

(Air evacuation should be obtained through the SO dispatcher, if needed.)

EMERGENCY EVACUATION TRAVEL ROUTES: Attach map with roads for evacuation to main highway to

above hospital (and helispots, if appropriate) highlighted.

CREW MEMBERS SHOULD PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING WHEN CALLING FOR ASSISTANCE:

nature of injury or accident (do not broadcast victim(s) name(s);
type of assistance needed;

current information about weather and travel hazards/obstacles;

work;

24

number, and (for air transport) estimated weight, of persons to be transported;
location of injured, using landmarks identifiable on ground and/or map;

(Crew should remain in contact with home unit until evacuation team arrives, if possible.)
Copies of this plan should be provided to crew leader(s) and Home Base Coordinator(s), prior to beginning



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

E. Emergency Facilities

'_ Unit Name:

Pile Burn

EMERGENCY TRANSPORTATION

PARAMEDICS
NAME TELEPHONE LOCATION
YES NO
CARE FLIGHT REMSA 911 RENQO, NV, Carson City NV X
UC DAVIS 916-734- Sacramento, Ca. X
( BURN CENTER) 2011
Sacramento
California
Sites will be
identified on the
ground prior to
burning. Because
this is a district
HELISPOT CLOSEST TO wide plan sites
PROJECT LAT, will change on a LONG.
day to day basis.
Lat and Longs will
be noted on the
medical plan for
that days burning.
HOSPITALS
TRAVEL TIME
ADDRESS AND LATITUDE { MIN) HELIPAD ||| BURN CENTER
NAME AND LONGITUDE FEONE
AIR GROUND YES NO YES NO
R 235 W. SIXTH ST. 10
ST. MARY’S Reno, Nv. MIN. “HR. | 770-3000 | X X
1155 MILL ST. 10
RENOWN RENO NV MIN. 2HR. | 982-4100 | X X
SOUTH 10101 DOUBLE R 10
MEADOWS MED. | BLVD. MIN Y2 HR. | 982-7000 X X
CENTER Reno, Nv.
UC DAVIS 916-734-2011 1 916-734-
( BURN Sacramento California | HR | 4 HR, 2011 X X
CENTER)
University
Medical Center [ ! oHR. | 702:383- | X
Las Vegas Nevada HR 2000
(Burn Center)
Carson Tahoe 1600 Medical Parkway 10 ;
Hhsoi Carson City, NV MIN 2 HR. | 445-8000 | X X
Carson Valley 1107 US Highway 395 10 )
Medical Center N, Gardnerville, NV MIN, | 72 HR. | 782-1500 | X i

25




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

ELEMENT 14 - TEST FIRE
A. Test Fire Provisions and Planned Location

Provisions for a test fire are required and results must be recorded. The test fire must be
ignited in a representative location and in an area that can be easily controlled. The purpose of
the test fire is to verify that the prescribed fire behavior characteristics will meet management
objectives and to verify predicted smoke dispersion. In many applications, analysis of the
initial ignitions may provide adequate test fire results. On multiple-day projects, evaluation of
current active fire behavior, in lieu of a test fire, may provide a comparative basis for
continuing and must be documented. If in doubt however, initiate a separate test fire and
evaluate results. A test fire will consist of a single pile in a representative spot in the burn unit
for that day’s ignition. The pile will be ignited and monitored for smoke dispersion and
effectiveness of the pile being consumed. Minden Dispatch must be notified of a test fire and
then notified if ignition will continue.

B. Test Fire Documentation

Location:

Date and Time:

Weather/Fuels Conditions

Cloud Cover %

Temperature

Relative Humidity

Fine Dead Fuel Moisture

Wind Speed

Fuels

Test Fire Results

Flame Length

Rate of Spread

Smoke Dispersion

Other

The test fire meets the prescription parameters | Yes | | No

SIGNED DATE

Prescribed Fire Burn Boss

26



Project Name: Carson R.D, Pile Burn = Unit Name: | Pile Burn

ELEMENT 15 - IGNITION PLAN

A. Firing Methods & Devices

The means by which a fire is ignited can be Air Curtain Burner, hand held drip torches, fussees, fire-
gel, propane torches, back pack torches, matches.

B. Ignition Techniques

This project consists of all pile burning and piles will be hand ignited appropriately according to fuels
and weather conditions.

C. Patterns & Sequences

This project consists of all pile burning; the sequence and pattern of ignition will be determined by the
Burn Boss based on weather and fuel conditions.

D. Ignition Staffing

Ignition staffing will follow Element 11 organization and staffing depending on the prescription.
Igniters will hold collateral duties such as holding.

27




Project Name: = Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

ELEMENT 16 - HOLDING PLAN

A. General Procedures for Holding

Each individual lighter will be responsible for holding and monitoring piles within the project area that
have been ignited. The holding crew will consist of the ignition crew after ignition is completed for the
day.

B. Critical Holding Points and Actions
Piles located within the project area will be monitored appropriately and each pile will be confined (o
its perimeter before the end of shift.

C. Minimum Organization or Capabilities Needed

Minimum capabilities needed for holding are identified under Element 11 - Organization and
Equipment. On burn day and subsequent days of the prescribed fire, a mix of the number and kinds of
hand crews and engines may be modified as long as stated production capabilities are not
compromised.

As the prescribed fire progresses from ignition to holding to mop up and patrol, specified capabilities
and/or types of resources may be adjusted by the Burn Boss.

D. Mop-up and Patrol

When fuels have been reduced to the desired level and ignition is completed, the piles will be
either mopped up or secured to the pile perimeter before personnel leave the burn under
direction of the Burn Boss, who becomes responsible for mop-up. As the lighting crew
completes their assignments, they will be reassigned to the mop-up crew and will work
directly for the Burn Boss. The piles will be chunked as often as feasible to maintain flaming
instead of smoldering state for smoke emissions and consumption of fuels.

Implement Category 3 Mop-up and patrol standards: procedures and duration

comply with FSM 5142.2.5.c, R-4 Supplement 5100-2004-1 and the Humboldt-

Toiyabe Fire Management Plan. Category 3 mop-up applies when the potential for an escape is
extremely low. Category 3 mop-up standards is: Patrol and monitor until weather conditions
eliminate the need or the burn is declared out.

A higher level of patrol may be needed on subsequent days when the burn boss has determined it
necessary.

The burn unit should be checked the day after each ignition and any subsequent days there after
as determined by the burn boss. Documentation of conditions should be made in a Unit Log with
the below filled out following each check of the burn unit.

Date/Time Lines Checked Who Checked Method (air/ground)

28



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: | Pile Burn

ELEMENT 17 - CONTINGENCY PLAN

A. Management Action Points

It any of the following situations occur, contingency action will take place:
1. Fire threatens the project boundary.
2. Fire outside of the primary unit boundary (Notify Duty Officer as soon as possible).
3. Smoke impacting sensitive areas.
4. Potential for costs to control exceed available project funds.
5. If fire exceeds objectives.

B. Actions Needed

If the objectives are not being met, the Contingency Plan is implemented. If the contingency actions are
successful at bringing the project back within the scope of the Prescribed Fire Plan, the project may
continue. If contingency actions are not successful by the end of the next burning period, then the
prescribed fire will be converted to a wildfire.

Due to lack of current interagency agreements to allow interagency resources to be compensated for
prescribed fire, contingency resources will be agency only and Burn Boss will need to arrange to have
contingency forces available on site during project implementation. In the event an escape occurs,
interagency resources can be utilized and estimated response times and locations are listed in Item C
below.

On site contingency forces:

e Pre-identified water locations for engine water fill determined the day of ignition.

e If portable tanks are used, ensure they are filled prior to implementation.

e Type 7 engine (patrol) or portable pumps with hose (if water source available) will be on scene
during low and moderate prescription days when snow is not present in the burn unit or the site
has not received recent rains.

Contingency Points:

e Primary Burn Unit: On site contingency forces should be able to utilize the existing road
system natural features that surround the burn units to contain the fire. If fire crosses outside
the burn unit under the high prescription, 1 additional engine should be ordered to support the
onsite contingency forces.

Control points if fire escapes outside of burn piles:

-If fire escapes outside of burn pile initiate action to bring fire back into pile, if creep is observed
outside of pile then monitoring can take place to allow some creep as long as there is no threat of
escape. If fire cannot be contained back to the pile use the burn unit boundary as a fallback option.

A list of available resources in addition to the onsite contingency resources will be documented by the
Burn Boss on Appendix 1 each day of the burn. The burn boss will contact adjacent Duty Officers and
dispatch centers daily to confirm availability of resources.

C. Minimum Contingency Resources and Maximum Response Time(s)

Maximum Conformation of
Resource Agency & Location Response Availability*
Time Yes/No Date
Brush Engines/Structure | Local County or City Fire | 25
Engines Departments minutes
Brush Engines/Structure | Any other available 2 Hours
Engines cooperators
Hand Crews Nevada Division Forestry | 12 Hours

Closest available

* To be completed within one
day of the burn and adjusted
during course of extended
burning conditions

29




Project Name: Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: . Pile Burn

ELEMENT 18 - WILDFIRE DECLARATION

A. Wildfire Declared By

The Prescribed Fire Burn Boss will have the authority to declare the prescribed bum a wildfire. If any
of the following situations, the burn will be declared a wildfire, initial attack will occur, and
appropriate management response will take place.

1. Contingency actions have failed or are likely to fail and cannot be mitigated.
2. Fire outside of the project ared.
3. Costs for control exceed available project funds.

B. IC Assignment

Should a wildfire be declared, the Prescribed Fire Burn Boss will become the Incident Commander
until relieved or replaced. The IC will organize all resources on-site for a safe and aggressive response.
Personnel within the prescribed fire organization will transition into ICS wildfire positions they are
qualified to carry out. The IC will order additional suppression resources identified in the Contingency
Plan as well as any other required resources necessary to support the suppression effort.

Upon a wildfire conversion occurring, all overhead personnel will document actions taken. After the
incident is contained, the Prescribed Fire Burn Boss will submit a post fire report documenting
weather, resources on site, ignition operations, holding actions, and other pertinent data.

C. Notifications

The Prescribed Fire Burn Boss/IC will notify Minden Dispatch and the District Duty Officer of the
escape and identify himself/herself as the IC. District Duty Officer will then notify the District Ranger
and the FMO. Dispatch Center will notify contacts listed on the notification plan of the escape and the
current situation.

Forest Fire Staff will notify Regional Fire Management Officer within 24 hours of an escape.

D. Extended Attack Actions and Opportunities to Aid in Fire Suppression

The appropriate management response will be used in order to flank the fire with suppression resources
until the forward rate of spread is stopped. The containment strategy will be to utilize safe anchor
points and create direct fire line where feasible and indirect fire line, including burning out, depending
upon location of natural barriers and roads. The FMO and/or IC, Resource Advisor, and Agency
Administrator may develop a WFDSS which will determine the appropriate management response to
the escaped fire.

Opportunities to aid in fire suppression include: utilize existing roads in the vicinity of the burn unit,
moist drainages, and changes in fuels (i.e. transition from brush field into timber fuel models).

Areas of high value and special concerns include: structures near burn site and all major roads that may
be affected by the burn.

30



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

ELEMENT 19 - SMOKE MANAGEMENT AND AIR QUALITY

A. Compliance

This burn plan complies with the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District and the Great Basin
Unified Air District which is designed to meet California air quality standards. Compliance will also be
made with Washoe County Air Quality District and the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection Air
Quality division and is designed to meet Nevada air quality standards.

The Burn Boss will be responsible to call air quality and determine if it is a burn day or not.

Alternatives to burning were considered for this project. Mechanical treatment using equipment to masticate
vegetation was considered as a possible alternative to prescribed burning and has been an accepted treatment
method on many fuels reduction projects. For the following reasons prescribed fire was considered a more
appropriate method of treatment on the project.

1.) The project area is within an ecosystem where wildfire has historically played a natural role. The
use of prescribed fire is considered a more natural treatment than mechanical treatments.

2.) The cost difference is substantial especially for large acreage projects like this project.
Approximately $550.00 or more per acre for mechanical mastication compared to approximately
$400.00 per acre for prescribed burning.

3.) Mechanical treatments using tractors or heavy equipment are much more ground disturbing then
prescribed fire. Due to the many prehistoric cultural resource sites (lithic scatters, etc.) within the
project area prescribed fire was considered more desirable because there would be less impact to
these sites.

4.) Much of the project area is mountainous with steep slopes. Tractors and heavy equipment have
safety limitations on steep slopes (they roll over). The steeper areas could not be treated
mechanically due to safety concerns. Prescribed fire can be effectively and safely used on steeper
slopes.

Prescribed fire was considered a good alternative compared to other treatments and with proper
implementation and compliance with the requirements of the Clean Air Act this alternative should meet the
Forest’s goals and objectives and have minimal impact to the States air quality.

FOFEM was used to calculate PM10 from the burn. The PM10 calculation is an estimate for the entire burn
areas. The approximate PM10 released is 14 tons or approximately 122 pounds per acre burned.

B. Permits to be Obtained

Smoke Management Numbers: | WCAQMD: 775-784-7200
NDEP: 775-687-9360
GBUAQMD:760-873-2555
NSAQMD: 530-994-3561

Washoe County Air Quality Management District:

5 days Prior- Burn plan submitted at least 5 days prior to planned ignition on projects more than 10 ton
PM10.

One Weeks Prior — Request for permit.

One Day Prior Notify Air Quality Division and receive final approval before burn can be ignited.

31




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

C. Smoke Sensitive Receptors

Identify any non-attainment or

Class I air sheds within 15 miles: Hoover and or Carson Iceberg Wilderness

Receptor Direction Distance Receptor Direction Distance

North/ | 10

Reno ]
East miles

D. Potential Impacted
Areas

Smoke should be minimal and not affect the air shed and have little impact on the surrounding homes and
highways.

E. Mitigation Strategies and Techniques to Reduce Smoke Impacts

Some potential for visual impairments to nearby highways may occur and cause a road hazard that will
require immediate mitigation. The Burn Boss will assure monitoring ot the public roadways and smoke
dispersal. Signs will be in place prior to ignition. On days of heavy inversions affecting the air shed the
Burn Boss and or the air quality district will make the determination to burn or not.

ELEMENT 20 - MONITORING

A. Fuels Information (forecast and observed) Required and Procedures

Weather and dead fuel conditions will be monitored at least 1 week prior to burning by either
manually. If onsite weather data is represent able to the nearest RAWS, then the RAWS may
be used for weather data. These conditions will also be monitored each day of planned
ignition. A ten hour fuel stick will be on site within or near the burn unit so that it can be
compared to the nearest RAWS most represent able of the burn site. Zone Fire Weather
forecasts will be monitored prior to the burn date if available. A spot weather forecast will be
requested through National Weather Service on the day before the burn. Regional weather
forecasts may be copied from the Internet and used for documentation.

B. Weather Monitoring (forecast and observed) Required and Procedures
Weather observations will be measured and recorded on a daily basis on the Weather / Fuels /
Fire Behavior / Smoke Observations form found in Appendix G or equivalent form.

32




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn

C. Fire Behavior Monitoring Required and Procedures

Fire behavior observations will be measured and recorded on a daily basis on the Weather /
Fuels / Fire Behavior / Smoke Observations form found in Appendix G.

D. Monitoring Required To Ensure That Prescribed Fire Plan Objectives Are Met

Igniters will monttor piles and ensure 80% or greater consumption takes place. Burn Boss will inspect
the project area to ensure that objectives are met.

E. Smoke Dispersal Monitoring Required and Procedures

The Burn Boss will assure monitoring of the public roadways for smoke and smoke dispersal in the
project area. Signs will be in place prior to ignition.

ELEMENT 21 - POST-BURN ACTIVITIES

Post-Burn Activities that Must be Completed

The Prescribed Fire Burn Boss will insure the Prescribed Fire Post Burn Evaluation is completed
(Appendix H). The Weather/Fuels/Fire Behavior/Smoke Observations (Appendix G) will be collected
and placed into the project folder. Any additional Fire Effects Reports will be completed and placed in
the project folder.

PRESCRIBED BURN DATE
DECLARED OUT TIME

RXB1, RXB2, RXB3

(circle appropriate Qualification)

33



Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn

APPENDICES

Maps - Vicinity and Project
Technical Review Checklist
Complexity Analysis

Agency Specific Job Hazard Analysis

mE oW

Fire Behavior Modeling Documentation or Empirical Documentation (unless it is
included in the fire behavior narrative in Element 7; Prescription)

=

Smoke Management Plan and Smoke Modeling Documentation “Optional”

34



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Barn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

APPENDIX A - MAPS

1.Vicinity Maps
*
£
h- .
Vicinity Map
Project Area Dog Valley

arson City

Legend

Other Lands
© | Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest -

|

Dog Valley Vicinity Map
35



| Project Mame: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

A
Arrowhawk Gte}éral Vicinity Map

—%

L7 [_Project Area [}

— |

- -
PR

" aW. . ‘k‘ N Carson City
. ; |

o
- Mint%eanardnerville

Legend

D State Boundary
f D Other Lands

77 Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest

36



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Little'Valley:and

A |
Boweris\Vicinity' Map

(1] 25 5

10 Miles),

Legend

Non Forest Service Land

b
|

~ Unit Name:

| Pile Burn

: N ~

" Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest |

Carson| City

3

37




[ Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Uit Name: | Pile Burn

 Carson RD Burn Pile
Vicinity Map - Clear Creek

7 Mk

38



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

| Unit Name: | Pile Burn

g
=
>

Y

Vicinity Map

Mln&; n/Gardnerville

L7

%
CS RN

39

-.-;; | Scott's Lake and Markleevillage




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

,[ Unit Name: Pile Burn

Jobs Pez
Prgiect Vicinity.

'y -

5

) ] Project Afea]

(3)

Minden/Gardnerville

_ s

40




| Project Name: | Carson RD.PileBurn | UnitName: | PileBurn

£

ﬁ

Minden/Gardnerville

—

Project Area

41



| }_’;l:pjgc‘til}{a[ng:r ] Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn

s16-

16
511
2

Genoa Project

Vicinity

,
: - ‘=

At
O

42




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn ~ | Uni€Name: | Pile Burn
2. Project Maps

Scott's Lake Pile
Burning FY 15

Legend

V] Pile Burn Unit - 82 ac
| - Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest

43



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name:  Pile Burn

= =SS 5

005 01 uzmmﬁ
e e P ey St S T
N
Legend

N [///] Pile Burn Unit - 40 ac
- Forest Service

44



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

Iear @reek

Private
Property

J Legend
Burn Piles - 05 ac

- Humboldt Toiyabe National Forest

45



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn

| Jobs Peak
Rile Burning

To Minden/Gardnerville

7

Ffve a
’OO‘F
P

Legend

. /] Burn Piles - 2 ac
P Forest service

46



|' Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn - I Unit Name: | Pile Burn

Little Valley
Pile Burning FY17

Cliff Brothers~

Fran&ﬂ"ﬂn o

Big Canyon Rd.

||||||||||

Legend

m Handwork - 162 acres
[ Forest Service

47




| Project Name: | Carson R.D, Pile Bzﬂi | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

' T v o wicen

m ST E0e NNl Farest

48



[ ?ggjgc_t Name: [ Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Mame: LPiie Burn e

inden/Gardnerville

Woodfords

| 121 Burn Piles - 53 acres

49



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

Rile Burning EYA7
_ | ¢
&

Landing Piles

/] Bum Piles - 126 ac

| Humboldt Toiyabe National Forest

04

IJ.IB 1.IG- Mtle"il

50



| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

| Unit

Name: Pile Burn

APPENDIX B - TECHNICAL REVIEWER CHECKLIST

PRESCRIBED FIRE PLAN ELEMENTS L3N COMMENTS
1. Signature page
2.  GO/NO-GO Checklists
3. Complexity Analysis Summary
4. Description of the Prescribed Fire Area
5.  Goals and Objectives
6. Funding
7. Prescription
8. Scheduling
9. Pre-burn Considerations
10. Briefing
11. Organization and Equipment
12. Communication
13. Public and Personnel Safety, Medical
14. Test Fire
15. Ignition Plan
16. Holding Plan
17. Contingency Plan
18. Wildfire Conversion
19. Smoke Management and Air Quality
20. Monitoring

21. Post-burn Activities

Appendix A: Maps

Appendix C: Complexity Analysis

Appendix D: Risk Assessment/JHA

Appendix E: Fire Prediction Modeling Runs

Other

S =Satisfactory U = Unsatisfactory N/A = Non Applicable

Q

Recommended O Not Recommended

for Approval for Approval

[ Approval is recommended subject to the

completion of all requirements listed in the
comments or on the Prescribed Fire Plan.

Technical Reviewer

Qualification and Currency (Y/N)

51

Date




Project Name: = Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: | Pile Burn

APPENDIX C - COMPLEXITY ANALYSIS

This analysis was used with the NWCG Prescribed Fire Complexity Rating System Guide (PMS
424 - January 2004) and Prescribed Fire Complexity Rating Descriptors starting on Page 6 of the
guide http://www.nweg.gov/pms/RxFire/complexity analysis.pdf.

PREPARED BY

APPROVED BY

Complexity Elements

DATE

DATE

Agency Administrator

1. Potential for Escape

Risk

Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Moderate High

No dangerous ladder fuels are present within the areas where piles will be burned. Ignition
procedures of piles are not expected to create intense fire. Adequate personnel will be on site for
holding purposes related to the prescription and/or the forecasted weather confirmed with on site
weather observations.

Final Rating No Change
Eowl Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

For High

The bums may take place in the WUI or just outside the WUI with high dollar values; The areas on
average have moderate recreation usage; and may have high and has scenic value for a major
metropolitan area (Reno) when burning in or near the city of Reno. An escape fire could burn onto
private property. If an escape were to occur there would be moderate impact to public users. An
escape could moderately damage vegetation in the area and potentially threaten surrounding homes
that exist less than 1/8 mile from the project boundary.

Final Ratin
Low |Mndeml;| High

On high prescription burning days an engine with hose lay capabilities will be on scene as
contingency resource to mitigate the potential for escape.

Technical Difficulty

Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Low | Moderate High

Holding operations will be simple and supervised at the Burn Boss level. Personnel used will already
have knowledge and experience of burning at these locations.

Final Rating
Eowl Moderate High

No Change

2. The Number and Dependency of Activities

Risk

Rationale

Preliminary Rating

|Loa Moderate High

This is the only project scheduled for suppression personnel for this time frame and has a high
priority for the district.

52




[ Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn
Final Rating No Change
Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

A minimum number of at least 2 personnel wilf be needed for this project due to the condition of the
fuels, prescription for the burn, and time of season.

ow | Moderate High
Final Rating No Change
ow| Moderate High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating There will be a low level of difficulty in coordinating and overseeing the project to completion.
Eo;{ Moderate High
Final Rating No Change
lzaﬂ Moderate  High
3. Off-Site Values
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating Off site values at risk are air quality. Air quality has more of a concemn when buming in or near
[m . Washoe County, Truckee Meadows area (Reno). Rx burn would be implemented during moderate to
Low oderate H, g h low visitor use. There are also has structures located near most of the burn units.
Final Rating The project consists of pile burning limiting the amount of visible smoke to the surrounding area.
Mod High Buming is taking place in the off season for recreational use and visitor impact is expected to be low.
oaerate 4 On desired and high prescription burning days an engine with hose lay capabilities will be on scene to

mitigate the potential for escape. Prescription parameters also limit the potential for escape.

Potential Consequences

Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Smoke impacts could have a moderate impact on offsite values.

Low |Moderatd High
Final Rating The project consists of pile bumning limiting the amount of visible smoke to the surrounding area and
. the site has had good dispersion from smoke in the past with no complaints. Smoke will be
Moderate Hi g h monitored by the burn boss and operations will stop if it is determined that smoke has become a
factor for the airshed, operations may continue when it is determined that smoke is no longer
affecting the area.
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating Smoke impact on residences and nearby highways must be considered and mitigated during ignition.
. Fuel moistures and wind conditions will be monitored and hose lays can be used for mitigating the
Low oderat H, g h risk of escape.
Final Ratin Efficient amount of crews will be on scene to mitigate the potential for escape. Smoke will be closely
ng—a : monitored by the bum boss to determine if smoke is affecting the local community. Signs will be
Low oderat H, g h placed along nearby highways alerting travelers of prescribed bum in the area.
4. On-Site Values
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating There is low risk to vegetation damage due to wet conditions and high tree crowns. There are low
. risks to recreation use within the project area that can be partially mitigated with signage and
|Loﬂ Moderate High | iscations. . R ES

53




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: Pile Burn
Final Rating No Change

Moderate High

Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Implementation problems will not damage special features or adversely affect known on site values.
(Some minor effects on recreation use is expected during activities).

[zoﬂ Moderate High
Final Rating No Change
Moderate High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating No special skills or operating procedures are required ...resource values within the unit are easy to
- rotect.
m Moderate High P
Final Rating No Change
|Lmq Moderate High
5. Fire Behavior
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating Fuels are characterized using only one fuel type in the area. Fire behavior is refatively predictable
I—j . due to consistent wind patterns in the areca. Due to timing of year fire behavior will be low because of
Low Moderate  Hi 15 h fuel moisture conditions.
Final Rating There will be sufficient amount of personnel on scene according to the day’s prescription to mitigate
o the potential for an escape.
qu Moderate High P ?

Potential Consequences

Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Fire behavior outside of the burn area unit where the predominant winds blow to is the same fuel
model that was used within the unit

Low ]Maderate | High
Final Rating No Change
Low Maderata High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating Fire intensities will be high within the piles to facilitate consumption but low outside the piles due to
Mod Hioh fuel moisture conditions. The technical difficulty will be low due to the fuels treatment itself.
oderate g Adequate personnel will be on site for holding purposes related to that day’s prescription.  Standard
fire precautions are adequate for public and fire fighter safety.
Final Rating No Change
|Lo;1:| Moderate High
6. Management Organization
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating A small number of qualified people will be required to implement the prescribed burn, suppression
. concerns and mop-up. A single level of supervision is expected at the prescribed burn boss type 3

Moderate  H, g h levels and should be sufficient. Contingency resources will be available on high end prescription

days and the local initial attack cooperators will be notified of burning.

54




‘LPr[)jgct Namew Carson R.D. Pile Burn Unit Name: | Pile Burn
Final Rating No Change
IEail Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Problems related to supervision, communication, or technical expertise is expected to be minimal.
The level of supervision will be at the prescribed bumn boss type 3.

0 Moderate High
Final Rating No Change
Moderate High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Pr¢|iminary Rating All assigned personnel are available within the local unit and are familiar with the local factors
ow Moderate Hig h affecting project implementation.
Final Rating No Change
Moderate High
7. Public and Political Interest
Risk Rationale
Pre]iminary Rating The prescribed fire areas are visible to the public from most locations. There has been some media
L Hi interest, homeowner interest and the public scoping has been done for the project areas at the NEPA
ow oderate igh | vl
Final Ratin The surrounding community will be notified prior to that years burning with flyers and the
L WIE—‘ Hioh surrounding trail heads will also be posted with buming notifications. The media will also be notified
ow oderate g of activities that will occur in the area.

Potential Consequences

Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Unexpected or adverse events would heighten interest from public, political or media and may delay

B implementation of other projects. News releases and briefings would be required.
Low |Moderate| High
Final Ratin No Change
Low Wodemte | High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating Requires no special fire information function. Routine media releases are needed but contacts have
|E P | Moderate Hig h been well established.
Final Rating The district public affairs person will be responsible to follow the notification sheet to assure that
[E A | Moderate ng h they make the contacts on the list assigned.
8. Fire Treatment Objectives
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating Objectives are limited to easily achieved fuel reduction and ecosystem maintenance. The necessary
| E 5= [ Moderate ng h fire behavior is easily created, managed and monitored.
Final Rating No Change
|Low | Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale
q

Preliminary Ratin
Low |Modemtz| High

Other opportunities to meet the objectives are limited within a given year due to budget and fire
season priorities. Failure to meet the objectives could have adverse impacts (heavy fuel loading in

| piles available for severe fire potential during the height of fire season).

55




| Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Pile Burn

Final Rating No Change

Low oderate| High

Technical Difficulty Rationale

Preliminary Rating Measures to achieve the objectives are easy to complete and there are few or no restrictions on
N techniques. Limited pre-burn monitoring is needed to determine if unit is in prescription.

Zo;'l Moderate High 4 P ) =

Final Rating No Change

Moderate High
9. Constraints

Risk Rationale

Preliminary Rating No constraints related to access, water sources, fire lines, specific tactics, or equipment and aircraft
. exist.

Eo;] Moderate High

Final Rating No Change

Moderate  High

Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Project can be implemented whenever it is in prescription. Tactics and burn activities are not limited.

‘Loﬂ Moderate High
Final Rating No Change

Moderate High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating Constraints do not increase the difficulty of completing the project.
[Zoq Moderate High
Final Rating No Change
qu Moderate High

10. Safety
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating Safety issues are easily identifiable and mitigated. Potential hazards are typical and easily addressed
B in briefings. Work force is highly experienced and motivated towards satety for this project.

[Low] Moderate High = i y Proj
Final Rating No Change
Low| Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

There is minimal potential for serious accidents/injuries to fire fighters or the public. This is
mitigated with JHA’s, tailgate safety sessions and notifications to the public.

m Moderate High

Final Rating No Change

m Moderate High

Technical Difficulty Rationale

Preliminary Rating ngfety concems can easil}'/ be mitigated through LCES and daily standard safety briefings. Special
m Mo dera te ng h mitigation to protect public health and safety are not needed.

56




[ Prqje;c;i Name ] Carson R.D. Piie Burn }Umt Name Pile Burn
Final Rating No Change
0 Moderate  High
11. Ignition Procedures/Methods
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating Firing sequence and timing is not critical to meet the bum objectives. Pile ignition will be limited to
‘ya the allowable minimal holding forces outlined in the prescription.
0 Moderate  High
Final Rating No Change
|Lo;| Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

Firing methods and procedures do not pose a safety concern to personnel, compromise project

. objectives, or increase the risk of an adverse or unexpected event.
l[_.oq Moderate High g :
Final Rating No Change
qu Moderate High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Prc]iminary Rating There is no need for special firing equipment, techniques, or patterns. Firing procedures are simple
. and ignition team is small. Ignition pattern is simple and requires minimal supervision.
[Low]l Moderate High £ eaon P a b
Final Rating No Change
|Lm\t;| Moderate High
12. Interagency Coordination
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating The project does not involve another land management agency or jurisdiction. Minimal concerns
Mod Hish have been identified with multiple agencies affecting the same Air Quality District and some
0 oderate g cooperation will be necessary. Other agencies may be involved in the project as per local cooperative
agreements.
Final Rating No Change
ow| Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

Preliminary Rating

There are some political and budget consequences of a response from other local cooperating
agencies if an escape does occur. Coordination will be obtained through the Sierra Front Interagency

Moderate H lgh Dispatch Center, which will also have a copy of this plan and consistent and daily contacts from the
Burn Boss.
Final Rating
Moderate  High | NoChange
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Pre]iminary Rating Coordination with local agencies will be easily maintained through contacts from the Burn Boss and
o or Minden Interagency Dispatch. Information will be easily disseminated through the dispatch
0 Moderate High | e
Final Rating No Change
0 Moderate  High
13. Project Logistics
Risk Rationale
Prc]iminary Rating Personnel involved will be self sufficient in regards to equipment needed to complete the project.
[L—l M. Hioh Project duration is multiple days but this will not impact the unit significantly and can easily be
oW oderate 24 mitigated by the Burn Boss.
Final Rating No Change
|Lo;q Moderate High
Potential Consequences Rationale

57




Project Name:

Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name: Pile Burn

Preliminary Rating

Problems related to logistics will not increase the risk of escape, affect the completion of the project
or create a safety concemn.

m Moderate High
Final Rating No Change
m Moderate High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating Project personnel and supervisors will handle logistical concerns. Some preparation will be needed
Moderate High for those areas requiring pumps and hose lays for ignition, suppression and mop-up.
Final Rating No Change
m Moderate  High
14. Smoke Management
Risk Rationale
Preliminary Rating Smoke produced during pile burning should be of short duration and “chunking” of the piles to
|E | B maintain a flaming state and fuels consumption should minimize time in a smoldering phase. Some
oW Moderate H g h impacts from smoke may occur at residences, vistas and residential roadways.
Final Rating No Change
Moderate High

Potential Consequences

Rationale

Preliminary Rating
Low

Fire personnel exposure to the smoke is expected to be minimal and not cause health or safety
concerns. Minor smoke to the residences and some roads in the area is expected and the public will

H ’gh be advised through signs in the area. The Burn Boss will monitor for unfavorable smoke conditions
and the nature of the burn will allow for the Burn Boss to stop ignition and suppress the burn.
Final Ratin The burn will take place predominately during weekdays when most individuals will not be at home
. during regular work hours.
Low |ﬁoderar;| High
Technical Difficulty Rationale
Preliminary Rating No special operational procedures are required. Limitations on wind direction, season and fuels are
5 present in the plan with further direction provided by the local Air Quality District. Ignition is only
@ Moderate  Hi I8 h allowed with a favorable permit from the airshed being burned in.
Final Rating No Change
ILov_v| Moderate High

58




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name:

| _Pile Burn

APPENDIX D - AGENCY SPECIFIC JOB HAZARD ANALYSIS

ACTIVITY HAZARDS ACTION TO ELIMINATE HAZARD
1. Driving to work . General operations and | A. Defensive driving techniques.
site public traffic.
B. Seatbelts B. Must be worn at all times
C. Steep, narrow roads; B. Drive cautiously so that you can stop in
dusty narrow roads and less than 4 of your usual distance.
or snowy wet muddy Lights on.
roads.

. Unsecured loads. C. Check loads for secure ness before
departing — use tie downs.

. Hauling flammable or D. Use appropriate containers. Keep

explosive substances. potentially explosive substances well
separated. Consider hauling gasoline
and glycol in separate vehicles.

. Transporting sharp E. Use guards, cages, boxes, or tool

tools. mounts.

. Loading vehicles. F. Use proper lifting techniques.

2. Driving at or . Backing or turning A. Use spotters. Face the hazard while
near work site around in small areas turning around. Avoid tight turn
around if possible

. Heavy truck traffic B. Maintain radio communications and

between units and water alert other drivers in the area. Lights
source(s). on

. Smoke, poor visibility. C. Place a guide on foot ahead of the
vehicle. Wait until smoke is less dense.
Lights on. Use light bars and/or
warning lights

. Parking near a D. Use parking brake. Leave keys in

prescribed burn. ignition, avoid leaving exposed
flammable or explosive materials in bed
of vehicle. All windows closed.

. ATV’s E. Operated by trained and licensed
drivers only. Lights on. Avoid steep
slopes.

. Public Safety. F. Post signs and/or use roadblocks if
needed.

. Entrapment on narrow G. When possible, ensure that 2 routes out

un-maintained roads. are available. Post lookouts. Leave
area “early” if fire appears to threaten
escape route.

. Exposure to sparks. A. Use proper containers, move away
from hot areas, no smoking,.

. Eye or skin B. Gloves, goggles, or other eye protection,

contamination from fuel.

leather lace-up boots.

59




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name:

Pile Burn

ACTIVITY HAZARDS ACTION TO ELIMINATE HAZARD
3. Handling . Leaking containers or C. Empty and tag in field, have repairs
flammable torches. made before next use.
material . Improper gas/diesel D. Use labels on containers, field test small
ratios for drip torch fuel. amounts before use.
. Slippery surfaces from E. Make every effort to avoid spilling fuel,
spilled fuel. where feasible. Install non-slip
material on fuel truck beds. Clean up
spills as soon as possible.
. Muscle or back strain A. Use of proper lifting techniques. Get
lifting heavy objects. help if too heavy.
4. Equipment set- . Operating pumps and B. Tuck in shirttails; remove scarves and
up mechanized equipment jewelry. Proper clothing, gloves, and
exhaust burns, loose boots.
clothing.
. Application of slippery C. Eight-inch lug sole, lace-up boots.
retardant, poor footing. Avoid slick areas if possible
. Crew people working up | D. Post lookout. Shout warnings.
hill from each other
(rolling debris).
. Operating high-pressure | E. Maintain visual contact with pump
nozzles. operator and other crewmembers. Use
backup person behind nozzle person.
Use eye protection.
. Traversing rocky F. Eight-inch lug boots, slow cautious

terrain. movement.
. Noise from pumps and G. Use hearing protection (ear plugs or
Saws. muffs).
. Foam concentrate on H. Follow manufacturer’s first aid
skin, foam in eyes recommendations. Wear eye protection
when working around foam and foam
concentrate. Change clothing if heavily
contaminated by foam concentrate.
. Rolling debris. A. Use hand held radios, close supervision,
lookouts. Consider aerial ignition.
5.1 Hand ignition . Close proximity to B. Same action as in A. Use PPE and
intense heat and erratic LCES.
fire behavior.
. Smoke, sparks, and C. Avoid very dense smoke. Wear PPE,
cinders. Alter firing patterns. Rotate personnel
out of worst areas.
. Poor footing, steep D. Constant awareness, learn to identify
slopes, heavy fuels. hazard area. Slow down.
. Noise of fire obscures E. Hand held radios for all lighting

verbal warnings.

personnel if possible; for every other
person at a minimum

60




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn | Unit Name: Pile Burn
ACTIVITY HAZARDS ACTION TO ELIMINATE HAZARD
F. Burning fuel dripping F. Lighters stay alert to location of torch

from torches. Burns
from drip torches.

head; do not point directly at another
person. Close air vent when not
actually lighting, Proper PPE.

G. Lighting wrong area; G. Know location of others. Radios for all
lighting fire down slope lighting personnel, if possible; for every
and ahead of others. other person at minimum. Close

supervision.

A. Firing projectiles or A. Basic firearm safety rules followed
flares. separation of ammo by type and size;

access to launchers limited to trained
personnel or authorized trainees.
5.2.1 Fusee B. Inadvertent firing B. Post lookouts. Notify firing specialist
over/under shot resulting and holding specialist. Halt ignition
in activity outside until holding crews extinguish spot.
project boundaries.
A. Vehicle Maintenance. A. Thorough inspection of vehicles and
ignition equipment.
5.2.3 Mechanical A. Close proximity to fire, A. Same as in 5.1B. Know escape routes.
(ATV) intense heat, and erratic
fire behavior,

B. Rough terrain, heavy B. Scout and locate accessible routes,
ground fuels, side hills make a dry run, use experienced
and slopes. operators or supervised trainees.

Consider hand ignition.

C. Noise of ATV and fire C. Hand held radios required of all
obscures verbal ignition personnel.
warnings.

D. Inadvertent ignitions. D. Preplan ignition on/off points, check

6. Holding wand apparatus on regular basis.

(includes all of
item 4) continued

7. Mop-up:
Includes all
hazards in items 4,
5, 6, and the
following

Notify holding crew.

E. Accidentally ignite E. Ensure that fuel does not drip or leak
vehicle. onto vehicle. Stay particularly alert

when side-hilling on steeper slopes.

F. Carrying sharp tools. F. Keep tool guards on while traveling.
Remove only while in use.

G. Tool use. G. Proper crew training, with close
supervision by crew boss.

A. Snag falling. A. Falling and bucking to be done only by
trained personnel.

A. Hypothermia A. Cold-conditions bring appropriate

clothing (jacket,hat,raincoat) dress in
layers

B. Make sure to stop and take the time to
warm up before you reach the initial
stages of hypothermia

61




Project Name: Carson R.D. Pile Burn

| Unit Name: Pile Burn

ACTIVITY

HAZARDS

ACTION TO ELIMINATE HAZARD

8. Working in
Winter Conditions

. Stranded in severe

weather conditions

C.

Use good winter travel sense. Carry a
compass and map and know how to use
them

Travel at speeds that allow you to slow,
stop, and/or avoid hazards. Avoid
traveling across ice

Make sure to take emergency gear such
as matches, space blankets, fire starter

. Snow blindness and

sunburn

Take goggles or sunglasses and wear
them to prevent snow blindness and
protect eyes. Apply copious amounts of
sun block even when overcast.

. Poor Visibility

If visibility is poor cancel your outing.
If already out, wait until it clears or
improves and/or proceed very
cautiously

Travel at speeds that allow you to slow,
stop, and/or avoid hazards. Avoid
traveling across ice.

. Dehydration

Carry sufficient water, minimum of 1
gallon per person. Provide for
additional drinking water on all
projects, such as a 5-gallon container in
each vehicle. Preferably container
should be insulated and filled with ice
before leaving for field.

62




Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

Unit Name:

. _Pile Burn

ACTIVITY

HAZARDS

ACTION TO ELIMINATE HAZARD

G. Walking

A.

SIS

=

Watch for hazards hidden by snow
including, stump holes, brush stubs,
slick ash layer, and loose rocks

Test and use secure footing. Walk
never run down slopes; don’t walk
on top of logs.

Know how to use snowshoes and
skis

Maintain balance and walk slowly
In snow wear a waterproof boot
with good ankle support

Know how to fall, try to land in the
least obstructed spot. Protect your
head and back. Roll with the fall.
Do not stick out your arms to break
a fall.

A. Mixing

A. Mix in an open area well ventilated

Fire-Gel

=

Wear proper PPE (Gloves, Masks,
Long Sleeves) avoid contact with skin

0

Keep away from open flame

=

People without proper gear must stand
clear of mixing area.

=

watch out for splashing or any material
on clothes while mixing and after
mixing

A AR QR P

= o o 7 ® »

63




|_Project Name: | Carson R.D. Pile Burn

| Unit Name: | Pile Burn _

ACTIVITY HAZARDS ACTION TO ELIMINATE HAZARD
F.
G.
H.
L
Line Officer Date

64




[ Project Name: | Upper Washoe Pile Burn | Unit Name: | Upper Washoe

APPENDIX E - FIRE BEHAVIOR MODELING DOCUMENTATION OR EMPIRICAL
DOCUMENTATION

65



Project Name: | Upper Washoe Pile Burn

| Unit Name:

| Upper Washoe

APPENDIX F-Smoke Modeling Documentation

Weather and Fuels

OBSERVATION TIME (24 HR)

SLOPE (%)

ASPECT

ELEVATION (FEET)

FUEL MODEL (1-13)

SHADING (<50% or >50%)

DRY BULB TEMPERATURE (°F)

WET BULB TEMPERATURE (°F)

RELATIVE HUMIDITY (%)

EYE LEVEL WIND SPEED (MPH)

WIND DIRECTION

CLOUD COVER (%)

1-HR FUEL MOISTURE (%)

Fire Behavior

FIRE (HEAD, FLLANK, BACKING)

AVERAGE FLAME LENGTH (FT)

MAX. FLAME LENGTH (FT)

RATE OF SPREAD (CH/HR)

TORCHING/CROWNING (Y or N)

FIRE WHIRLS (Y or N)

SPOTTING (Y or N)

SMOKE DIRECTION

SMOKE RISE

Notes:

OBSERVER NAME:

DATE

66




|_l’rojecl Name: | Upper Washoe Pile Burn

| Unit Name:

[ Upper Washoe

APPENDIX H - PRESCRIBED FIRE POST BURN EVALUATION

Burn Unit Date(s) Burned Acres Burned Ignition Start Time
Weather and Fuel Conditions
Time of Ignition Low High
Temperature

Relative Humidity

1-hr Fuel Moisture

10-hr Fuel Moisture

100-hr Fuel Moisture

1000-hr Fuel Moisture

Days Since Significant
Precipitation

Wind Direction Wind Speed (Average) Percent of Fuel Ignition Duration (min.)
(Average) Consumed
Accomplishment of Fuels Treatment Objectives
Overall Objectives Yes No
Achieved:

Short Term Results (include changes in fuel profile and fire regime condition class)

Cost Evaluation

Burn Plan Site Preparation Burn Operation Total Burn Costs | Cost/Acre
Preparation
$ $ $ $ $

Narrative — Prescribed Fire Burn Boss Comments

i.e. operations, safety, fire behavior, personnel & equipment performance, logistics, smoke management

Prescribed Fire Burn
Boss

Date

67




11/7/2016 Tahoe Chief's Corner: Pile burning key component of a Fire Adapted Community | SierraSun.com
Tahoe Chief’s Corner: Pile burning key component of a Fire Adapted
Community

Mike BrownTahoe Chief’'s Corner
December 2, 2015

INCLINE VILLAGE, Nev. — A Fire Adapted Community takes responsibility for its wildfire risk. Actions address
resident safety, homes, neighborhoods, businesses and infrastructure, forests, parks, open spaces and other
community assets. The more actions a community takes, the more fire adapted it becomes.

The Lake Tahoe Basin Multi-Jurisdictional Fuel Reduction and Wildfire Prevention Strategy — developed by
federal, state and local land managers and fire services of the Lake Tahoe Basin — facilitates the strategic
decisions made to reduce the probability of a catastrophic wildfire, and establishes a process for identifying and
prioritizing projects that will have the greatest benefit for Lake Tahoe communities.

Fuels reduction projects protect communities by reducing fire behavior, giving firefighters a chance to catch
wildfires before they become catastrophic.

The projects also help to restore and maintain fire resilient landscapes by emulating the disturbance of frequent,
low-intensity fires that shaped the landscape and ecology of the Lake Tahoe Basin. These types of projects
include: hand thinning, mechanical thinning, understory burning and pile burning.

Our Fire District, working in unison with our land managers and neighboring fire districts, has been conducting pile

burns over the fall and winter months, as one of the tools in the Multi-Jurisdictional Fuel Reduction and Wildfire
Prevention Strategy to reduce the wildfire threat in our community.

This ongoing effort will enable us to continue our endeavor in sustaining our Fire Adapted Community status.

We coordinate with the county air pollution control district and monitor weather conditions closely prior to igniting a

prescribed burn. We are thankful for the community’s support and will continue to notify our residents and visitors

of upcoming projects.

For those folks that are smoke sensitive and would like to be added to our smoke sensitive list, please call the Fire

District at 775-831-0351, ext. 0 to speak with someone in person.

“Chief's Corner” is a regular feature in the North Lake Tahoe Bonanza from North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection

District Chief Mike Brown, offering information, tips and education material on fire safety, emergency preparedness

and other pertinent fopics.

hitp:/Awww sierrasun.com/newslocal tahoe-chiefs- corner-pile-burning-key-component-of-a- fire-adapted-community/

17"



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PFAQTECTION QISTRICT

STAFF REPORT Fire Chief__
Board Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 F"ggi—
Risk Mgt,
DATE: November 7, 2016 HR
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Acceptance of a presentation from Washoe County Community Development regarding
the Burned Area Emergency Response Team. (Commission District 2)

SUMMARY

Acceptance of a presentation from Washoe County Community Development regarding the Burned
Area Emergency Response Team (BAER).

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities

PREVIOUS ACTION

None

BACKGROUND

The Little Valley Fire caused that requires special efforts to prevent problems afterwards. Loss of
vegetation exposes soil to erosion; water runoff may increase and cause flooding; sediments may move
downstream and damage houses or fill reservoirs putting endangered species and community water
supplies at risk.

After a fire the first priority is emergency stabilization in order to prevent further damage to life,
property or natural resources. The stabilization work begins before the fire is out and may continue for
up to a year. The longer-term rehabilitation effort to repair damage caused by the fire begins after the
fire is out and continues for several years. Rehabilitation focuses on the lands unlikely to recover
naturally from wildland fire damage.

The Burned Area Emergency Response (BAER) program is designed to address these emergency
situations through its key goals of protecting life, property, and critical natural and cultural resources.
Cheryl Surface, Parks Planner from Washoe County Community Services will be presenting on this item
in regards to the Little Valley Fire.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact directly related to this presentation.

AGENDA ITEM #7



BOFC Meeting November 15, 2016
Page 2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends accepting into record the presentation from Washoe County Community
Development regarding the Burned Area Emergency Response Team.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept into record a presentation from Washoe County Community Development regarding
the Burned Area Emergency Response Team.”



O*E’E_EEAOO
& oy %5

1
Z 2N
v-’

WASHOE COUNTY NV

N
=

FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
November 7, 2016

To: Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Fm: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief
Re:  Fire Chief’s Report and Statistics for September 2016

This report highlights fire district operations for the month of September 2016 and presents
statistical summaries for career and volunteer operations and training.

Highlights of other issues are as follows:

Station 14 Development:

The Special Use Permit (SUP) has been submitted and will be heard by the Board of Adjustment
in December. South Valley Citizens Advisory Board will review the matter at their November
meeting. A special community meeting is also planned. I have attached an architectural summary
but not the full SUP submittal. The project is on target for occupancy around December 2017.

At the October meeting Commissioner Lucey requested an update regarding disposition of the
existing station. The Board will need to take action to identify the existing station as surplus and
authorize its sale. The Board should consider that the District will need to operate out of the
existing station until the new station is complete and the District receives a Certificate of
Occupancy. You are probably aware the District has received an informal offer from a willing
buyer to purchase the existing station now and lease the station back to the District.

December TMFPD Meeting:

The meeting for TMFPD for December will be held on Tuesday, December 13 — a week earlier
than usually scheduled. The meeting will be brief with the only action items anticipated being
presentation and acceptance of the external audits.

Management Staffing Plan:

The Board requested a status update on recruiting positions currently open. The following
spreadsheet summarizes the status of all positions recently hired and pending.

AGENDA ITEM #8A



1150 CORPORATE BLVD.
RENO, NV 89502
775.856.1150 |

CFARENO.COM|

RN, B

e .Y

TMFPD STATION #14
SPECIAL USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

OCTOBER 17, 2016

TSK ARCHITECTS




TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Table of Contents

Project REQUESE ..........ooerveeeen oo oo i i sy s stishomionss s s ams v SRS aa s oos RO TGRS R RO Ao e e neneenras 1
FIgure 1 = VICINIY MaAD ...o.vviiiiiiici bbb es bbbt et arenes 2
Figure 2 — Site PIaN ...............usesssisiss et s s s s i s assisi v os e resens 3
ProjeCt DESCIPION ...ttt bbbt bt sen s 4
Building ArchitaCture ................ cunsamsmuansmms s i s s s asessis i o eansron e 4
LIGIHING .t b bbbttt b e et 5
TrASH ENCIOSUIE ... couen oo o ciisesiinsioie s ims oo seiis dbvonsavassbesea s a4 A3 A AR5 o et 5
Figure 3 — BUilding EIEVALIONS ........cvveriiiiiniisiisesisess s sssesesesesessssesssses s sessessssenens 6
Figure 4 — BUilding EIGVALIONS ..........cccvvririirineiiisiaisseeisesnessssessssssssessessssssesesss s sens 7
Figure 5 — Training TOWer Elevation .............ccccoviiiiiicrii e s 8
FIGUrE B — FIOOT PIAN .....coiviiiiiiie bbb 9
LANASCAPE ....oovee vt et re e r e s o SO S G VOSSR 20 v 10
SHGNAGE ekt 10
FIQUre 7 — SIgNAGE PlaN .......c.coueermremeeen e s i s ios s etk 11
Figure 8 — LandSCape Plan...........coviviiiinciiirseessis s as s ss s s s snes 12
INFFASIIUCIUIE .......ecvireccer e e SRR AR A 13
Figure 9 - Site PhotOgraphis.........ccovuiiiiiiciiiissessens s ses s e sens 14
Figure 10 - ZONING MEAP .....cocoririieeeee et 15
Special Use Permit FININGS .........ccoiuiiriiieiniinninecnssisnmsssssnssbibonissnsinassssssorssssssssnsasasnsasnsaossasn 16

Page i



TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Appendices

Washoe County Development Application

Maps

Building Elevations (2 sheets)....................
Tower Elevation .........ccccovvviveinicninieinnn
Title Sheet (T1.0) ..o,
Site-Utility Plan (C1.0).......cccccvvvviviicrenane,
Grading Plan (C2.0) ........ s iims
Cross Sections (C2.1) ......ccocoueviivcirennnnn,
Landscape Plan {L1.1) ....cowsssmsmmmvansemmssssmsmsamssmmssmsms
Lighting Plan (E2.02)....... seususamsmmisassisissimmismassianmomssms

................................................................... Map Pocket
................................................................... Map Pocket
................................................................... Map Pocket
................................................................... Map Pocket

e Map Pocket

................................................................... Map Pocket

v Map Pocket
v Map Pocket

Page ii



Project Request

This application is a request for a special use permit for development of a new fire station located south of
Foothill Road and east of Broken Hill Road. The project site is situated on a single parcel (APN 044-300-
19) measuring 3 acres in size. The property is surrounded by vacant land to the east and south, single-
family residential development to the west and large lot residential development to the north. The site is
bounded by Foothill Road and Broken Hill Road on two sides and vacant land to the east and south. The
parcel has a zoning designation of Medium Density Suburban (MDS) and a master plan designation of
Suburban Residential (SR), and is within the Southwest Truckee Meadows Area Plan.

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) Station #14 currently resides at 12300 Old Virginia
Road, and has for the past £30 years. The existing site, which was once considered rural, is now
surrounded on all sides by commercial and retail development.  The proposed Fire Station #14 has been
sited to provide a better location to respond to the volume and type of calls that are required to provide the
needed service in southern Washoe County. This location serves the need for this region and its
anticipated growth. This site has indirect access to Virginia Street (main north/south connector in Reno),
and clear freeway access to U.S. 395/580, to aide in response times for emergency calls that are of a
greater distance.

The new station will initially provide quarters for one fire crew, consisting of five members, and will be
designed to accommodate two crews at full build out. The apparatus bay will house three large fire fighting
vehicles and one extended cab 4x4 truck. At full build-out, the apparatus bays will accommodate four
double depth pull through bays. Full build out of the fire station will be dependent on fire service needs and
funding. The additional square footage will consist of 900 square feet for living quarters, 320 square feet
for covered storage and the 340 square foot training tower. The timing of full build-out is not known, but is
anticipated to take place within the next ten years.

This application package includes the following request:
% A request to allow a Safety Service use in the MDS zoning district per Table 110.302.5.2 of the
Washoe County Development Code.

Page 1

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14



TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Figure 1 - Vicinity Map %

Page 2



JAIYA TIH NaXoy¥g

N

LY LIS

I yova 13s
.

oSN
freriviiacd
B HEYELL

HOM 29 DNNITHDS
:uasg
(-7 EHvered

rﬁ\:. _:____gw_ N

05 P¥Sy 44
AVE SNLVNYddY

48 Zog'oL
vauvy

0S0pSP 44
ONIgINE NIV

b

N Y O

3AIEA TIHLO0S

i

o)

ST T TSI T

1S)

n N
t,.W,(ti;

:

Page 3



TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Project Description

The total site is 3-acres in size, and the initial development is proposed over the northern 2.02 acres. The
site has a gradual slope from northwest to southeast, which will influence the site design. Drainage for the
site slopes to the southeast and will require a detention basin on the southern portion of the site. The
apparatus bay emergency doors allow egress to Foothill Road, which serves as the primary east-west
access for this area. Public parking will be located off of the eastern edge of the site on Foothill Road.
Broken Hill will also be the return point of entry for incoming fire vehicles and firemen's personal vehicles.
Access fo the rear yard is not secured at this time. The proposed £10,662 square foot building excludes
future additions for 4 additional residential bedrooms as well as support services for the apparatus bay so
bay #4 can be converted to a pull through bay.

Parking will be provided in two areas, one location for employees and a second parking lot for the public.
Ten employee parking stalls will be located on the west side, with access off of Broken Hill Road. In
addition, this area allows for a few public parking spaces will be provided for the occasional visitor or for
employee overflow, when needed. The second parking lot will be for the public, with access off of Foothill
Road. If a disabled employee utilizes this facility, they will use the ADA stall in the public parking lot,
leaving one free ADA stall for public use. Additionally, an ADA route will be provided from the public
sidewalk along Foothill Road into the public entry door.

Building Architecture

The new station is a single story structure to be built of durable concrete masonry methods with accents
and details of prefinished metal panels, to define entrances and provide a sense of community. Roofs are
of 3:12 slopes to also reflect the geometry of the neighborhood. Other materials include storefront glazing,
accent stacked masonry walls, and box-rib corrugated metal siding. The exterior materials are both
aesthetic and durable, and integrate well with the materials found in southern Washoe County and the
existing context of the surrounding neighborhoods. The building architecture has been designed to create
a public identity, as well as provide a private side for the firemen’s living quarters.

The main entrance to the fire station is highly visible from Foothill Road and is protected by an entrance
canopy. Within the entrance vestibule is an assessable restroom that patrons can use before entering the
building. As the public enters the building there is a TMFPD feature wall and information counter. Above
the feature wall is a dormer for letting daylighting in, creating a sense of a secure space. The Captain and
Battalion Chief offices flank the public entrance so people entering the building will be attended to
immediately. The residential corridor has two direct connections to the apparatus bay for efficient flow
during emergency calls. At the transition and end of the corridor are views to the exterior, also allowing for
daylighting into the circulation space.

The apparatus bay north sectional doors have full vision glazing that allow for visibility of the apparatuses
from Foothill Road and to supply the apparatus bay with plenty of north daylighting. The south access has

Page 4



garage doors with two of the panels being glazed. Being a deep double bay station, a clerestory is
provided that runs the length of bays to allow for daylight penetrating evenly.

A 34-foot tall training tower with three landings will be located on the southern side of the site and used for
training purposes, with the top landing platform being constructed for rappelling. The tower is
unconditioned and open air with operable screen wire meshed openings to keep out birds and/or large
pests.

Lighting
A photometric plan is provided in the map appendices. Pole lighting will be limited to 12-feet tall and
shielded, in accordance with “dark sky lighting” requirements.

Trash Enclosure

The screened trash/generator enclosure will be located on the southwest side of the building,
approximately 20 feet from the apparatus bay. The trash enclosure walls will house two (2) 96-gallon trash
and one (1) 96-gallon recycling totes (total of three 96-gallon totes). It is assumed that the trash enclosure
walls will be approximately 8 feet high and include access through a 6-foot screened gate located on the
east side at the concrete apron. The adjacent enclosure will house a 1000 gallon (750/250 Desil/Gas)
refueling station. It is assumed that the trash enclosure walls will be approximately 6 feet high. Waste
Management will access the site off of Broken Hill Road for service. TMFPD personnel will roll the bins
curbside for pick up off of Broken Hill Road. The trash enclosure will be used for typical office waste
supplies such as paper and plastic materials, food waste generated during kitchen meal preparation, as
well as other basic everyday items used at the fire station while fire personnel are housed at the facility.

Page 5

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14



g abey

DOORS WATH TWO y SEAM - METAL A

PANELS,

S o

T

ELEVATION - SOUTH

R weTE

(: ) ELEVATION - WEST
ML W Ve

tsk

EOUTNILL

SROKEN HILL ]




L obed

ELEVATION - NORTH

BoNL e

TN COPPERSTONE ATLAY BRXCHK

(:)ELEV»\‘HON-E&ST
A W eTE

ENE]

QIEM HILL RO



g abeyd

S

(:)S{TEPLAN-‘I’RNNING?OWER
MuD Tewd

R PLAN - SUP

TRAINING Ti E
ASAULE wre T

() TRAINING TOWER SOUTH ELEVATION @TRA!NINGTGWER WEST ELEVATION
GCALE Ve I BOAL e FE
FOOTHILL RD & SROKEN HILL 30

tsk




OFFICE SPACES
LIVING SPACES

I:I CIRCULATION SPACES

O
m™~®
—;——_—%
3

®

-

i
B
' “ -—— =y m
'
“ r nﬂﬂgﬂ
I} y I [ —
b\ | = ﬂ
Py 3 S— V. Feasse - = F
| Wi | i o m
i ; et o
Lo e S e 1 et lated
& | - L
T i 3 — .
| v : ! -]
SR i [P T R ey e b .L:.fliu..
I 11
|
L] i
= (I mm_m_o ofH wnu_ ! iy
é il iff: b I
-l-l__l_||| : : _M_ .E.. ; DI_. o mum
(I | _ _

tsk

Page 9



Landscape

Twenty percent of the developed site is required to be landscaped. The proposed developed project area
consists of +98,010 square feet, resulting in £17,598 square feet of required landscaping. Landscaping will
primarily be drought tolerant plantings. A limited amount of turf will be provided on the west side of the
building. The recommended turf is a blend of Kentucky bluegrass that is a drought-tolerant blend with rich
color and high disease resistance. The Kentucky bluegrass is a self-repairing turf that allows for wear
recovery and endurance.

Trees will be planted on the north and west sides at approximately 50’ on center. Proposed species of
trees will be Marshall's Seedless Ash, Honey Locust, with smaller accent trees of Choke Cherry, Redbud,
and fruit tree varieties. Evergreens to be proposed will be Austrian Pine, Incense Cedar, and Juniper.
There will also be a mix of shrubs and perennials. Native shrubs, grass, wildflower, and native seed
grasses will also be provided. Detention basins will be seeded with native grasses. Rock mulch will be
provided in specific areas. A number of areas will receive decomposed granite mulch (DG) ground cover,
particularly along the westem and eastern edges of the developed site.

Signage
Signage for the project will comply with Washoe County standards. Signage will be complimentary to the
architectural style of the building and will be oriented toward Foothill Road.

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Page 10



1| abed

1/2" STAINLESS STEEL PLATE WITH l
BACKLITLETTERS [T i

e

BOARD FORMED CONCRETE BISE\‘\

@Mouumsmsncm ELEVATION - FRONT | | ey
oy el

BOARD FORMED CONCRETE BASE

(:}MONUMENT SIGN ELEVATION - BACK L_‘-—'
DOME AT e T

FOOTHILL RE 8 BROKEN HILL RD.




Z| obed

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

709 Vaze Verts Cout
Hencmeson Ny 22014

Prons PO 436 3000
302960 509
LARGE EVERGREEN CONIFER TREE

e i b
HIETTRE

SMALL EVERGREEN TREE

LARGE DECIDUOUS TREC

FLOWERING ACCENT TREE

LARGE SCREEN SHALB
NATIVE SHAUBS
PERENNIALS AND GRASSES,
VERY LOVI DENSITY.
[ £ sezoes
: b o e o0,
g TALL BHRUDS,
wil g LOW GTHEITY PLANTING
- ;" ROCK MOCHA MULCH
1 1464 Papiniay Drive
0 ‘ Larepatna 1o ko fera Hisd
4= TALL SHAUDS MEDIUM DENSITY, phare 775,829.1364
3 ; t ‘SOME GRASSES AND FERENNIALS . 7758209384
o1 |y MOCHA ROTK MACH ey
$.2 = UNDEVELOPED PORTION OF PARCEL Brals el
s e . PAOECT ACCENT PLANTING
e 7 p FLOWERING SMAUBS & GROUND-COVERS,
[ml t PERENRIAL ACCENT. HKIH DENSITY. PLLCASE RECTELE
I8, e e LA LLL
i 1 oy
E TMFPD ARE STATION
o r LOW Z MAX REKGINT #a
e 33 Y CROUNDCOVERS
v r CODME MULCH
! E' vl FOOTHILL FD. &
‘2 | SCREEN PLANTING TALL SHAUBS € « BROKEN HILL RD.
i LARGE COBSLE MULCH RENO, NV 83511
1] SEEDEDWITH NATIVE SHRUBS
4 L GRASSES HYDROSEED MX
i o Joha 14093 30
i ! o TRUCKEE MEADOWS
1 DECOAIGSED ST FIRE PROTECTION
N DISTRICT
. > i "= & DIA COSBLED SWALE WITH
. . 2 oo BOULDER ACCENTS
’ BRUKEN L ALy - B 7« & ROUNDED GRANITE BOULDERS.
; HHLL ROAD - AbaaLIC I © OR UTWIZE SITE BOULOERS IF PRESENT
= T I— > it PR (MASS GRADING
' - e ST e e T o
PRELIMINARY PLANT LIST:
[ — TG RALE 21 SPATHG.
LAAGE CESOUOUS TREES
FRALNUS B, ") AL MNARSMALL'S SEEDLESS ASHT MIb, CAL, X WM.
GLEDSIA T, INERIAS HONEY LOCUST TMIN.CAL 30 MIN.
SMALL ACCENT TREES
PRUNUS YIRGPIANA_ CHOKE CHERAT SGAL. MULTISTEMWMETT
CEACIS CANADENSIS REDOUD T [N CAL Ecd
P AUSTRIAN PINE 107 LN, HEIGHT AT AN
s
LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS CALOUEDWS DECURRENS  INCONSE CEDAR 0N NEGHT 20N
TCTAL DEVELOPMENT SITE AREA 71265 5.5, o, SHAUDD Sl . Ay EIcHT o
LANDSCAPE REDUIRED (2U%) 14 X525F, P ——
BUDDLOA D.'ROTAL RCDX DUTTCRFLY BUSH S0AL
PROVIDED {4t%) 239204 S F, CHAENOMELES J, "JET 1) 3 L. QUINCE SGAL
PAVED AREA 28 2185 F. e o 2oa SCHEMATIC DESIGN
AF AREA = 720 S5 RIEES VECLUTINUR EbRianT Hr
ARKING PIIOVIDED = 13 SPACES PRUNYS DESSEVI SAID CHERRY SOAC
TREES REQUIRED 1050 LF OF STREET FRONTAGE (310 LF.}#10 TREES ::u;;}:g:\lvlﬁ‘\r\.u m}fﬁ%@ — ?:t
106 PARRPIL|swACE SN2 THEES| MA;OGFIIA REPENS CREEPING MAHONIA SGAL
0 LE OF RESIDENTIAL ADIACENCY CHTLI T PEROVSIA A BLUE SPIRE RUSSIAN SAG QAL
TQTAL TREES REQUIRED 25 CARYOTERIS 0LUC ST SARALA. TaAC
TOTAL TREES PROVIOED 35 o [ oo
PAUNUS AMDERSGHI DESCRY PLACH 1aAL 5
ORMON TEA 16 H
PURSHA TRIDENTATA TERBRUSH 16AC H
ARTEMISIA TRIOENTATA o BASE 1 oA «
ERIOCOMA UNOELLATLIS SINPUR FLw DUCKWIEAT] AL H
PINUS M. ERERWOO0 COMPACT  Brl MAHG ANE SGACorban ¥ oeaton
FERENNALS PRELIMINARY
Ehe e e
HRSaEn, S 1EE
COMLON Y V. TACHTI 1GAL X
wqm W 1680 Y
1GAL
0 AR o {820
MEUCHERELLA X H, FIRXFROST  GORAL BELLS. 16AC W A
JASCANTHUS ADIAGO" VADENMAAORASS  1GAL ——

L1.1




Infrastructure

Sanitary sewer will be provided by Washoe County. A proposed 6-inch sewer lateral will serve the fire
station. The lateral will connect to the existing 10-inch sanitary sewer main in Foothill Road, beneath the
proposed public parking driveway. The 6-inch lateral will extend south and will terminate with installation of
a cleanout southeast of the proposed public parking lot.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) will be the water purveyor for the project. An existing 12-inch
transite water line is located on the west side of Broken Hill Road. All water line services for the project will
be serviced from this main line. A 3-inch domestic water line is proposed to serve the fire station with a 4-
inch meter and backflow preventer and will service the property from the south side of the building.

Storm water peak runoff flows will be routed through an on-site storm drain system from the proposed roof
drains and catch basins around the entire base the building to capture excess storm water runoff. There
will also be on-site drainage swales graded along the site to capture excess runoff. The excess runoff will
be collected in an on-site detention basin located to the south-east of the site. The basin will detain the
storm water runoff flow and allow flow to exit through the storm drain outlet structure. The outlet structure
has been designed to discharge the detained flows to the drainage channel south of the site at a controlled
rate designed to limit the overall site discharge to the existing undeveloped levels. Because the excess
flows will be detained prior to release, the system will provide a storage safety factor benefit to the existing
public storm water drainage system, as well as providing a technique to pre-treat the storm water and
enhance total suspended solids removal prior to releasing it into the public storm channel system, resulting
in improved water quality. Therefore, the site can be developed as planned with respect to storm water
drainage without adverse impact to adjacent or downstream properties or public storm drain facilities.

The outlet of the detention basin, and all other incidental site storm water flows will discharge into an
existing channel traversing the southern portion of the parcel. There is an existing 15-foot wide storm
drainage easement that will remain in place which serves both this parcel as well as flows from Broken Hill
Road through an existing culvert.

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Page 13



TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

e s ¥ e
View from Broken Hill Road faci

Hif S
ng east.

—— e e ey —————— e

View from Foothill Road facing south.

Figure 9 - Site Photographs

Page 14



TMFPD FIRE STATION #14

Figure 10 - Zoning Map

Page 15



Special Use Permit Findings
Prior to approving an application for a special use permit, the Planning Commission, Board of
Adjustment or a hearing examiner shall find that all of the following are true:

(a) Consistency. The proposed use is consistent with the action programs, policies, standards and
maps of the Master Plan and the applicable area plan;
The property is part of the Southwest Truckee Meadows Area Plan. The proposed special use permit is

consistent with the following Southwest Truckee Meadows Area Plan policies:

SW.2.5 Any lighting proposed must show how it is consistent with current best practice “dark-sky”
standards. In subdivisions established after the date of final adoption of this plan the use of streetlights will
be minimized.

SW.2.6 Street lights, security lights, and other outdoor lighting should be powered by solar or other
renewable energy sources whenever possible.

SW.2.8 All landscape designs will emphasize the use of native vegetation, with non- native and atypical
vegetation integrated sparingly into any landscaped area.

SW.10.3 The granting of special use permits in the SWTM planning area must be accompanied by a finding
that no significant degradation of air quality will occur as a result of the permit. As necessary, conditions
may be placed on special use permits to ensure no significant degradation of air quality will occur. The
Department of Community Development will seek the advice and input of the Air Quality Division of the
Department of Health in the implementation of this policy.

SW.11.1 Development proposals, with the exception of single family homes and uses accessory to
single family homes, within the Southwest Truckee Meadows planning area will include detailed soils and
geo-technical studies sufficient to:

a. Ensure structural integrity of roads and buildings.
b. Provide adequate setbacks from potentially active faults or other hazards.
c. Minimize erosion potential.

SW.20.1 In order for the Washoe County Planning Commission to recommend the approval of ANY
amendment to the SWTM Area Plan, the following findings must be made:

a. The amendment will further implement and preserve the Vision and Character Statement.

b. The amendment conforms to alt applicable policies of the SWTM Area Plan and the Washoe
County Master Plan, and the Regional Water Management Plan.
€. The amendment will not conflict with the public’s health, safety or welfare.

Page 16

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14



(b) Improvements. Adequate utilities, roadway improvements, sanitation, water supply, drainage, and
other necessary facilities have been provided, the proposed improvements are properly related to
existing and proposed roadways, and an adequate public facilities determination has been made in
accordance with Division Seven;

Sanitary sewer will be provided by Washoe County. A proposed 6-inch sewer lateral will serve the fire
station. The lateral will connect to the existing 10-inch sanitary sewer main in Foothill Road, beneath the
proposed public parking driveway. The 6-inch lateral will extend south and will terminate with installation of
a cleanout southeast of the proposed public parking lot.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) wilt be the water purveyor for the project. An existing 12-inch
transite water line is located on the west side of Broken Hill Road. All water line services for the project will
be serviced from this main line. A 3-inch domestic water line is proposed to serve the fire station with a 4-
inch meter and backflow preventer and will service the property from the south side of the building.

Storm water peak runoff flows will be routed through an on-site storm drain system from the proposed roof
drains and catch basins around the entire base the building to capture excess storm water runoff. There
will also be on-site drainage swales graded along the site to capture excess runoff. The excess runoff will
be collected in an on-site detention basin located to the south-east of the site. The basin will detain the
storm water runoff flow and allow flow to exit through the storm drain outlet structure. The outlet structure
has been designed to discharge the detained flows to the drainage channel south of the site at a controlled
rate designed to limit the overall site discharge to the existing undeveloped levels. Because the excess
flows will be detained prior to release, the system will provide a storage safety factor benefit to the existing
public storm water drainage system, as well as providing a technique to pre-treat the storm water and
enhance total suspended solids removal prior to releasing it into the public storm channel system, resulting
in improved water quality. Therefore, the site can be developed as planned with respect to storm water
drainage without adverse impact to adjacent or downstream properties or public storm drain facilities.

The outlet of the detention basin, and all other incidental site storm water flows will discharge into an
existing channel traversing the southern portion of the parcel. There is an existing 15-foot wide storm
drainage easement that will remain in place which serves both this parcel as well as flows from Broken Hill
Road through an existing culvert.

(c) Site Suitability. The site is physically suitable for the type of development and for the intensity of
development;

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) Station #14 currently resides at 12300 Old Virginia
Road, and has for the past £30 years. The existing site, which was once considered rural, is now
surrounded on all sides by commercial and retail development.  The proposed Fire Station #14 has been
sited to provide a better location to respond to the volume and type of calls that are required to provide the

Page 17

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14



needed service in southern Washoe County. This location serves the need for this region and its
anticipated growth. This site has indirect access to Virginia Street (main north/south connector in Reno),
and clear freeway access to U.S. 395/580, to aide in response times for emergency calls that are of a
greater distance.

The property is surrounded by residential development to the north and west and by vacant land to the east
and south. Fire trucks will leave the apparatus bay from Foothill Road. Upon returning, the trucks will
access the site off of Broken Hill Road. Foothill Road will be equipped with a standalone flashing light and
signage warning vehicles of emergency vehicle crossing.

(d) Issuance Not Detrimental. Issuance of the permit will not be significantly detrimental to the public
health, safety or welfare; injurious to the property or improvements of adjacent properties; or
detrimental to the character of the surrounding area;

The proposed use as a fire station is needed to keep up with the community’s growth and need for adequate
fire response times. Foothill Road is designated as a Collector roadway and has capacity to handle the
additional traffic, which will be limited. Fire trucks will exit the apparatus bay onto Foothill Road, and will be
equipped with a standalone flashing light and signage warning vehicles of emergency vehicle crossing. Fire
trucks will enter the fire station off of Broken Hill Road. The proposed project is not anticipated to have any
detrimental impacts to the public, health, safety or welfare. The proposed project will serve as a community
amenity that will provide fire protection to south Washoe County.

(e) Effect on a Military Installation. Issuance of the permit will not have a detrimental effect on the
location, purpose or mission of the military installation.

There are no known military installations in the vicinity of the site. The proposed request will not affect the
location, purpose and mission of the military installation.

Page 18

TMFPD FIRE STATION #14



Washoe County Development Application

Your entire application is a public record. If you have a concern about releasing
personal information, please contact Planning and Development staff at 775.328.3600.

Project Information

Staff Assigned Case No.:

Project Name:

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Fire Station #14 Special Use Permit

Project
Description: developed in the MDS zoning district.

Request for a Special Use Permit to allow a safety service use (fire station) to be

Project Address: Southeast corner of Foothill Road and Broken Hill Road.

Project Area (acres or square feet): 3 acres

Project Location (with point of reference to major cross streets AND area locator):
Southeast corner of Foothill Road and Broken Hill Road.

Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage:

044-300-19 3 acres

Assessor's Parcel No(s): Parcel Acreage:

Section(s)/Township/Range: Section 8 T18 R20

Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this application:

Case No.(s).

Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary)

Property Owner:

Professional Consuitant:

Name: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Name: CFA
Address; PO Box 11130 Address: 1150 Corporate Blvd.

Reno, NV Zip: 89520 Reno, NV Zip: 89502
Phone: 328-6123 Fax: Phone: 856-1150 Fax: 856-1160
Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us Email: afuss@cfareno.com
Cell: 313-8903 Other: Cell: 741-9563 Other:

Contact Person: Chief Moore

Contact Person: Angela Fuss

Applicant/Developer:

Other Persons to be Contacted:

Name: Washoe County Name:
Address: 1001 E. 9th Street, Bidg. A Address;

Reno, NV Zip: 89520 Zip:
Phone: 328-3636 Fax: Phone: Fax:
Email: wwardell@washoecounty.us Email:

Cell: 750-7325 Other: Cell: Other:
Contact Person: Bill Wardelt Contact Person:

For Office Use Only
Date Received: Initial: Planning Area:

County Commission District:

Master Plan Designation(s):

CAB(s):

Regulatory Zoning(s):

February 2014

A-1



Property Owner Affidavit

Applica nt Name: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

The receipt of this application at the time of submittal does not guarantee the application complies with all
requirements of the Washoe County Development Code, the Washoe County Master Plan or the
applicable area plan, the applicable regulatory zoning, or that the application is deemed complete and will
be processed.

STATE OF NEVADA

TOUNTYOFWASHOE %ES_AV I/\ACOE? H@CA{_”EA}:—

(please print name)

being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the owner* of the property or properties involved in this
application as listed below and that the foregoing statements and answers herein contained and the
information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge
and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of Planning and
Development.

(A separate Affidavit must be provided by each property owner named in the title report.)

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 044-300-19

)

14

adaress_ 100/ & 9 Staul
Heno, N £75/2

L™

Subscribed and sworn to before me this
4ith day of _/ R aecl . 226/t . (Notary Stamp)

J
_}//W Coundy - mfzuzfa/

PP : MAUREEN O'BRIEN

Notary Public in and for §aid county and state s e b e
= LI : Recorded in Washoo Gounty
My commission expires:eXJ.C. /3 Lor7 No 1412452~ Exphes Deconber 13, 2017

*Owner refers to the following: (Please mark appropriate box.)

Owner

Corporate Officer/Partner (Provide copy of recorded document indicating authority to sign.)
Power of Attorney (Provide copy of Power of Attorney.)

Owner Agent (Provide notarized letter from property owner giving legal authority to agent.)
Property Agent (Provide copy of record document indicating authority to sign.)

Letter from Government Agency with Stewardship

UDDDDﬁ

February 2014



Special Use Permit Application
Supplemental Information

(All required information may be separately attached)

Chapter 110 of the Washoe County Code is commonly known as the Development Code.

Specific
references to special use permits may be found in Article 810, Special Use Permits.

1. What is the type of project being requested?

This application is a request for a special use permit to allow a safety service use

(i.e. Fire Station) in the MDS zoning district per 110.302.5.5 of the Washoe County
Development Code.

2. What currently developed portions of the property or existing structures are going to be used with this
permit?

The 3-acre site is currently undeveloped. The northern 2 acres of the site will be
developed with a fire station.

What improvements (e.g. new structures, roadway improvements, utilities, sanitation, water supply,

drainage, parking, signs, etc.) will have to be constructed or installed and what is the projected time
frame for the completion of each?

The proposed fire station measures 10,662 square feet in size and includes firemen
living quarters, apparatus bay, training tower, parking and landscaping. The project
will tie to the 10" sewer line in Foothill Road and a 12" water line in Broken Hill
Road. Two separate parking areas will provide 10 spaces for firemen and 5 spaces
for the public. A sign will be located facing Foothill Road. The project is anticipated
to begin construction in early 2017. Final build-out is dependant on need and
funding and is anticipated to be completed within 10 years.

February 2014 Page 1
A-3



What is the intended phasing schedule for the construction and completion of the project?

Construction is anticipated to begin in March of 2017 and substantially completed
by January 1, 2018.

An additional living quarters for a second 5 man crew, is dependant on fire service
need and funding.

5. What physical characteristics of your location and/or premises are especially suited to deal with the
impacts and the intensity of your proposed use?

Foothill Road is designated a Collector roadway and has capacity for development.
Traffic is anticipated to be low with the proposed use. Station #14 was sited to
provide a better location to respond to the volume and type of calls that are required
to provide the needed service in southern Washoe County. This site has indirect
access to Virginia Street (main north/south connector in Reno), and clear freeway
access to US 395/580 to aide in response times for emergency calls that are of a
greater distance. The property is vacant on the eastern and southern sides.

What are the anticipated beneficial aspects or effects your project will have on adjacent properties
and the community?

Development of a fire station at this location will serve the fire service needs for this
region and its anticipated growth, in particular, the southern Washoe County area.

What will you do to minimize the anticipated negative impacts or effects your project will have on
adjacent properties?

Foothill Road will be equipped with a standalone flashing light and signage warning
vehicles of emergency vehicle crossing. Fire trucks will leave the apparatus bay
from Foothill Road. Upon returning, the trucks will access the site off of Broken Hill
Road. Sidewalks on Foothill Road and Broken Hill Road will be constructed for
enhanced pedestrian safety in the area. Landscaping will also be added to buffer
between existing residences to the north and west and the proposed building.

February 2014 Page 2
A4



8.

Please describe operational parameters and/or voluntary conditions of approval to be imposed on the
project special use permit to address community impacts:

Special care and thought has gone into the the design with respect to access, buffering,
landscaping and pedestrian safety. Foothill Road will be equipped with a standalone
flashing light and signage warning vehicles of emergency vehicle crossing. Fire trucks will
leave the apparatus bay from Foothill Road. Upon returning, the trucks will access the site
off of Broken Hill Road. Sidewalks on Foothill Road and Broken Hill Road will be
constructed for enhanced pedestrian safety in the area. Landscaping will also be added to
buffer between existing residences to the north and west and the proposed building.

How many improved parking spaces, both on-site and off-site, are available or will be provided?
(Please indicate on site plan.)

The project provides for a total of 15 parking stalls. Ten stalls will be located on the
western side, for firemen's personal vehicles and to serve as an overflow parking lot
for the public. Five parking stalls are located on the north side, near the public
entrance. All of the proposed parking is provided on-site.

10. What types of landscaping (e.g. shrubs, trees, fencing, painting scheme, etc.) are proposed? (Please

1.

indicate location on site plan.)

Twenty percent of the developed site is required lo be landscaped. The proposed developed project area consists
of 98,010 square feet, resulting in £17,598 square feet of required landscaping, including 35 trees. Landscaping
will primarily be drought tolerant plantings. A limited amount of turf will be provided on the west side of the building.
Trees will be planted on the north and west sides at approximalely 50' on center. Proposed species of trees will be
Marshall's Seedless Ash, Honey Locust, with smaller accent trees of Choke Cherry, Redbud, and fruit tree
varieties. Evergreens to be proposed will be Austrian Pine, Incense Cedar, and Juniper. There will also be a mix of
shrubs and perennials. Native shrubs, grass, wildflower, and native seed grasses will also be provided. Detention
basins will be seeded with native grasses. Rock mulch will be provided in specific areas. A number of areas will

receive decomposed granite mulch {(DG) ground cover, particularly along the western and eastern edges of the
developed site.

What type of signs and lighting will be provided? On a separate sheet, show a depiction (height,
width, construction materials, colors, illumination methods, lighting intensity, base landscaping, etc.)

of each sign and the typical lighting standards. (Please indicate location of signs and lights on site
plan.)

A photometric plan has been provided. Pole mounted lighting will be limited to 12
tall, shielded and pointing downward.

Signage will consist of board formed concrete base with 1/2" stainless steel plate
with backlit letters.

February 2014 Fage:s

A-5



12. Are there any restrictive covenants, recorded conditions, or deed restrictions (CC&Rs) that apply to
the area subject to the special use permit request? (If so, please attach a copy.)

[Q Yes [@ o |

13. Community Sewer

| 4 Yes | O No |

Community Water

I @ Yes | O No |
February 2014 Eages

A-6



Account Detail

Washoe County Treasurer
Tammi Davis

Page 1 of 1

\Washce Counly Treasurer

P O Box 30039, Reno MV 89520-3039
ph (775) 328-2510 fax (775) 328-2500
Email tax@washaecounty us

Account Detalil

Back to Search Results

Change of Address Print this Page I

Washt;e County__l_’_z_l_rg:_c_e! In_f_ormat_ion
Parcel ID
04430019

Last Update

| 10/14/2016 7:24:27
AM

Active
= A o
Current Owner: SITUS:
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DIST 0 FOOTHILL RD
WASHOE COUNTY NV

PO BOX 11130
RENO, NV 89520

| Taxing District
| 4000

|

Geo CD:

| Legal Description
]Township 18 Section 8 Lot A Block Range 20 SubdivisionName _UNSPECIFIED

| Tax Bill (Click on desired tax year for due dates and further details)

] Tax Year -_Net Tax Tot_al Eaicl i Penalty/Fees Interest Ba_la-l.ﬁ-c_e T)u_e
| 2016 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00 $0.00 $0.00
_| - Total

$0.00

| Important Payment Information —
| = ALERTS: If your real property taxes are delinquent, the search results displayed may not
reflect the correct amount owing. Please contact our office for the current amount due.

= For your convenience, online payment is available on this site. E-check payments are
| accepted without a fee. However, a service fee does apply for online credit card
‘ payments. See Payment Information for details.

|

]

i
|

—

_Pa\[_(.'_)_r_l_l_ine_ |

No payment due for
this account.

 $0.00

Pay By Checlk

Please make checks payable to:
WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER

Malling Address:
P.O. Box 30039
Reno, NV 89520-3039

Ovarnight Addrass:
1001 E. Ninih St., Ste D140
Reno, NV 89512-2845

574 Payment Information

D Special Asgessment
e District

A Installment Date
~ Information

i ;LAssessment' Information

The Washoe County Treasurer's Office makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and accurale information possible. No warranlies, expressed or implied, are
provided for the data herein, ils use, ar its interpretation. If you have any questions, please contact us al (775) 328-2510 or tax@swvashoecounty.us

This sile is best viewed using Google Chrome, Internel Explorer 11, Mozilla Firefox or Safari.

http:/mv-washoe-treasurer.manatron.com/Tahs/TaxQearch/AccountDetail asnx2n=044300

10/1A/7016



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
SPECIAL USE PERMIT - ELEVATIONS

=4 % 16" CONCRETE MASONRY UNITS - SPLIT FACE CREME

OVERHEAD DOORS WITH TWO p—
PANELS OF VISION GLASS, f
IN COLOR \ //—",'
{2 (B f ¥ £ 15 CONCRETE MASONRY ) N \
A AN B) / [ s precmoN swoomt L) i (D) ()
s f L CREME - e e’ b
| / I — I
] 7 PANELS,
i e

& A X1 COPPERSTONE ATLAS BRICK

4 |

-y

1 ALY
" £ 16" CONCRETE MABONRTY Iy N\, /
UNITS . PRECISION SMO0TH \ b / / 1
FACE, CREME ———————————— \ . i S g I & 5 16" COMCRETE MASONRY
Y \ LY (& i / UNITS - PRECESHIN SMOOTH
%\ \ Q- w FACE CREME
AT Y = /
A\ \ 1
Sea—ee— N oo = == e - — - — - — &%
i A
oo
— - — - — ] — ~ 2 __ EQUIPMENT PLATFORM
= — : I
— e ———. —— e  AavieE g
— - EVEI
-
e "
ELEVATION - SOUTH =,
ML fre vy
~——STANDING SEAM . METAL ROOFING. I.-—rns" CONCRETE ¥ X 168" CONCRETE MASONRY
/ CHARCOAL / MASONRY UNITS - SPLIT UNITS - PRECISION SMOOTH
/ FACE, CREME FACE, CREME
) (5)
STANDING SEAM - METAL ROOFING CHARCOAL ——._ ' | I
' ' RMBED METAL PANELS, CHARCOAL
28" AND 12" BACKLIT I.E"'TERS—\
X 16~ CONCRETE MASONAY UNITS - N
Y " X 16" CONCRETE MASONRY
TN WROOTH PRCE O N UNITS - PRECISION SMOOTH
",
A-W:\rmlmm!nmlanw—\\\ | FACE, CREME
- — o — Y - - — e — i — iy, — i — i —— - — i — YQFG)
N _A——PERFORATED RIBBED METAL PANELS e
]] 1M STEEL FRAME, CHARCOAL
===== - e e | e f— - — - — — — _oveuBrsTON g

L _ _ Seunen
_ LEvew
S S

ELEVATION - WEST

tsk

STATION #1

FOOTRILL RD 8 BROKEN HILL RD

wing
FRITISTION SATRET



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
SPECIAL USE PERMIT - ELEVATIONS

OVERHEAD DOORS WITH TWO
4 PANELS OF VISION GLASS,

8" X 16" CONCRETE MASONRY UNITS - SPLIT FACE CREME —.\ STANDING SEAM - METAL ROOFING, CHARCOAL \ CHARCOAL IN COLOR
) e \ Py N\ e
(G (D) N [c) N ( \E/J / @.
. 4XG"X16" COPPERSTONE ATLAS BRISK — T NOT Y T / ol
RIBBED METAL . CHARCOAL —\\ 'I '-\ . \ \ . F Ve RIBBED METAL PANELS, CHARCOAL
WINDOWS - RIBBED METAL PANELS, CHARGOAL ‘1 '\\ . \\ | // AP
X 16" o 1 i F| MASONRY UNITS . PRECISKON
;A‘s:fm%o.:‘,ﬁs £ = \\\\\h b, 4 /7| SMOOTH FACE, CREME
S \ -
PRECISION SMOOTH e N
FACE. CREME —_— - > \ =
i s, o .,
B, . = ) ¥ oz
N . A/eé’,—lr-—————‘,—,._,,—.@
\ 5 .
\ e

— - ey g

e e S o i . _ __APPBAYLEVEL
fr )
LI ER )

- 00T

(2L ATION - NORTH Lt

SEAM  METAL ROOFHG, CHARCOAL ~—,

X
UNITS < SPLIT FACE. CREME -—\ "
B

o~ ~, . N o~
® G : & O\ 000
ETANDING SEAM - METAL ROOFING, T H T N ‘\l -‘r’{ ~ e T
| STANDING SEAM - METAL ROOFING, CHARCOAL
|

AMBED METAL PANELS. CHARCOAL ——|\

I X1 CONCRETE MASONRY UNITE - N i , "X COPPERSTONE ATLAS BRICK

FRECISIIN SMOOTH FACE. CREME

S ———— _ _EQUIPMENT PLATFORM
= . — S

PP BAY LEVEL
- RS S

_ _teves
sy

ELEVATION - EAST e

Hag wrorw

STATION #14

S



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
TRAINING TOWER

APFARATLS BAY —\\

muwm

STANDNG SEAM - METAL RODFING, el < \

RIBBED METAL PANELS, CHARCOAL

(:) SITE PLAN - TRAINING TOWER

SCALE 1= 2040

8" X 16" CONCRETE
MASONRY UNITS - SPUT
FACE CREME
PLATFORRLEVEL 6 "~
8 —UTREES

T — o ] — DIATRORWEVELS 45
-

ey T -— %

S
_ s g

( j )TRAINING TOWER SOUTH ELEVATION ( :J TRAINING TOWER WEST ELEVATION ( : )TRAINING TOWER FLOOR PLAN - SUP
BEAE e WALE BT SCALE. = 10

tsk STATION #14
FOOTHILL RD & BROKEN HILL RD.




OWNER / DEVELOPER

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION
TMFPD - STATION #14

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
APN: 044-300-10

PRQOJECT LOCATION

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
1001 EAST 8TH STREET, BUILDING O - 2ND FLOOR
RENO, NV 89512

(775) 3266123 FHONE

(775) 3138803 MOBILE

EMAIL WWARDELL@WASHOECOUNTY.US
CONTACT SILL WARDELL

CIVIL ENGINEER

SOUTHEAST CORNER AT THE INTERSECTION OF
FOOTHILL ROAD AND BROKEN HILL ROAD
RENQ, NV 88511

SECTION/TOWNSHIP/RANGE:

WITHIN EECTION 07, T18N R20E, MDM

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

CFA INC

1150 CORPORATE BOULEVARD
RENO NEVADA 83502

(775) 856-1150 PHONE

(775) 8561160 FAX

EMAIL LJOHNSON@CFARENO,COM
CONTACT LONNIE JOHNSON, P.E

ABBREVIATIONS

GREENDESIGN LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE INC.
1484 POPINJAY DRIVE

RENO, NEVADA 85509

(775) 501-9347 PHONE

EMAIL BHATCHOO@CHARTER.NET

CONTACT: BARBARA HATCH, RLA, AS.LA

s eon goul Ogh R
saan wopl couPuN

et ACGALCATL B4 COURSL e D 01 RIS
= aSPHLT CONORLIT [

a0 DT [APANSIN JONE

0 aducen THE CPHR UEN] COmMLCTON
ARG seoRmRIL Tuay 0w
WoE APl s FLODY

NEH DI FRON TACE OF OB
™ AT NS CRATE

o« e ™

ey on e gl

or N vt 1t

wre K 1AL G Cun 1 s

uy TR [T

b waLont s LT PLW Sz
w HOICH doin " 107 o FiL1

801 oI 3 foome

e HOH UL TG 0 OSACE (AT
G COMBNION AR AL WA N s

O OB UGN & Duon

@ CAlCH st P oo

u CUC FLET P12 wett G TALLOKS R oAy
ES CUBC HET H1% LoD WO HORGIIAL

a el ou " HOKSEPOULH

o CONSIRLCION N1 0 WSOL LuwtIcE

0 CLMLRU It WYERI CCVATON
ar ERA NS HENCT " e

an (1 s La

cur LOAMIAILD ulln. e s ROy

i CACALIT wSONSY LT il ot

@ o KiowAT:

w L g

s w e

wn " P

ol LB/Cu 11 POLNGS R CU (01
cooky InC 0

2 W LoDl

o u "

wn i

wn ol

W e vecH

wy o cwl e

o e yaor w

o aou un

X D0UEL CHECK VAL ASSCu e

il st urle

B ROV LTI, DYCLE o u

tn WIETER s

o oG, o

€ Jreting
Lo D) oG
I

ont
w o

It v o ’
cr L T WU pee (e b
[t e B ORI U

[ EASENG HAE.

SHEET INDEX:

T1.0
Cc1.0
c2.0
Cz21
1

L T e
iy PLIRANE
mp v
I ez S (2
1 o A aa
ot BN o1 WaGENY
g ReEaT e
3 FamnL Cuos
o T Ao 1o
o PTuNT
05 I 0 HOR
Q0D OMHUNORLD TCAK (LM ML
Gaue WL iy
7
wow RECLACD WAICK
o ROTGACLY CORCHTIE [0X CULST
o RCATTRCED CORCHLIL PPy
w o0
w AHBLICE o ROTA
RN MNOLD
A ST

W ta
m or o O F- Y

HLCLAVID WATEW Lk
st schuLL

s

BASIS OF BEARINGS

VICINITY MAP

w01 TE SCMLE

1 HE BASIS OF

CORKCLTIONS FROM THE NORTHE

GRID G GROUNG FALTQI OF 1900147820

EARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY [S NEVADA S1ATE PLANE WEST 201

NADSRIS4) BASED UK RE AL I GIEWATIC (R 119 G OBSERYATIONS UTILIZN
EVANA COOPERA (IVE KERL TIVE NETAT!

COCREIATLS A0 BISTANCI S HERLG1: RS AT OHOUN LEVEL S45EE O A COMBINED

BASIS OF ELEVATIONS

TITLE SHEET
SITE-UTILITY PLAN
GRADING PLAN
CROSS SECTIONS
LANDSCAPE PLAN

TPV R 1100 AT PR BB LHES
W LT AREND Ea

CAUNION — NCTICE TO CONTRACTOR

| THE CONTHACTON S SPECIFIGALLY CAUTIDNLD FA1 Itk
'GN_AND/OR ELEVAION ILTIES. AN

s XS
wmm‘lon %o 16 B REVED ON A5 BENG BXACT 0R

I SHAL W THE SONTUCIORS RLSPONSEIY 10 WAIFY

:mrrlnus EUSTNG I AL Ao TR IFoRATON
NOTIFY THE ENGINLER
SETORE FROGEEOWG Wi CONSTRUCTIN

THE RESPONSILITY GF TnE CONIRACIOH T

Reuve o RELOGATE i EXISTAG UTLIIES s rmuns

icw o v
e Pl ACToR Sttt okTAi SPSROVALS Fhou
ENGINEER, AND THE T

w0 e G
B i)
oy WILDLD il TADRC
.,- :

THE 14ASIS OF ELEVAI IGNS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE NORTH AME RICEN
ICAL DATUM OF 13 (NAVDEE) BASED UPON CITY OF RENG

ENCIHMARK #7355 BEING A 1142 DIAMETER STEEL CAP (N THC [OP OF
CURR A) 1HE NOR] | EAST CORNER OF SDUTH VIRGINIA b 5OUTH MEADCWS
PAKKWAY W7 AN ELEVATION Of 4508 42 HELT

N1
o AGENDIES v
TS PO 70 Sarn BEUOAL D08 RE\SEATON
fon T SONIBACIOR ASSUMES AL RISC FOR MY CONSTRUC-
TION FLRFQRMCD WITH PRELIMNARY O NO D P
S STUACION [0 LS IRALAC CONIOL IN COMFO-
e W T ION OF LUTCD WNENEVER CON~
SIROCTON (& in FROAESS BT T AURLE TAVEL MR,

SPECIAL USE PERMIT
TMFPD - STATION #14
TITLE SHEET

FOOTHILL DR & BOKEN HILL RD

RENO, NV 89511

08 ne
By

AT

T1.0

WA

:

1502100
LA
fp-13-z008




" 13 3
||: 3 '
# | F d
| : | I'\¥m'n':=nlua<mw\ .
- g 3 I
jle | : - '
2 — e tha it i *
A1 H L
1
i : |+ 2 E——
| | /":/[\I - PG B AT )
| — ——
g A I : 5 b <P s bk —p =k —p o B S
i N =il e
i
B i
I

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

PROPUSED SITE ENTRANCE TO FIRE STETION
FRORQSID FIRE STATIONITRUTK DR YENAY EXIT
NOI USED

CONSTRULT LONLRETE DAIVEWAY ! SIDEWALK
CROPOSED IRE APPARATUS ONLY -NO PUBUG
ACCESS SIa1

BROPASED ASPHAI T CONCRETE SEGTION
CONSTRUCT ACA PARKING SPACE

PROPOSCO REAINING WALL

PROPOSLD SCREENING WALL

PROPGSED CMU VIALL FOR 1 AASH ENCLDSURE
AND GLNERATER

PRUPUSED FLAG POLES

EXISTING POLE ANG  INES 10 REMAIN

PROPOIED SAMDIUIL INTERCERTOR

SOLAR POVARED STAND ALONE FLASIING LIGHT

LROPOSED ‘EMERGENCY VEHICLES KEEH CLEAR” SIGN

NG| USEG

BTN * CONS TR iy WSS TO T

(775) 866 1160 FAX (776) 856-1160
WA EFARAD GO0

TR COAPTRATE I VD AEND, N HIEY

FHOMOSED FUELING TANK AND GHIU VAL .l
| \ ' [i§] IMSTALL PHOPUSLD LIGHT REF. ELEIHILAL P ANS =
M BI0RY OKAIN DETENTIIN FOUND. i
| f / A | 7| notuseo
8 (] | g
1 1 Bl P31 e e bi
| i
o s | ) () 5 0F PARKING SHACLS IN A RO
Al = wrovna) \ 1 g
il | | £ PARKING SUMMARY
AT 3,00 ACRES “ 1% { i) STANDARD PARKING STALL 1K} ‘
1z '] 51
a 8
( | N i % 2 HANOIGA® PARKING STALL 2
2 H 1
~ ﬂ i l§ | 1
e £ [ TOTAL PARKING 1§ |
[ttt £ | ) H
? £ E I ‘
2
4 |
=
ok | |
< T J l
e ]
e \ 1
T® 00 - |- -1
<
fred
L I
! g I
i ! l I
a - ] P Lkl L e i
2! | BRI UIR. | o guner _
3| [ L e === ._..._wfll.L._.._.._J ,
| [res— 1
A —_— — _— —_— — —_— —_— _q, —_—  — —_— —_— -
jg [ ] -8l 1
|(P oS e e ‘._
1 ® IRIGATION WATER \ = =
1 e ey - ——— g | CAUTION — NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR
3 [ : - - —BROKENHILL. REGAD =PUBLIC- - - - == 2 1N CONDUSIOR 1S SPEGHEALLT CAUILAED. fhul T
! [ 1 i~ PUBLIC I P e
| ) i :
| ¥, L 1lk | (50 ROW PER TM 61) i 2 o T
| i + ‘ . R . < S—— - - i TN 3 Mo 0 B LD Ov AS BInG skt on
‘ . S, || U e S s o e —— e T e =
. - s, | — e 2l SHAL BE WE CONBACIORS REPONSISUIY 10 VERIFY
1 it
L1 o DO s ek e A B her
4 - e e R S
; = T Ao DRSS BN
i : EmSE Sh LT TG BT o
Wl Ty i(:\ SR SRS - SoNRUEEN
I - i i -'_]-- S s 1 N SPONSILI OF Tt CONTRACIOR 10
i " L LEGEND Bl S PRSI CvmCon )
| ST SRS AR U (O M S,
| | : FE AN ST s e
| — AR S L AT
SITE UTILIW PLAN N L f el D COLCMLTE ~F =y = PROEOO DRARADE BASLE 4 THE CONTRACTOR ASSUMES ALL RISK ;og ﬁNV mnmc_
- r TION PERFORMED AITH PRELIMINANY OR NOK
SCALE 1" =20 ; - ‘ EHOPOSED LANDSCARE AREA | ] PROPUSED 03 PATH Ruce WL S T SO OF B WeNVER e
. o STRUCTION IS IN PROGRLSS WITHIN THE PUBLIC TRAVEL WAY.
i PROPUSED ASFHALT CONCRETE
P! . - - ol e LT

D e e e

SPECIAL USE PERMIT
TMFPD - STATION #14
SITE & UTILITY PLAN

FOOTHILL RD. & BROKEN HILL RD.

Cc1.0

RENO, NV 88511

L

neie

ifh
e




| i ' . N
# % ! S
| [ | x T
i L ' T
If* . - ;-
M ratY o l . b
‘ s mase
o =
3
| ¥

:r___.!'r."'.

=

._/zt

= =]

.

/g

=

T —

Z-

T e— o

s s S & S . s & S 13 SR Y T e 40 Y ¥

: : e e R e
iy | “BROKEN HILL ROAD -PUBLIC -
| (80 ROW PER TV 851)
SPE § SRR —————— L L%
N ———
- = sy e = — =~ 2
N \\55‘:%
N -z:;n:%—
) N IZ02EF
S «gQre

GRADING PLAN
SCALE 1"=20'

LEGEND

I TG 21 DA E

RS | IR B

GRAPHIC SCALE

DRAWING SCALE
24" ¥36™: 1"=20"
11"x17" : NTS

: I
!
i ]
| "
o
l S
AN, T,
)
i .
R ”
= Swion | =
= e it
i e
I 5 gt
SARA
g
]
[ -
&
‘J| g
i i
I i 3 !
il g 3
3 (328
£z £
ili? g
8 =52
i H 5 i H
: § :
s =
|
i
i
| é
! s
L) ==
| =g z
. =% Gz«
xz iy
w5 0xg
= o ®
wa O,
= ShE 2382
[ER @
= o o LA o
— CAUTION — NCHCE 10 CONIRACTOR Zn 0O E z
|18k CONIRACTOR 15 SPLCIHICALLY CAVTIDNED ThAI IHE i e
LOCATION AND/OR ELEVATION OF EXISTING UTLMES s =]
FEATURES A5 SOHN ON THESE FLANS 15 BASED ON. TIC 2
EEST NFORUATION AVALABLE 10 1AL (NGHEEN  IhE o = T
o INFORMLTION 15 NOT 10 BE RELIED ON 45 BENG EACT DR [O
COUFLETE o
2 1) SHALL BL INE CONTRACIOR'S RESPONSIMLITY 1 VENIFY o]
THESE LOCATIONS AND/OR FLEVATIONS AT THF RO e

NECTION AND N AREAS OF POSSELE CONFLET
H
R FIND ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN. THi

i
RMATION
SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS. HL SHALL NOTIFY THE CNGINCER

WM ON
BLFDHL PNOCEEDING Wil CONSTRUCTION

3 IF SKALL bt IME RESPONSIALINY OF Ik CONIRACTOM [0
= ALL EXISTNG UTILITIES AND FEAURES

REWOVE OR RELOGATE il
WHICH CONFUICT WITH THE PROS IUPROVEMINTS. SHOWN
ON IH PUANS  CONIMACTOR SMALL OHIAIN APSROVALS FHOM

GOVERNING AGENTIES.
COMPANIES FRIOR 10 SUGH REMOVAI AND/OA. RELOCATDN

4 THE GONTRACTOR ASSUMES ALL RISK FOR AN( CONSTRUC-
TION PCRFGRUCD W1 PRELIVINARY OF NONAPFROVED PLANG

5 CONTRALION 10 PROVIDE TKAPFIC CONTHDL IN CONFOMA-
ANCE WiTh THE LATE

:
LATEST FOMON OF UUTCD WNENCYER GON~
STRUCFION IS N PROGSESS: WTHIN TH PUBLIC TRAVLL WAY.

@ iy PSR 1188 - Ahabae ety ol S L e

8y
oA 10-13-2018
s




BROKEN HILL ROAD

H

| 1 EIS | GRAE —-‘ "'-\-
| v
I |
| GRAPHIC SCALE |
[ = " |
| o rema
CROSS SECTION A-A
REF. SHEET C2.0
|
|
|
= = — B = = GRAPHIC SCALE -

T u

[ty

CROSS SECTION B-B
REF. SHEET C2.0

N \ProRe1s\13075 DO\Bg\INGAASRLE I5\C4 D — CAADING PLAN g AILSSN 10/12/2015 210 P

DRAWING SCALE

24" x36"

L3

PLANNERS » ENGINEERS = LANJSEARE ANEMITECTS

SURVEYORS * CONSTAUCTAIN thbty s

VIS CORFORATE V0 WIRG WY bs)
FTR RSB A (IO T
W EANEND S

CAUTION — NONICE 10 CONTRACTOR

1 JHE CONIRACIOK 1S SFECHICALLY CAUTONED THAI THE

ST HC
INFORUATION 1S NOT TO BE RELILD ON AS BENG EKACT OR
COUPLETE,

2T SWALL BE THE CONTRAGIOR'S RESPONSBIUTY T0 YEWY
Tuest [ocnons MoR ELEATIoks AT T Piorast

o NECTI IN F PCSSIBLE CONFLICT
PRIR 10_BECINNING CONSTRUC iON B

N IND CIES HE) b

CONDi SLETHG I TYE IELD AD THE AFORATON
SHOWN_ ON THE SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGNEER

HCSE
BEFORE PROCELDING Wi CONSTRUCTION
T S B ME RESFQUSELIY OF G CONTEACION 10
oG AL BTG MLMES b TexiLes
iC_PROFUSCD
oN e P o TAGTON. AL OBTAN ASPROVALS TAD

ACENCES, Tt SNEREER, A3 THE UMY
EFRIES FROR 10 Sutn RO 05/0% RELOSATER

RACTOR ASSUMES ALL RISK CoNSTRUC~
Tion FERFORIED. v SRELUMART BH NOMEROAD B
5 CONTRACIOR TO PRIMIDE JRA)FIC CONIROL IN CONFORU -

ANGE WiTh THE LATEST EDITION OF LUTCD WHENEYER CON~
STRUCTION 1S IN PROGRESS WITHIN THC PUBLC TRAVEL WAY

a
E
¥

o

ne

-

c: 52

= 3

X2z -
Ez —435
& y
a9 O0gg
= o8
o Wy
PR
25 ol
it o

o

o= =

aF

=

Q

o8

b
H
g
ek 1302300
L LI/AL
Lo 10-13-2016

i




4 | REDIOTHTIAL ATIATEWEY. 1 LANDSCAPE LEGEND

708 Vaile Varde Coust
Henderson Ny 83014
Bhono 702 455 3000
=
LARSE (VERCETYY DO ER THIY v
PROJEGT ACCENT . SN, EVERGAEDN THIE
PLANTING
- @ LARGE DEGIDUOUS TREE
. g FLOVE MR ASTENT TRED
N PSSk e
et dona ns
I @ LA BCAREN Ll oo B
RS oretond 13 s e
R R
] Copyngn Lia 2015
PERENNIALS AND GASSES
VERY LOW DENSIT: b s
08 WULHBOU DR ACGENTS I =
X GreenDesign
- LOW PLANTING TO R0 Landscape Architects, Inc
- m TALL SHRUBS
» 'S LOW DENSITY PLANTING
- % ROCK MOGHA MULCH Burtawrn M. Hech ASLA
A 1454 Popinjay Drive
= LOW PLANTING TO MED o
— X TALL SHRUBS MEDIUM DENSTTY, 25,8701 364
2 S
X FRIEP——. T
o s - PROJECT ACCENT PUNTING
3 N FLOWERING SHRUBS & GROUNDCQVERS
o Pt PERENNIAL ACCENT HIGH DENSITY FLEASE BECATLE
o3 ‘\{ DECOMPOSED GRANITE MULCH
Vo . “ TMEPD FIRE STATION
oE i W A AT
= = " GROUNDGOVERS
Q= & COBBLE MULGH
it FOOTHILL RD. &
=i 1 SCREEN PLANTING TALL SHRUBS & + BROKEN HILL RD
T = DHAMASE SWALE LARGE COBBLE MULCH RENO, NV 89511
=5 ™
o
=]
= SEEDES WIT = KATIVE S
8 GRALLEY HYDWIETS b
Joo No_14-085 00
B
o TRUCKEE MEADOWS
PROJECT ACCENT DECOMPGSED GRAMITE FIRE PROTECTION
e DISTRICT
3'-8'DIA COBBLED SWALE WITH
BOULDER ACCENTS

‘BROKEN HILL ROAD - PUBLIC @ S aEE BY Mo e ¥ remit
- . e ~ - (B ROV, OIR TA 5p7; 1Y MALE GEASIAS,

— . ’ -
T = = ]
FRELIMINARY PLANT LIST:
LaRGE DECIOUOUS TREES
FRAXINUS P. MARSHALL HARSHALL'S SEEDLESS ASHE MIN. CAL 30 M.
GLEDITSIA T. INERWIS HOKEY L0 AL 30 MIN,
EWALL ACCENT TREES
PRUNLIS VIRGINIANA CHOKE CHERRY 5 GAL MULTI-STENWELZ
CERCIS CANADENSIS REDBUD 2 MIN.CAL £
EVERGREEN'REES ALSTRIAN PINE A AT 20 MIN
BINUS NIG! 3
LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS mocsnnus DECURRENS INCENSE CEDAR WM ER 20 MIN
“TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SITE AREA 71265 S F. +- SNIPERUS WONGSFERMA JUNIPER e HEIGHT MIN
LANDSCAPE REQUIRED (20%) 14.252 5 F hy 5
SUPDLEIA D ROV RE BUTTERELY BUSH sGAL $ P —
LANDSGAPE PROVIDED [45%) 33234 5)Fy CHAENOMELES J JET TRAII. FLW. QUINCE SGAL 5
PAVED AREA 25278 SF SEUBLCUE N EXICANA ELOERBERRY SGAL 9 SCHEMATIC DESIGN
TURF AREA = 290 S F RIBES VELLUTIND! CURRANT 5GAL @
PARNING PEOWCET ¢ 13 SPACES PAUNUS BESSEVIL SAND cHERAY 5GAL s
TREES REGUIRED 1/50 LF OF STREET FRONTAGE (610 L F)=10 TREES RHUS “GROW LOw GROW LOA SCAL 5
10 PARKING SPAGES = 2 TREES SALVIA PACHYPHYLLA AT ECN, BORALE SAGE 3 GAL 3
/2 LF OF RESIDENTIAL ADJACENGY (260 L F j=13 iy toelp e e 36AL :
JOTACTREES RECUIRECKZ CARYOPTERIS SR ST ShiRaza 1GAL n
TOTAL 1REES PROVIDED 35 HESTER GOLD
PRUNUS ANDERSONII DESERT PEACH 16AL 5
EPHEDRA VIRIDIS MORNON TEA 1GAL 5
PURSHIA TRIDENTATA BITTERBRUSH en 5
ARTEMISIA TRIDENTATA G AL P
ERICGONUM UMBELLATUM SULPHUR FL aucxwusm GAL 3
FINUS M. *SHERWOOD COMPACT DWW, MUGHG Pl AL CR £4B 3 Shaat 1o
e o , PRELIMINARY
SEROTHERA SLEeA AN PRIVROSE 1GAL 2
CELOSPERERMA COOPERII EARGY CERLANE 2GAL F) LANDSCAPE PLAN
COREDPSIS V. ZAGREB! COREOPSIS, 1GAL »
e MANCARIN BLANKET FLW/ 1GAL 3
ACHILLEA MILLEFC RO 1GAL 3
ZAUSCHNERIA CALIFORNICA CAUFORNA FuCSHIA 1 GAT 2
ERHAERALCEA WUNROANA GRANGE GLOBE MALLOW 1 GAL 3
FEUCHERELLA X H PINK FROST  CORAL BCLLG 1AL 2 e b
HSCANTHUS ‘ADIAGC' MAIDENHAIR GRASS 1GAL 3 G

L14




tsk

709 Vauka Verda Court

Hondursan, NV 8014

phone 702 456 3000
ey 702 898 6209

whasom

Lo
o {113 220k

Amad G grasg i

) PLeasE RECYCLE

TMFPD FIRE STATION

FOOTHILL RD, &
BROKEN HILL RD.
RENO, NV 83511

FOOTHILL DRIVE

S b VeDH N0

-

TRUCKEE MEADOWS
‘ FIRE PROTECTION

DISTRICT

i [ 1
.A | BROKEN HILL DRIVE
= e | - N 7
ks 1
5 — | I |
| | |
Ao . ITI[ 1 |
i S v aursor
[0 f—— GHTNG X SITE PHOTOMETRIC FPLAN _‘/?‘\
1 AL Teie W I\E’_‘-j

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

CQUIERE L OuTG CONTREL SCHEMATIC NOTES: vt
| LIGHTNG CONTACTORIS) SHALL BE 204 600v, 3-POLE NEMa ENCLOSED AR & oy
1 TME CLOCK SHALL BE INTERMATIC * ET 7820 OR EQUIVALENT
3 PHOTOCELL SHALL BE INTERMATIC * K4I00/4300 OR EQUIVALENT

4 LOCATE QUTSIDE LISHTNG CONTROLS (HOA, CLOCKS AND CONTACTORS) " ;
ADJACENT TO FEEDING ELECTRICAL PANEL  LOCATE PHOTOCELL QUTSIDE

S i
QUTSIDE LIGHTING CONTROL ~ SITE PHOTOMETRIC
P 7ay PLAN

I
Lo ET=T1 \u=

[
e

E2.02




ATTACHMENT 84 #2

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
e District Organization Update

FIRE
FROTECTION DISTRICT

Estimated

Job Description and Function Start Date
Fleet Manager This single-position class is characterized by the On Board |Promotion of Candidate has completed.
responsibility to manage the County Fire Department's fleet
of vehicles. Under general direction plans, organizes,
manages, and directs the operation of the Fire District’s
vehicle fleet services, which includes the fire apparatus,

vehicle and equipment maintenance and repair shop

Mechanic Under general supervision, performs journey level On Board |[Selection of Candidate has completed.
mechanical work repairing and maintaining fire apparatus
and related equipment; and performs related work as
required.

Mechanic / Logistics Assistant |Under supervision, performs servicing and lubrication On Board [Selection of Candidate has completed.
tasks on automotive and diesel equipment; performs
basic field repairs on equipment related to servicing and
preventive maintenance functions; and performs related
work as required. Directly assists the Chief Officer in
Charge with the inventories for materials and tools as
well as delivering/picking up supplies.

Human Resource Administrator Under the direction of the Fire Chief, performs high level Nov 2016 Selection of Candidate has completed.
human resource/personnel work; develops and maintains a
comprehensive District human resource program including
employee relations and negotiations, recruitment and
selection, classification and compensation, employee
development, performance management, compliance, benefit
administration, staffing, training, risk management and
payroll. Plans, develops and trains on human resource
policies and programs; develops goals and objectives;
gathers trends and analyzes data; and performs related work
as required.

Page 1 of 2



WASHOE COUNTY, NV
FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

ATTACHMENT 84 #2

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
District Organization Update

Job Description and Function

Estimated
Start Date

Notes

Chief Fiscal Officer

Under the direction of the Fire Chief, serves as the chief
fiscal officer of the District and provides for the financial
integrity of the District, protects District assets, and
maintains accurate financial and accounting records;
organizes and directs the Finance division, including
accounting, purchasing, accounts payable, and accounts
receivable; represents the District on a variety of matters
including labor negotiations; recommends and manages
fiscal policies; assists the Fire Chief with development of the
District’s budget, budget management, long term financial
planning and performs related work as required.

Jan 2017

Training and experience evaluations will occur the
week of November 7. Selection of the candidate is
expected mid-December.

Division Chief of Operations

Under the direction of the Fire Chief, plans, supervises and
coordinates the activities of the Operations Division or
Support Division and performs administrative duties as
required. Overseas the daily operations of engine company
personnel. Provides highly responsible and complex staff
assistance to the Fire Chief. Individuals in this classification
serve as Duty Chief on a rotating basis and are subject to
emergency call while on and off duty. Division Chiefs are
also subject to staff rotational assignment.

Apr 2017

Recruitment of the position will be contracted to
ESCI - and positions of Division Chief of
Operations and Division Chief of EMS will occur
concurrently.

Division Chief of EMS

Under the direction of the Fire Chief, plans, supervises and
coordinates the activities of the EMS Division and performs
administrative duties as required. Overseas the EMS
operations of the District. Provides highly responsible and
complex staff assistance to the Fire Chief. Individuals in this
classification serve as Duty Chief on a rotating basis and are
subject to emergency call while on and off duty. Division
Chiefs are also subject to staff rotational assignment.

Apr 2017

Recruitment of the position will be contracted to
ESCI - and positions of Division Chief of
Operations and Division Chief of EMS will occur
concurrently.

Page 2 of 2



CKEE ME
St {

At L

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FiRE
PROTECTION DISTHICY

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MONTHLY REPORT

September 2016

The following report contains non-audited figures based on data extracted from the
District’s incident reporting system and Washoe County E-Comm Dispatch.

Monthly Call Volume by Station & Type

STATION/DISTRICT
& o ¢
Fd ;SQ" & S $ s & &
§ & & ~§J fvgo & & Qé’
g & K& §-’ & sy oo
§ o2 Fp ¢ S
A O
INCIDENT TYPE L & S & & & & Srora

Structure Fire 1 [
Wildland Fire 2 | 2Ry
Vehicle/Trash/Other Fire 2l 2 a9
Emergency Medical Services 57| 46) 140} 15] 88] 38 71 10} 291 11 6 - 447
Motor Vehicle Accident 2 8l 14 6 2 3 4 1 | 2 ] 44
Rescue 1 |
Haz-Mat/Hazardous Condition 3 1 4 31 2 | 3 2 19
Public Assist 4 1l 16 13 2 l 2 3 3 45
Good Intent Call 7| e 42| 2| 24 S| i 4 3| 15| 4 | 123
Activated Fire Alarm 6] 5 1 8 1 4] 4 2 1 [ 32
Severe Weather Related i )
Other ] C ]
SEPTEMBER 2016 TOTAL - 19] 147 13 4] 732
SEPTEMBER 2015 TOTAL 13] 26 134 21| 15] 759

In the month of September, 2016 the TMFPD responded to 732 incidents, for a cumulative total
of 9,283 incidents in the past twelve months.

AGENDA ITEM #8B

1|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

Fire Loss to Value Comparison — September 2016

September 2016 Structure Fires
Fire Loss/Save s
4 .
3
7 .
|
1 o
0 -
cooneeeevewey.
5 2 0 L8 &L LT LA
S-S
Total Structure Value: $ 14,032 . Rolling Year Statistics
Total Structure Conserved: $ 6,445 TMFPD responded to 2 structure
Total Structure Loss $ 7,587 fires in September 2016, for a total
of 30 structure fires in the past year. m Structure Fires

*Includes incidents only in Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. Mutual Aid and Automatic Aid calls are excluded from this graph.

Wildland Fires - September 2016

One Year History: Wildland Fire Acres Burned
1400 ——m————— — —— -—
1248.45
1200 — — — — — —
1000 -

800 — ——— —
600 — — - —

® Wildland Fire

400 - —_— 305— Acres Burned
200 "_0 _—o _ 0 _1 0 | 02 02 I “ 6.8.'5—05__
0 1l L | — T | Pt p— T i — T i T =1 = — - T i 1

HoH P e e R R R N I
oF <O QO \,b? Q% é\‘b Y‘Q Q\@ \Q-Q W Y”&o c:,OQ

In the month of September 2016, .5 acres were burned. As of September 30, 2016, 1623.85 burned in the
past twelve months.

2|Page




Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

Mutual Aid Given and Received - September 2016

Mutual Aid Given & Received by Department

DEPARTMENT AID GIVEN | AID RECEIVED

Bureau of Land Management 0 1
California Department of Forestry 1 0
Carson City FD 0 0
Eastfork FD 0 0
Nevada Division of Forestry 0 1
North Lake Tahoe FPD 0 0
North Lyon County FPD 0 0
Pyramid Lake Fire 2 2
Reno FD 5 1
Reno/Sparks Indian Colony 4 0
Sierra County, CA 0 0
Sparks FD 6 4
Storey County FPD 0 2
Truckee Fire, CA 0 0
US Forest Service 1 1
TOTAL 19 12

The TMFPD received aid 12 times from neighboring agencies and provided aid 19 times based
on NFIRS reporting standards. Additional responses to/from the TMFPD may have occurred but
did not meet the NFIRS definitions for automatic or mutual aid. Only incidents where
representatives from two or more entities are on scene together qualify as aid given or received
by an agency. When one entity handles an incident for another jurisdiction without assistance,
the incident is not classified as auto/mutual aid according to NFIRS, and neither are responses
where one entity cancels its response prior to arriving at the incident.

3/Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

SIGNIFICANT INCIDENTS

Significant incidents for the month are reported below. The number of incidents reported in the
Call Volume Table may not exactly match the narrative provided below; i.e. a structure fire that
is limited to a small out building is reported in the Call Volume, however it does not warrant
inclusion below.

Station by Commission District

Station District Commissioner
Station 13 — Stead o 5 Herman
Station 14 — Damonte Ranch 2 Lucey
Station 15 — Sun Valley 3/5 Jung / Herman
Station 16 — East Washoe Valley 2 Lucey
Station 17 — Spanish Springs 4 Hartung
Station 18 — Cold Springs 5 Herman
Station 30 — West Washoe Valley 2 Lucey
Station 35 — Mogul 5/1 Herman/Berkbigler
Station 36 — Arrowcreek 2 Lucey
Station 37 — Hidden Valley 2/4 Lucey/Hartung
Station 39 — Galena Forest 2/1 Lucey/Berkbigler

Stations are predominantly within the Commissioner’s District as listed above.

Incidents:

Structure Fire — Station 15 (Sun Valley); 228 W. 7™ Avenue
Commission District 3
2 in/2 out Required

On September 1* at 14:15 hours, crews responded to a structure fire on West 7th Ave. Upon
arrival crews found a single family trailer home significantly involved. A primary search was
completed as it was unknown if the home was occupied, as a single vehicle was parked in the
driveway. It was determined that the occupants were not at home at the time of the fire. The fire
was contained to the trailer with no extension to the wildland. The cause of the fire is under
investigation. No injuries were reported during this incident. The home was a total loss.

4 TM Engines, 1 TM Safety Officer and 1 TM Battalion Chief responded to this incident.

4|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

MVA with Extrication — Station 37 (Hidden Valley); 1-80 Freeway Eastbound between
Patrick and USA Parkway

Rescue Required

Automatic Aid Received from Storey County

On September 13" at 06:05 hours, crews responded with SCFD E75 and R75 to an extrication
accident. SCFD E75 was first on scene. TMFPD units were delayed due to the traffic back-up
on I-80 as a result of the accident. One patient was extricated from his vehicle by SCFD. E37
arrived and assisted with patient care and scene clean-up.

1 TM Engine, 1 SCFD Engine and 1 SCFD Rescue vehicle responded to this incident.

Structure Fire — Station 243 (Wadsworth) — 470 Railroad Circle, Wadsworth, NV 89442
2 in/2 out Required
Automatic Aid Provided to Pyramid Lake Fire

On September 23" at 10:42 hours, crews responded to a working structure fire off of Railroad
Circle in Wadsworth. The first arriving unit reported smoke coming out of all sides of an
abandon residential structure. The fire had spread into two rooms and was knocked down by the
first two arriving engine companies. Once the fire was knocked down a primary and secondary
search was completed. The inside of the structure was checked for fire extension and the scene
was turned over to Pyramid Lake Fire for investigation.

2 TM Engines, 1 TM Water Tender, 1 TM Battalion Chief, 1 TM Safety/Training Officer, 1
SCFPD Engine, 1 SCFPD Rescue Unit, 1 NLFPD Engine and PLVFD, responded to this
incident.

5/Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

Training

Single Engine Company Drills
TRIAD Hazmat Training

Fire Vaccination Training

CPR Refresher

Structure Fire Computer Simulations
Water Supply Training

e © o o e @

Accomplishments

Annual Flu Vaccinations

Hosting TMCC Student Ride Alongs

Hosted Dispatch Employee Ride Along

USFS Funeral Procession

Fire Prevention Demonstration: Just Kidding Learning Center
Inspected and Accepted New Tender Cab and Chassis

Hydro Test SCBA Cylinders

Completed Electrical Project for Station 17 (Spanish Springs)
Completed Annual Zoll Monitor Testing

Serviced AEDs for Volunteers

® ¢ ®© o © o © © o o

6|Page



d"\E E M, E4 00;"
: (y

S
N '_4—4'."3'4\

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICTY

VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT

September 2016

The following report contains non-audited figures based on data extracted from the
District’s incident reporting system and Washoe County E-Comm Dispatch.

Monthly Call Volume by Station & Type
STATION/DISTRICT

&
& de
g o £ ¢
S & &£ §F o
2w L8 S P S
& & S & &
¢ & & & £ o
0
| 1
1 1
3 | 10 16
3 — 2
0
0
i 3
5 5
=
0
.
0
0 0 3 21 0 31

In the month of September, 2016 the Truckee Meadows Volunteers responded to 31 incidents.
(Wadsworth Volunteers operate under Pyramid Lake Volunteer Fire Department. Incidents listed
for the Wadsworth Volunteer Station 225 are specific to responses in the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District boundary, and do not include responses into tribal territory.)

AGENDA ITEM #8C

1|Page



SIGNIFICANT INCIDENTS

Significant incidents for the month are reported below. The number of incidents reported in the
Call Volume Table may not exactly match the narrative provided below; i.e. a structure fire that is
limited to a small out building is reported in the Call Volume, however it does not warrant inclusion
below.

Station by Commaission District

Station District Commissioner
Station 13 — Stead 5 Herman
Station 14 — Damonte Ranch 2 Lucey
Station 15 — Sun Valley 3/5 Jung / Herman
Station 16 — East Washoe Valley 2 Lucey
Station 17 — Spanish Springs 4 Hartung
Station 18 — Cold Springs 5 Herman
Station 30 — West Washoe Valley 2 Lucey
Station 35 — Mogul 5/1 Herman/Berkbigler
Station 36 — Arrowcreek 2 Lucey
Station 37 — Hidden Valley 2/4 Lucey/Hartung
Station 39 — Galena Forest 2/1 Lucey/Berkbigler

Stations are predominantly within the Commissioner’s District as listed above.

Incidents:

There were no significant incidents in September.

2|Page



TRAINING AND ACTIVITY

STATION

ACTIVITY

CREWS

HOURS
PER

TOTAL
HOURS

Lemmon Valley
VFD

CECBEMS Diet & Nutrition

1

CECBEMS Methamphetamine

Completed SCBA Fit Testing

Lemmon Valley VFD

Total

Palomino Valley
VED

CAPCE Allergies and Anaphylaxis Basic

CECBEMS Back Injury Prevention

CECBEMS Diet & Nutrition

CECBEMS Fundamentals of 12 Lead ECG
Operation and Interpretation

CECBEMS Non-Traumatic Chest Pain

CECBEMS Pharmacology Basic

RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety
Refresher (MOD #1)

RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety
Refresher (MOD #2)

RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety
Refresher (MOD #3)

RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety
Refresher (MOD #4)

Structure Protection Strategies in the
Wildland/Urban Interface

0.5

0.5

Wildland Practical Drill-2016

N

Workplace Stress

—

6 Minutes for Safety/Briefing

0.25

e
W

Palomino Valley VFD

Total

ooy
[ -]

Red Rock VFD

CAPCE Cardiac Emergencies Basic

CECBEMS Bleeding and Shock Basic

CECBEMS Diet & Nutrition

CECBEMS Methamphetamine

Health & Wellness

Hearing Conservation

[UNE VI e (VI [ Q.

el Bl BN RN Y

Red Rock VFD Total

Silver Lake VFD

CECBEMS Back Injury Prevention

CECBEMS Bleeding and Shock Basic

CECBEMS CNS Injuries Basic

CECBEMS Diet & Nutrition

Hydrant to tank change over practice Type 1

Hearing Conservation

— P | | |

[SEU VIS IR [NV NV (Y

— B = W == S = e N | o |

3|Page



Silver Lake VFD Total 11
High rise drill training tower with crew from
South Valleys VFD | 30. Hose pulls SCBA fire ground 3 24
communications.
South Valleys VFD Total 24
Verdi VFD CECBEMS Orotracheal Intubation 1 1
Drafting practice using the Bridge Street dry 15 6
hydrant connection.
E-351 deck gun training, water supply drill 2 6
using WT-35 to supply E-351.
Familiarization with WT-35. 1 3
Hydrant drills for new members; kelly loop,
and handline operation and movement as a hose 0.5 L5
team.
Tender training and discussion (was going to 2 6
work on drafting but canal was dry).
Water Supply 1 1
Verdi VFD Total 245

4|Page



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

e —
HAIHOE GUUNT Y, WY
FiRR
FPROTECTION QIBTRICY

STAFF REPORT Fire Chief
Board Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 Filﬁanci_
ega
Risk Mgt.
DATE: October 6, 2016 HR_
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners

FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief
Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding salary and/or adjustments to
Employment Agreement for TMFPD Fire Chief. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

This item is discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a possible salary adjustment for
TMFPD Fire Chief.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Valued, Engaged Employee Workforce
PREVIOUS ACTION

On July 19, 2016 the Board approved an annual performance evaluation for Charles A. Moore with
direction to staff to perform an analysis of salaries of other regional Fire Chiefs to determine what a fair
and balanced salary would be.

BACKGROUND

After the TMFPD Fire Chief’s performance evaluation on July 19, 2016 the Board directed the
use of staff time to compare the TMFPD Fire Chief’s salary to that of other regional Fire Chiefs
so as to determine an salary adjustment. The Board noted a gap between the TM Fire Chief’s
salary and the salaries of neighboring fire departments and expressed its desire to adjust
compensation in line with neighboring jurisdictions. Washoe County Human Resources prepared
a salary and benefit comparison on 6/28/2016 and is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A.

This information is being presented to the Board for consideration and possible further direction
to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT

Pending a decision by the Board, there is no fiscal impact; however there are sufficient funds within the
current fiscal year budget to accommodate a change in salary.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Board provide direction to staff.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion could be:

2

“I move to direct staff .....

AGENDA ITEM #9



EXHIBIT A

AGENCY
TERMS TMFPD City of Sparks City of Reno Carson City NLTFPD
Contract Period 04/02/12-06/30/18 07/01/15-06/30/17 N/A - Appointed by the N/A - Appointed by the N/A - Currently Interim
City Manager. City Manager. Falls under

Unrepresented - Falls under
Management Resolution

Management Resolution

Compensation Exempt from FSLA; not Executive positions shall be|Salaried employee Salaried employee Considered salaried. When
entitled to O/T or compensated on an annual, he goes to a fire he gets
Compensatory Time. Not |salaried rate basis. Not reimbursed a portion of the
entitled to Differential pays |entitled to Differential fire based on his hours.
or Holiday Worked. pays, O/T and/or Holiday
Worked Pay. Not subject
to deductions for absences
of less than one work day.
Salary Chief Moore current salary: [Chief Garrison: $165,400 |Chief Cochran: $174,054 |Chief Schreihans: Chief Brown: $180,590
$157,602; Annual salary  |[As of 07/11/16: $168,708 $153,915%
may be adjusted for cost of [salary + $5,000 longevity = |Range: $132,868 - Interim Chief Current:
living adjustments and $173,708 $174,054 Range: $96,197 to $146,285
merit increases up to 5% as $153,915
approved by the Board of Range: $120,000 to
Fire Commissioners. The bottom & top of range [$200,000
Current salary was adjusted to be increased by 1.75%
by 3% COLA approved by eff. 07/01/16
Board effective July 1,
2016
Holidays 11 paid holidays 11 paid holidays 12 paid holidays 11 paid holidays 13 paid holidays




AGENCY

TERMS TMFPD City of Sparks City of Reno Carson City NLTFPD
Longevity Pay N/A $5,000 net each year; paid |N/A N/A N/A

no later than the

Wednesdsay prior to

Thanksgiving.

Uniform Allowance $500/paid in January and  |$20/week / $1040 Uniform provided by City |Uniform $600 every 6 $600/year
July $1000 annualized annualized months

Cellular Phone Cell phone paid for by City Manager may approve |City issued phone $80/month Cell phone paid for by
District. reimbursement of District.

$75/month for cell phone, Employee provides device
unless employee uses city
provided cell phone.

Health Benefits District pays 100% for For employee's hired after |City pays 100% for City pays 100% for District pays 100% for
employee's and 50% for 07/01/10: City pays 100% |employee's and dependents |employee's and 50% for employee's and 85% for
dependents; Employer for employee's and 50% for dependents for the least dependents
purchased life insurance for |dependents expensive group medical
employee in the amount of insurance plan
$25,000

Retirement District pays 100% of City pays 100% of City pays 100% of City pays 100% of District pays 100% of

employee's retirement
contribution to PERS

employee's retirement
contribution to PERS.

May convert % of unused
sick leave (upon separating)
to an unfunded City
account for future medical
coverage (PEBP)

employee's retirement
contribution to PERS

employee's retirement
contribution to PERS

employee's retirement
contribution to PERS




AGENCY

TERMS TMFPD City of Sparks City of Reno Carson City NLTFPD
Pers Rate Adjustment |50/50 split 50/50 split 50/50 split by salary 50/50 split by salary Not set in stone. Practice is
reduction reduction for PERS reviewed each time and has
contribution rate been 100%; but can be
adjustments in excess of  |50/50 split
1.5%
Tuition Reimbursement |N/A 100% of tuition, lab fees, |Up to $2,000 per fiscal year [$2,500/per employee per  |N/A
required textbooks, and calendar year
course materials not to
exceed $1,500 per fiscal Includes academic fees &
year for job related courses books
approved in advance by HR
Mgr. Must complete Minimal exceptable grade =
course with a "C" or better. "B" for undergraduate work
& "C" for graduate course
work
Deferred Comp 457 plan available to Match $ for $ up to 50% of |Deferred Comp plans 457 |457 Deferred Comp plan - |457 plan available to
employee; however District [the maximum as limited by |and 401(a) available with |[Voluntary for employee employee's; however
does not contribute on Federal regulations. up to 5% City match. contributions only. District does not contribute

behalf of employee to a 457

on behalf of employee's to a
457

Annual Leave

0-3 years = 96 hours

3-5 years = 136 hours
5-10 years = 152 hours
10-15 years = 176 hours
15-20 years = 192 hours
20+ years = 200 hrs

Less than 10 yrs = 6.5 hrs
10-15 years = 7.1 hrs
15-20 years = 7.9 hours
20+ = 8.4 hours

(all bi-weekly)

Vacation leave accrued at 8
hours per bi-weekly pay
period.

0-5 years = 10 hours/month
5+ years = 14 hours/month

Maximum of 300 hour
yearly carry-over

0-5 years = 3 weeks
5-10 years = 4 weeks
10-15 years = 5 weeks
15+ years = 6 weeks

Annual Leave Payout

Lump sum payment for
unused annual leave time

Lump sum payment for
unused annual leave time

Lump sum payment for
unused annual leave time

Lump sum payment for
unused annual leave time

Lump sum payment for
unused annual leave time




AGENCY

TERMS TMFPD City of Sparks City of Reno Carson City NLTFPD

Sick Leave Sick Leave accrued at Sick Leave accrued at 5 Sick Leave accrued at 4 Sick Leave accrued at 10 |Sick Leave accrued at 12
4.615 hours per bi-weekly |hours per bi-weekly pay hours per bi-weekly pay hours per month, with days per year.
pay period period period. unlimited accrual.

Sick Leave Payout Upon death, retirement or  |Sick Leave over 400 may  [450-750 hours paid out at  [Minimum 400 hours paid  [Up to 75% if retires; up to

permanent disability of an
employee, or upon
termination after 10 years
of full-time employment,
employee shall be paid as
follows: Total sick accrued
minus 300 hours divided by
2 up to 800 hours.

be cashed out at 20% to a
max of 80 hours; Upon job
related death, 100% of sick
leave paid.

40%

751-1300 hours paid out at
60%

To be eligible employee
must not use more than 160
hours in the last 24 months
of service. (This benefit
does not apply to
employees hired after
7/1/11).

out as follows:

10-14 years =33 1/3%
15-19 years = 50%
20-24 years = 75%
25+ years = 100%

50% if quits.

After 600 hours earned,
may "freeze" sick leave and
get paid for 50% a month or
1/2 day of sick leave.

Personal leave

N/A

5 days per fiscal year

N/A

80 hours of Managment
Leave per each fiscal year

Unused leave as of 06/30
will be lost

No cash payment for
unused leave

N/A




TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

FiRE
PROTACTION OIS TEICT

Fire Chief
STAFF REPORT Filﬁancel_
. . cga
Board Meeting Date: November 22, 2016 Risk Mgt,
HR
DATE: October 20, 2016
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Alex Kukulus, Battalion Chief

THROUGH: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief
Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval to create three additional full-time
Firefighter/Paramedic positions.

SUMMARY

Discussion and possible approval to create three additional full-time Firefighter/Paramedic positions.
Strategic Objective supported by this item: Valued, Engaged Employee Workforce

PREVIOUS ACTION

None.

BACKGROUND

The District is currently conducting a recruitment to establish a list for the position of
Firefighter/Paramedic. There are currently 4 vacant Firefighter/Paramedic positions, but the District
anticipates several additional vacancies in the coming months due to the possibility of promotions and/or
retirements. When the District fills vacancies with new Firefighters, they must be trained through a
comprehensive training program or academy. This training requires a great deal of planning, resources,
and expense, so it is advantageous for the District to minimize the number of new recruit academies that
it conducts.

Due to the anticipated future vacancies, the District is seeking Board approval to create 3 new full-time
Firefighter/Paramedic positions (for a total of 7 positions, including the 4 existing vacancies). As
personnel retire and/or promote, internal personnel will fill those positions, and the 3 newly authorized
positions would be drawn down from to fill the vacancies without the need for additional hiring and
conducting a training academy.

The District currently requires 35 personnel for each shift (eleven three person crews, plus one
Safety/Training Officer, and one Battalion Chief). However, the District currently has 1 additional
“floater” firefighter assigned to each shift (36" person), who is used to fill daily vacancies due to
vacation, sick leave, etc. This request for 3 additional Firefighter/Paramedics would cause there to be 2

AGENDA ITEM #10



BOFC Meeting November 15, 2016
Page 2 of 2

“floater” firefighters on each shift (37 personnel/shift). The result of adding this floater to each shift,
would be a corresponding reduction in overtime needed to fill daily vacancies as they occur.

FISCAL IMPACT

The fiscal impact of hiring 3 additional Firefighters/Paramedics including salary and benefits is
$310,677. This cost would be offset by a corresponding reduction in overtime making the fiscal effect
negligible. There are currently 2 vacancies a day in operational staffing and only 1 floater per shift to
cover for these vacancies. These 3 additional Firefighters/Paramedics will provide 1 additional floater
for each of the 3 shifts to cover for the daily vacancies instead of paying overtime. Therefore, the costs
of hiring the additional staff would be offset by a reduction in overtime costs.

However, TMFPD would see cost savings by hiring the 3 additional Firefighter/Paramedics due to a
reduction in staff planning, resources and expense if the District would have to establish another
comprehensive training program or academy to hire this staff when the anticipated promotions and
retirements occur. Each training program or academy for new hires costs the District an estimated
minimum cost of $15,000.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommendation is for the approval to create three additional full-time Firefighter/Paramedic positions.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion could be:

“Move to approve the creation of three additional full-time Firefighter/Paramedic positions.”



Q“‘E'E_HEAOO
S e

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

WABMGE JOHUNTY, M

(]
FAGTEHCT (DN Q43 TRICT

Fire Chief
STAFF REPORT e
Board Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 Risk Mgt.
HR
DATE: November 1, 2015
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Telephone: (775) 328-6123, Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Approve the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees, dependents and
retirees at an estimated annual cost of $1,691,633 and authorize the Chairman of the
Board of Fire Commissioners to execute all insurance contracts and service agreements
pertinent to the Health Benefits Program. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

Staff is recommending Board of Fire Commissioners authorization to approve the 2017 Health Benefits
Program for District employees, dependents and retirees at an estimated annual cost of $1,691,633 and
authorize the Chairman of the Board of Fire Commissioners to execute all insurance contracts and
service agreements pertinent to the Health Benefits Program.

Strategic Outcome supported by this item: Sustainability of our financial, social, and natural
resources.

PREVIOUS ACTION

April 22, 2014 - The Board of Fire Commissioners approved a Health Benefits Program for FY 2014/15
for the District.

May 19, 2016 — The Board of Fire Commissioners approved a Health Benefits Program for a term of 18
months for the District to bring the plan to a calendar year to allow for a possible HSA Option in the
future.

BACKGROUND

The current Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District health insurance plan is set to expire December 31,
2016. All coverage information referenced in this section is based on bids received from Hometown Health
by the District’s broker, LP Insurance Services. The bids were evaluated by the Health Benefits Committee
which consists of members of the employee associations and Administrative staff to include the Fire Chief.
The Committee has completed its annual review of the bids received.

From the bid results, several different plan options were evaluated which included PPO, HMO and a HSA
Hometown Health offered a renewal of the current plan with a 10.8% increase in cost from the past 18
months. After careful consideration, the Committee recommends to stay with Hometown Health so that
member plan benefits would not decrease and so that members would not have to change provider networks.
The committee also received different plan options for a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) through

AGENDA ITEM #11



BOFC Meeting November 15, 2016
Page 2 of 3

Hometown Health with a Health Savings Account (HSA) through Discovery Benefits. As this Plan is cost
neutral to the District, the Committee recommends adding the HDHP as a second option for its employees.
We received the renewal bids from, Guardian (our current dental provider, VSP (our current Vision plan
Provider) and Standard Life (our current life insurance provider) all at a no increases. The Committee
recommends continuing with these three providers. The Committee also re-evaluated the Flexible Benefit
Plan (Section 125) and recommends staying with Discovery Benefits as they will also be our HSA
Administrator. Since employees already have some voluntary supplemental benefit plans through
American Fidelity, it is recommended that those still be supported for the employee through payroll
deductions but the District does not contribute to those plans.

Group Health Plan
The cost of the fully-insured plan premium, with no change in carrier, results in an estimated 10.8%
increase from the current premium for 2017.

PPO Network
The network selection recommended by Hometown Health PPO is in network and First Health for the
out of network option.

High Deductible Health Plan

The cost of the HDHP by Hometown Health has the same in and out of Network options and the
premium is cost neutral with the Group Health plan. The District will contribute to the Health Savings
account on a biannual basis.

Health Saving Account

The District proposes to use Discovery Benefits as the third party administrator p the HSA, and will
contribute biannually the Cost difference between the PPO and the HDHP minus any administration fees
to a HSA in the employee’s name

Dental Insurance
The cost of the fully-insured dental premium, with no change in carriers, results in no increase from the
current premium for 2017

Life Insurance

The cost of the fully-insured life premium, with no change in carrier, results in no increase in cost for
2017

Vision Insurance
The cost of the fully-insured VSP vision premium, with no change in carrier, results in no increase in
cost for 2017.

Flexible Benefit Plan (Section 125)

The Flexible Benefit Plan provides employees the ability to direct a part of their pay, on a pre-tax basis
into a special account that can be used to reimburse them for dependent day care and/or unreimbursed
medical expenses.




BOFC Meeting November 15, 2016
Page 3 of 3

American Fidelity would continue to provide voluntary supplemental benefit plans to employees at no
charge to the District.

FISCAL IMPACT

Funding for the Health Benefits Program is included in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 budget. The estimated
annual cost is $1,691,633. Of this amount, the District paid portion is estimated at $1,220,252 and the
employee paid portion is estimated at $510,084.12

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Fire Commissioners approve the 2017 Health Benefits Program for
District employees, dependents and retirees at an estimated annual cost of $1,691,633 and authorize the
Chairman of the Board of Fire Commissioners to execute all insurance contracts and service agreements
pertinent to the Health Benefits Program.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be:

“Move to approve the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees, dependents and retirees at
an estimated annual cost of $1,691,633 and authorize the Chairman of the Board of Fire Commissioners
to execute all insurance contracts and service agreements pertinent to the Health Benefits Program.”



Hometown Health
Alternative Benefit Plan Toal

Hometown
Health<?

Group Name: TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PRQTECTION DISTRICT
Group Number: 3041

Rate Effective Date: 1/1/2017

Broker: LP Insurance User

Current Plan - Benefit Plan 2 Premiums by Tier
Plan Name Rate Changs Employee EE & Spouse EE & Child EE& Children Family| Overall Total
16 LG PPO 15-90 CINS P DOSO0X2 A%;RX $10/$30/$50 10.8% 0 3 1 2 6
$ 53751 § 96367 $ 963.67 $ 1,405.57 § 140557 | § 6,665.82
Hometown Health HOeru) 1)
Alternative Benefit Plan Tool Healfh q‘?
Group Name: TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Group Number: 3041
Rate Effective Date: 1/1/2017
Broker: LP Insurance User
Current Plan - Benefit Plan 1 P by Tier
Plan Name Rate Change Employee EE & Spouse EE& Child EE & Children Family Overall Total
16 LG PPQ 15-90 CINS P DOS00X2 A%:RX $10/530/350 10.8% 42 [ & 53 115
$ 53751 § 963.67 § 963.67 § 140557 $ 1,405.57 | $ 121,234.82
Alternative Benefit Optlons Premiums by Tier
Alternative Plan Name Rate Change | EE & Spouse EE & Cl_:i:ld EE & Children Family Overall Total
_ .1 . 151GPPOHD-90 CINS E D2600X2 HSA;HSA RX Plan -17.6% 3 399.96 § 7707 § 7707 § 1,045.90 § 1,04550 | § 90,248.93
Hometown Health Hometown
Alternative Benefit Plan Taol He’ab‘bqo
Group Name: TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTKON DISTRICT
Group Number: 3041
Rate Effective Date: 1/1/2017
Broker: LP insurance User
Signature Required for Acceptance
Authorized € Rep ive (please print) Signature Date

This premium rate is based on information reviewed as of the date of this quate.

Rates may be adjusted based on final enrollment and/or new or differing informatian discovered within saventy days aftar the Effective Dats.
Visian benefits are offered by Vision Service Plan (VSP). VSP is salely respensible for providing vision benefits provided under their vision benefit plans

Certain combinations of plans may nos he sold together and may be subject to additional charges,

A final binding rate quote and contract, if approved by Hometown Health, wiil be dellverad to a Company represantative authorized to accept heaith Ingurance cantracts.

Allinsurance contracts have a duration of twelve manths unless otharwisa stated.

Key benefits listed above do nat const tute a comprehensive list of benefits and are listad as a reference anly- Coinsurance banafits are applied after all assoclated dedyctibles have been paid

Certain limits and exclusions not described above may apply. Refer to the Evidene of Caverage and Summary of Renafits for 2 mare datalled descrintion of the banefits for aach plan.

In the event of a canflict between this information and the final binding contract, the binding contract will pravail

Please fax (775-982-3747) or return to Hometown Health 30 days prior to the Effective Date,



Request for Group Insurance Amendment

Standard Insurance Company
900 SW Fifth Avenue
Portland, OR 97204-1282

Employee Benefits Consultant: Josh Levine
Employee Benefits Service Representative: Adria Vance
Employee Benefits Sales and Service Office: San Francisco

Employer Name: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Group Number: 154720

As an authorized representative of the Employer, I request that Standard Insurance Company (“The
Standard”) amend the above Employer’s coverage under the Group Policy to make the following
change(s):

Change renewal date to January 1st with the next renewal to be 1/1/2019

I request that the amendment become effective on 10/01/2016. I understand that the amendment will not
become effective unless approved and issued by The Standard.

I request that the amendment be approved by The Standard subject to The Standard’s usual underwriting
requirements, including, if applicable, Evidence of Insurability or a Pre-existing Condition provision.

I understand that the amendment, if approved by The Standard, will be issued in the policy language
customarily used by The Standard.

I understand that any increase in Insurance for a Member who is not Actively At Work all day on the
Member’s last regular work day before the scheduled effective date of the amendment will be deferred
until the first day after the Member completes one full day of Active Work.

I request that the amendment, if approved and issued by The Standard, become effective by its terms
without any further acceptance by the Employer, and that a copy of this Request for Group Insurance
Amendment form be attached to and made a part of the amendment.

Sign Name: Title:
Authorized Representative

Print Name: Date:

Standard Online Amendment Request lofl 9/20/2016 2:21 PM



It's renewal
time!

Guardian is
here to help.

RENEWAL INFORMATION FOR

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
GROUP PLAN # 00477445

RENEWAL PERIOD
January 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017

&

GUARDIAN UFE | DENTAL

GuardianA nytime_com

VISION J DISABILITY ABSENCE | SUPPLEMENTAL HEALTH STOPLOSS AS0

The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America, T Hanover Square, Hew York, iY 10004, Guardian® and the GUARDIAN GE' logo are
registered service marks of The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America and am used with express pem ission



What you'll find in this package

RENEWAL INFORMATION

Renewal Premiums At-a-Glance
Renewal Rates At-a-Glance
Dental Details

Guardian Life Insurance Company of America

PAGE



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
GROUP PLAN # 00477445

Renewal Premiums At-a-Glance

EMPLOYER-SPONSORED COVERAGE

Coverage Current Annual Renewal Annual

Dental $123,922 $123,922

KEY POINTS OF INFORMATION REGARDING PLAN PRICING

Product-specific rates shown in this package have been determined based on a number of

factors, including: « Employee age and gender o Group location
» Changes in group size o Claims experience (when applicable)

Guardian Life Insurance Company of America



Renewal Rates At-a-Glance

—— e i e

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

GROUP PLAN # 00477445

This plan is currently offered for Insurance Class 1

DENTAL PLAN RATES - PPO VUOY

Tier

EE
EE & SP
EE & CH
FAMILY
TOTAL

Enrolled
Employees

41
9
15
56
121

CURRENT

Monthly Annual
Rate Premium

$32.68 $16,079

$68.75 $7,425
$89.42 $16,096
$125.48 $84,323
$123,922

Guardian Life Insurance Company of America

RENEWAL )
Monthly Annual
Rate Premium |
$32.68 $16,079 |
$68.75 $7,425
$89.42 $16,096
$125.48 $84,323
$123,922




TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
GROUP PLAN # 00477445

Current Dental Plan Information

CONTRACT TYPE: DENTAL GUARD 2000

This plan is currently offered for Insurance Class 1

' PLAN BENEFITS SUMMARY

In-Network Out-of-Network

Network DentalGuard Preferred None
Coinsurance

Preventive 100% 100%

Basic 80% 80%

Major 50% 50%
Deductible $0 $50

Waived for preventive? Yes Yes

Claim Payment Basis

Fee Schedule

Fee Schedule

Maximum $1,500 $1,500
Orthodontia Included

Lifetime Maximum $1,000

Coinsurance 50%

Maximum Rollover

Threshold $700
Rollover Amount $350
In-network only rollover $500
Max Rollover Limit $1,250
Dependent Age Limit 26/26

Plan information is for illustrative purposes only. Please consult plan contract for specific benefit levels.

Guardian Life Insurance Company of America



